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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS FOR FORWARD -LOOKING INFORMATION

Unless otherwise indicated, references to “Johr@omtrols,” the “Company,” “we,
to Johnson Controls, Inc. and its consolidatediglidrses.

our” and “us” inhis Annual Report on Form 10-refel

The Company has made statements in this documetrath forwardeoking and, therefore, are subject to risks anckttainties. All statemer
in this document other than statements of histbfea are statements that are, or could be, deéffioealard{ooking statements” within tl
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Refofet of 1995. In this document, statements regardiriure financial position, sales, co
earnings, cash flows, other measures of resultgpefations, capital expenditures or debt levels@ads, objectives, outlook, targets, guids
or goals are forward-looking statements. Words sash‘may,” “will,” “expect,” “intend,” “estimate,”“anticipate,” “believe,” “should,”
“forecast,” “project” or “plan” or terms of similameaning are also generally intended to identifwérd{ooking statements. Johnson Cont
cautions that these statements are subject to lmus@nportant risks, uncertainties, assumptionsathdr factors, some of which are bey
Johnson Controls' control, that could cause Joh@sonrols' actual results to differ materially frahose expressed or implied by such forwart
looking statements. A detailed discussion of riskecluded in the section entitled "Risk Factqi&fer to Part I, Item IA, of this Annual Rep
on Form 10-K). The forwartboking statements included in this document arly omade as of the date of this document, unlesesrafise
specified, and Johnson Controls assumes no oldigatind disclaims any obligation, to update forwlaking statements to reflect event:
circumstances occurring after the date of this duemnt.

"

PART |

ITEM 1 BUSINESS

General

Johnson Controls is a global diversified technolagg industrial leader serving customers in moas th50 countries. The Company cre
quality products, services and solutions to optérénergy and operational efficiencies of buildingapacid automotive batteries and advar
batteries for hybrid and electric vehicles; aneéiimr systems for automobiles.

Johnson Controls was originally incorporated ingtege of Wisconsin in 1885 as Johnson Electrivi8etCompany to manufacture, install

service automatic temperature regulation system®dddings. The Company was renamed to Johnsortr@eninc. in 1974. In 1978, t
Company acquired Globe-Union, Inc., a Wiscorts@ised manufacturer of automotive batteries for Huthreplacement and original equipn
markets. The Company entered the automotive semmihgstry in 1985 with the acquisition of Michiglased Hoover Universal, Inc. In 20
the Company acquired York International, a glohgdier of heating, ventilating, air-conditioningdrefrigeration equipment and services.

The Building Efficiency business is a global marlegtder in designing, producing, marketing andailtisg integrated heating, ventilating ¢
air conditioning (HVAC) systems, building managemeagstems, controls, security and mechanical egeigmin addition, the Buildir
Efficiency business provides technical servicesrgyn management consulting and operations of engia¢ estate portfolios for the non-
residential buildings market. The Company also jgres residential air conditioning and heating syst@nd industrial refrigeration products.

The Automotive Experience business is one of theldw® largest automotive suppliers, providing innovatiaterior systems through ¢
design and engineering expertise. The Compmatgchnologies extend into virtually every areahaf interior including seating and overh
systems, door systems, floor consoles, instrumangls, cockpits and integrated electronics. Custerimelude most of the world’ majo
automakers.

The Power Solutions business is a leading glohaplger of leadacid automotive batteries for virtually every tyglepassenger car, light tru
and utility vehicle. The Company serves both autiveariginal equipment manufacturers (OEMs) arel general vehicle battery aftermar
The Company also supplies advanced battery techigsldo power certain Start-Stop vehicles, hybnd alectric vehicles.

Financial Information About Business Segments

Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 280, “SegiBeporting,”establishes the standards for reporting informatibout segments
financial statements. In applying the criteriafegeth in ASC 280, the Company has determined thiad$ nine reportable segments for finar
reporting purposes. The Company’s nine reportadfgnents are presented in the context of its thrieeapy businessesBuilding Efficiency
Automotive Experience and Power Solutions.




Refer to Note 19, “Segment Information,” of thee®to consolidated financial statements for finalnoiformation about business segments.

For the purpose of the following discussion of thempanys businesses, the five Building Efficiency repoleabegments and the th
Automotive Experience reportable segments are ptedetogether due to their similar customers are dimilar nature of their produc
production processes and distribution channels.

Products/Systems and Services
Building Efficiency

Building Efficiency is a global leader in deliveginntegrated control systems, mechanical equipmsstyices and solutions designet
improve the comfort, safety and energy efficiendynon+esidential buildings and residential propertieshwoperations in 59 countrit
Revenues come from facilities management, techsialices, and the replacement and upgrade of He@@rols and mechanical equipm
in the existing buildings market, where the Comparigrge base of current customers leads to repesihdss, as well as with install
controls and equipment during the constructiones uildings. Customer relationships often spairebuilding lifecycles.

Building Efficiency sells its control systems, maaical equipment and services primarily through@eenpanys extensive global network
sales and service offices. Some building contraid anechanical systems are sold to distributors ist@nditioning, refrigeration ai
commercial heating systems throughout the worldprAgimately 43% of Building Efficiencg sales are derived from HVAC products
installed control systems for construction and aof@trmarkets, including 14% of total sales related new commercial constructic
Approximately 57% of its sales originate from itndce offerings. In fiscal 2013 , Building Efficiey accounted for 34% of the Company’
consolidated net sales.

The Company’s systems include Yorldillers, industrial refrigeration products, airndéers and other HYAC mechanical equipment
provide heating and cooling in non-residential dinijs. The Metasys®ontrol system monitors and integrates HVAC equipimeith othe
critical building systems to maximize comfort whileducing energy and operating costs. As the lamgiebal supplier of HVAC technic
services, Building Efficiency staffs, optimizes amgbairs building systems made by the Company &ndompetitors. The Company offel
wide range of solutions such as performance caitigaander which guaranteed energy savings are lgelle customer to fund project cc
over a number of years. In addition, the Global Mgtace Solutions segment provides full-time 9t@ operations staff and real estate
energy consulting services to help customers, @sdpemulti-national companies, reduce costs and improve therpgance of their facilit
portfolios. The Company'’s osite staff typically performs tasks related to toenfort and reliability of the facility, and managsubcontracto
for functions such as food service, cleaning, nesiahce and landscaping. The Company also prodircesnaitioning and heating equipm
for the residential market.

Automotive Experience

Automotive Experience designs and manufacturesiant@roducts and systems for passenger cars ghtl tiucks, including vans, piakg
trucks and sport/crossover utility vehicles. Theibass produces automotive interior systems f@jirwal equipment manufacturers (OEMSs)
operates approximately 220 wholly- and majoatyned manufacturing or assembly plants, with opematin 35 countries worldwic
Additionally, the business has partially-ownedl&fes in Asia, Europe, North America and South Aoz

Automotive Experience products and systems inckataplete seating systems and components; cockgtiérsyg, including instrument par
and clusters, information displays and body cotdrs] overhead systems, including headliners aedtranic convenience features; fl
consoles; and door systems. In fiscal 2013 , Autawadcxperience accounted for 51% of the Compaagissolidated net sales.

The business operates assembly plants that suppdynative OEMs with complete seats on a “just-meiin-sequencebasis. Seats ¢
assembled to specific order and delivered on agpeethined schedule directly to an automotive asefime. Certain of the businessbthe
automotive interior systems are also supplied djust-in-time/in-sequencebasis. Foam, metal and plastic seating componseéd, cover
seat mechanisms and other components are shippleelst® plants from the business’s production faslior outside suppliers.




Power Solutions

Power Solutions services both automotive OEMs d&mdbattery aftermarket by providing energy storteghnology, coupled with syste
engineering, marketing and service expertise. Tovmg@any is the largest producer of lesxdd automotive batteries in the world, producing
distributing approximately 135 million lead-acidttesies annually in approximately 55 wholly- andjamity-owned manufacturing or assem
plants, distribution centers and sales offices Gnc@untries worldwide. Investments in new produat @rocess technology have expar
product offerings to absorbent glass mat (AGM) andanced flooded battery (EFB) technologies thatgpdStartStop vehicles, as well
lithium-ion battery technology for certain hybrid and dliectvehicles. The business has also invested teldpvsustainable lead and p
recycling operations in the North American and Pe@n markets. Approximately 75% of unit sales weidig in fiscal 2013were to th
automotive replacement market, with the remainadgsto the OEM market.

Power Solutions accounted for 15% of the Compafigtzal 2013consolidated net sales. Batteries and key compsraret manufactured
wholly- and majority-owned plants in North Ameri&quth America, Asia and Europe.

Competition
Building Efficiency

The Building Efficiency business conducts its opierss through thousands of individual contractd tr@ either negotiated or awarded «
competitive basis. Key factors in the award of cacts include system and service performance, tqualiice, design, reputation, technolc
application engineering capability and constructimnproject management expertise. Competitors fgAB contracts in the residential &
non+esidential marketplace include many regional,amati and international providers; larger compesitorclude Honeywell Internation
Inc.; Siemens Building Technologies, an operatingug of Siemens AG; Schneider Electric SA; Car@erporation, a subsidiary of Unit
Technologies Corporation; Trane Incorporated, aisligry of IngersolRand Company Limited; Daikin Industries, Ltd.; Lemninternationa
Inc.; Goodman Global, Inc.; GC Midea Holding CodLand Gree Electric Appliances, Inc. In additian HVAC equipment, Buildin
Efficiency competes in a highly fragmented HVAC\sees market, which is dominated by local providdise facilities management marl
including Global Workplace Solutions, is also fragrted at the local level with many regional comparservicing specific geographies.
largest competition comes from ISS A/S; Sodexo $A dones Lang LaSalle, Inc. Sales of servicesagely dependent upon numer
individual contracts with commercial businesseslawide. The loss of any individual contract woulot inave a material adverse effect or
Company.

Automotive Experience

The Automotive Experience business faces competifiom other automotive suppliers and, with respeectcertain products, from t
automobile OEMs who produce or have the capabibityproduce certain products the business suppliee. automotive supply indus
competes on the basis of technology, quality, béitg of supply and price. Design, engineering amebduct planning are increasin
important factors. Independent suppliers that iggmethe principal Automotive Experience compegitaiclude Lear Corporation, Faurecia
and Magna International Inc.

Power Solutions

Power Solutions is the principal supplier of bageto many of the largest merchants in the batiéisrmarket, including Advance Auto Pa
AutoZone, Robert Bosch GmbH, DAISA S.A., Costco, M O'Reilly/CSK, Interstate Battery System of Americea®, Roebuck & Co. a
Wal-Mart stores. Automotive batteries are sold tigfwout the world under private labels and underGbenpany’s brand names (Optima®
Varta®, LTH® and Heliar®)to automotive replacement battery retailers andribigors and to automobile manufacturers as oal
equipment. The Power Solutions business competissavmiumber of major domestic and international ufi@cturers and distributors of lead-
acid batteries, as well as a large number of smallgional competitors. The Power Solutions bussr@rimarily competes in the battery ma
with Exide Technologies, GS Yuasa Corporation, da@meup Company Limited, East Penn Manufacturingnpany and Banner Batteries
Limited. The North American, European and Asiandlaaid battery markets are highly competitive. Thenuofacturers in these mark
compete on price, quality, technical innovationyse and warranty.

Backlog
The Company’s backlog relating to the Building Eiffincy business is applicable to its sales of systand services. At September 30, 201
the backlog was $4.8 billion, the majority of whiHates to fiscal 2014. The backlog as of Septer8@e2012was $5.2 billion. The decres

in backlog was primarily due to the divestiture anfs in Europe and decline in the North

5




America Service, Other and Asia segments, part@fiset by an increase in the North America Systeamment. The backlog does not inc
amounts associated with contracts in the GlobalkMace Solutions business because such contraetygically multiyear service awarc
nor does it include unitary products within the @tsegment. The backlog amount outstanding at asepn dime is not necessarily indicative
the amount of revenue to be earned in the upcofigogl year.

Raw Materials

Raw materials used by the businesses in conneetitntheir operations, including lead, steel, taluminum, urethane chemicals, cop
sulfuric acid and polypropylene, were readily aabié during the year, and the Company expects avatability to continue. In fiscal 201
commodity prices could fluctuate throughout theryaad could significantly affect the results of céons.

Intellectual Property

Generally, the Company seeks statutory protectiorsfrategic or financially important intellectyadoperty developed in connection with
business. Certain intellectual property, where appate, is protected by contracts, licenses, demtiiality or other agreements.

The Company owns numerous U.S. and ko8- patents (and their respective counterparts), more important of which cover th
technologies and inventions embodied in currentipets or which are used in the manufacture of tippeducts. While the Company belie
patents are important to its business operatiodsrathe aggregate constitute a valuable assedingbe patent, or group of patents, is critic:
the success of the business. The Company, fromttiime, grants licenses under its patents arfthtdogy and receives licenses under pa
and technology of others.

The Company’s trademarks, certain of which are rat® its business, are registered or otherwgg@lly protected in the U.S. and many nor
U.S. countries where products and services of ttrafgainy are sold. The Company, from time to timepbges involved in trademark licens
transactions.

Most works of authorship produced for the Compasych as computer programs, catalogs and saleatliter carry appropriate noti
indicating the Company’s claim to copyright protesctunder U.S. law and appropriate internatioresties.

Environmental, Health and Safety Matters

Laws addressing the protection of the environmemntviifonmental laws) and workersafety and health (worker safety laws) goverr
Companys ongoing global operations. They generally proviecivil and criminal penalties, as well as inftire and remedial relief, f
noncompliance or require remediation of sites wiGwmpany-related materials have been releasedhatenvironment.

The Company has expended substantial resourcesliglaoth financial and managerial, to comply wéthivironmental laws and worker sat
laws and maintains procedures designed to fostteasure compliance. Certain of the Compaiysinesses are, or have been, engaged
handling or use of substances that may impact wackphealth and safety or the environment. The Gomps committed to protecting
workers and the environment against the risks @ssotwith these substances.

The Companys operations and facilities have been, and in tiheré may become, the subject of formal or inforerfiorcement actions
proceedings for noncompliance with environmentassland worker safety laws or for the remediatiolCompanyrelated substances relea
into the environment. Such matters typically agoheed by negotiation with regulatory authoritiéattresult in commitments to compliar
abatement or remediation programs and, in somescpagment of penalties. Historically, neither sedmmitments nor such penalties h
been material. (See Item 3, “Legal Proceedingsthisfreport for a discussion of the Company’s ptite environmental liabilities.)

Environmental Capital Expenditures

The Companys ongoing environmental compliance program oftesults in capital expenditures. Environmental coasations are a part of
significant capital expenditure decisions; howeeapenditures in fiscal 20X8lated solely to environmental compliance werematerial. It i
managemens$ opinion that the amount of any future capitalemgitures related solely to environmental compkandl not have a materi
adverse effect on the Company'’s financial resultsompetitive position in any one year.




Employees

As of September 30, 2013the Company employed approximately 170,000 engasy of whom approximately 107,000 were hourly
63,000 were salaried.

Seasonal Factors

Certain of Building Efficiencys sales are seasonal as the demand for residamt@inditioning equipment generally increaseshim $umme
months. This seasonality is mitigated by the oraducts and services provided by the Building di#ficy business that have no mat
seasonal effect.

Sales of automotive seating and interior systentsadrbatteries to automobile OEMs for use as osabequipment are dependent upon
demand for new automobiles. Management believes demand for new automobiles generally reflectssisieity to overall economi
conditions with no material seasonal effect.

The automotive replacement battery market is affbdly weather patterns because batteries are nkefg to fail when extremely lo
temperatures place substantial additional powarirements upon a vehickeklectrical system. Also, battery life is shorekbg extremely hig
temperatures, which accelerate corrosion rategefdre, either mild winter or moderate summer terapges may adversely affect automa
replacement battery sales.

Financial Information About Geographic Areas
Refer to Note 19, “Segment Information,” of thee®to consolidated financial statements for finalnciformation about geographic areas.
Research and Development Expenditures

Refer to Note 1, “Summary of Significant AccountiRglicies,”of the notes to consolidated financial statememtsdsearch and developm
expenditures.

Available Information

The Company’s filings with the U.S. Securities d&dhange Commission (SEC), including annual repamt§orm 10K, quarterly reports ¢
Form 10-Q, definitive proxy statements on Scheddld, current reports on Formkg-and any amendments to those reports filed puatsia
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange #ct934, are made available free of charge thrahghinvestor Relations section of
Companys Internet website at http://www.johnsoncontrolsicas soon as reasonably practicable after the Coynglactronically files suc
material with, or furnishes it to, the SEC. Copiésany materials the Company files with the SEC akso be obtained free of charge thrc
the SEC'’s website at http://www.sec.gov, at the SHRUblic Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Wgsin, D.C. 20549, or by calling t
SEC'’s Office of Investor Education and Advocacyle800-7320330. The Company also makes available, free ofgehats Ethics Polic
Corporate Governance Guidelines, Board of Directandmittee charters and other information relatedhe Company on the Compasy’
Internet website or in printed form upon requeste Tompany is not including the information cor¢airon the Compang’website as a pi
of, or incorporating it by reference into, this Arah Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 1A RISKFACTORS

General Risks

General economic, credit and capital market conditns could adversely affect our financial performane, may affect our ability to grow
or sustain our businesses and could negatively affeour ability to access the capital markets.

We compete around the world in various geograpdggons and product markets. Global economic camtstaffect each of our three prim
businesses. As we discuss in greater detail ispkeific risk factors for each of our businesses #ippear below, any future financial distre:
the automotive industry or residential and comnagrconstruction markets could negatively affect mwenues and financial performanc
future periods, result in future restructuring gjea, and adversely impact our ability to grow @taim our businesses.

The capital and credit markets provide us withitiify to operate and grow our businesses beyonditjuédity that operating cash flo
provide. A worldwide economic downturn and disroptof the credit markets could reduce our accesapdal
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necessary for our operations and executing outegfiaplan. If our access to capital were to becsigeificantly constrained or costs of car
increased significantly due to lowered credit rgsinprevailing industry conditions, the volatilidf the capital markets or other factors, ther
financial condition, results of operations and cielvs could be adversely affected.

We are subject to risks associated with our non-U.®perations that could adversely affect our resudt of operations.

We have significant operations in a number of coestoutside the U.S., some of which are locateehiierging markets. Longrm economi
uncertainty in some of the regions of the worldnvinich we operate, such as Asia, South AmericaMidglle East, Central Europe and ol
emerging markets, could result in the disruptiomaifrkets and negatively affect cash flows from aperations to cover our capital needs
debt service.

In addition, as a result of our global presencsigaificant portion of our revenues and expenseei®minated in currencies other than the
dollar. We are therefore subject to foreign curyensks and foreign exchange exposure. Our prineaposures are to the euro, British pol
Japanese yen, Czech koruna, Mexican peso, Rombaijardungarian forint, Polish zloty, Canadian dolend Chinese renminbi. While
employ financial instruments to hedge some of camdactional foreign exchange exposure, theseitietivlo not insulate us completely fr
those exposures. Exchange rates can be volatileaud adversely impact our financial results andhparability of results from period
period.

There are other risks that are inherent in our dd®- operations, including the potential for cham@e socioeconomic conditions, laws a
regulations, including import, export, labor andrieonmental laws, and monetary and fiscal polic@®itectionist measures that may prol
acquisitions or joint ventures, or impact tradewwoés; unsettled political conditions; governmiemposed plant or other operational shutdo
backlash from foreign labor organizations relat@aur restructuring actions; corruption; naturadl amanmade disasters, hazards and lo:
violence, civil and labor unrest, and possibleasst attacks.

These and other factors may have a material adeéfieset on our non-U.S. operations and thereforewrbusiness and results of operations.
We are subject to regulation of our international gerations that could adversely affect our businesand results of operations.

Due to our global operations, we are subject toyniaws governing international relations, includithgse that prohibit improper payment
government officials and commercial customers, i@strict where we can do business, what informadioproducts we can supply to cer
countries and what information we can provide twa-U.S. government, including but not limited to ther&ign Corrupt Practices Act, U.
Bribery Act and the U.S. Export Administration Asfiolations of these laws, which are complex, maguit in criminal penalties or sanctis
that could have a material adverse effect on osimiess, financial condition and results of operetio

Global climate change could negatively affect ourusiness.

Increased public awareness and concern regardaimalgtiimate change may result in more regional@nfgderal requirements to reduce
mitigate the effects of greenhouse gas emissiohsreTcontinues to be a lack of consistent climaggslation, which creates economic
regulatory uncertainty. Such regulatory uncertaiatends to future incentives for energy efficiéntildings and vehicles and costs
compliance, which may impact the demand for oudpobs, obsolescence of our products and our resiutigerations.

There is a growing consensus that greenhouse gasiens are linked to global climate changes. Ciinzhanges, such as extreme we:
conditions, create financial risk to our busindsst example, the demand for our products and sesyisuch as residential air conditior
equipment and automotive replacement batteries, eagffected by unseasonable weather conditiorsia® changes could also disrupt
operations by impacting the availability and cdstmaterials needed for manufacturing and couldease insurance and other operating ¢
These factors may impact our decisions to constraut facilities or maintain existing facilities areas most prone to physical climate ri
The Company could also face indirect financial siglassed through the supply chain, and proceasptisns due to physical climate char
could result in price modifications for our prodsieind the resources needed to produce them.

New regulations related to conflict minerals couldadversely impact our business.

The DoddFrank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protectioncdatains provisions to improve transparency acwbantability concernir
the supply of certain minerals, known as confli¢henals, originating from the Democratic RepublfcGmngo (DRC) and adjoining countri
As a result, in August 2012 the SEC adopted andisalosure and reporting requirements for thosepaoies who use conflict minerals
their products. Accordingly, we began our reasomablntry of origin inquiries in fiscal
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2013, with initial disclosure requirements begimmnin May 2014. There are costs associated with tgingpwith these disclosure requireme
including for diligence to determine the sourcesafiflict minerals used in our products and othateptial changes to products, process:
sources of supply as a consequence of such véigiicactivities. The implementation of these rutesild adversely affect the sourcing, suj
and pricing of materials used in our products. Wer¢ may be only a limited number of suppliers raffe “conflict free” conflict minerals, w
cannot be sure that we will be able to obtain nesngsconflict minerals from such suppliers in stiffnt quantities or at competitive pric
Also, we may face reputational challenges if weedatne that certain of our products contain mireradt determined to be conflict free ¢
we are unable to sufficiently verify the origing &l conflict minerals used in our products thrbube procedures we may implement.

We are subject to requirements relating to environrental regulation and environmental remediation maters, which could adversel
affect our business and results of operations.

Because of uncertainties associated with envirommheagulation and environmental remediation atési at sites where we may be lia
future expenses that we may incur to remediatetifikh sites could be considerably higher than therent accrued liability on o
consolidated statement of financial position, whicluld have a material adverse effect on our basiaed results of operations.

Risks related to our defined benefit retirement plas may adversely impact our results of operationsral cash flow.

Significant changes in actual investment returrdefined benefit plan assets, discount rates, amer dactors could adversely affect our res
of operations and the amounts of contributions wstrmake to our defined benefit plans in futurdqaks. As we mark-tanarket our define
benefit plan assets and liabilities on an annuaisbdarge norcash gains or losses could be recorded in theHaurarter of each fiscal ye
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles meqthat we calculate income or expense for the splaging actuarial valuations. Th
valuations reflect assumptions about financial reerkand interest rates, which may change basedconomic conditions. Fundii
requirements for our defined benefit plans are ddpet upon, among other things, interest ratesenlyidg asset returns and the impac
legislative or regulatory changes related to defibenefit funding obligations. For a discussionarging the significant assumptions use
determine net periodic benefit cost, refer to “iCat Accounting Estimates and Policies” includeditem 7, “Managemend’ Discussion ar
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gytems.”

We may be unable to realize the expected benefit§ our restructuring actions, which could adverselyaffect our profitability and
operations.

In order to align our resources with our growthatgies, operate more efficiently and control costs periodically announce restructui
plans, which include workforce reductions, glob&np closures and consolidations, ldhgd asset impairments and other cost redu
initiatives. We may undertake additional restruictgiractions and workforce reductions in the futuke.these plans and actions are com,
unforeseen factors could result in expected savémgsbenefits to be delayed or not realized tdfulieextent planned, and our operations
business may be disrupted.

Negative or unexpected tax consequences could adsely affect our results of operations.

Adverse changes in the underlying profitability githncial outlook of our operations in severaligdictions could lead to changes in
valuation allowances against deferred tax assetso#lmer tax reserves on our statement of finanmigition, and the future sale of cer
businesses could potentially result in the repiriaof accumulated foreign earnings that couldarially and adversely affect our result:
operations. Additionally, changes in tax laws ie t4.S. or in other countries where we have sigaificoperations could materially aff
deferred tax assets and liabilities on our conatdid statement of financial position and providimmincome taxes.

We are also subject to tax audits by governmentiiaaities in the U.S. and in nd#:S. jurisdictions. Negative unexpected resultsnflane o
more such tax audits could adversely affect ourlte®f operations.

Legal proceedings in which we are, or may be, a parmay adversely affect us.

We are currently and may in the future become stilbgelegal proceedings and commercial or conteldaisputes. These are typically cla
that arise in the normal course of business inolydivithout limitation, commercial or contractuasputes with our suppliers, intellect
property matters, third party liability, includipoduct liability claims and employment claims. Téexists the possibility that such claims |
have an adverse impact on our results of operati@tss greater than we anticipate.




An investigation by the European Commission (EQatesl to European lead recyclepsbcurement practices is currently underway, wli
Company one of several named companies subjeetview. The Company cannot predict the ultimaterfaial impact, as the investigatior
at a preliminary stage. We will continue to cooperaith the EC in their investigation and monita@lated commercial and financ
implications, if any. The Compars/policy is to comply with antitrust and competitiaws and, if a violation of any such laws is fduto taki
appropriate remedial action and to cooperate fulih any related governmental inquiry. Competitiand antitrust law investigations n
continue for several years and can result in sakiatdines depending on the gravity and duratibthe violations.

A downgrade in the ratings of our debt could restret our ability to access the debt capital marketsrad increase our interest costs.

Changes in the ratings that rating agencies assigar debt may ultimately impact our access todilet capital markets and the costs we i
to borrow funds. If ratings for our debt fall belamvestment grade, our access to the debt capadtets would become restricted. Tightel
in the credit markets and the reduced level ofiditqy in many financial markets due to turmoil inetfinancial and banking industries cc
affect our access to the debt capital markets emptite we pay to issue debt. Historically, we healeed on our ability to issue commert
paper rather than to draw on our credit facilitystqpport our daily operations, which means thabwrdyrade in our ratings or contint
volatility in the financial markets causing limitas to the debt capital markets could have anradveffect on our business or our abilit
meet our liquidity needs.

Additionally, several of our credit agreements galig include an increase in interest rates if thatngs for our debt are downgraded. Fur
an increase in the level of our indebtedness menease our vulnerability to adverse general ecoo@nd industry conditions and may af
our ability to obtain additional financing.

We are subject to potential insolvency or financiatistress of third parties.

We are exposed to the risk that third parties ttoua arrangements who owe us money or goods awiteg, or who purchase goods
services from us, will not be able to perform thaitigations or continue to place orders due tolwency or financial distress. If third part
fail to perform their obligations under arrangensenith us, we may be forced to replace the undeglgommitment at current or above ma
prices or on other terms that are less favorableston such events, we may incur losses, or osulte of operations, financial position
liquidity could otherwise be adversely affected.

We may be unable to complete or integrate acquisiéns effectively, which may adversely affect our gnseth, profitability and results of
operations.

We expect acquisitions of businesses and assaitayoa role in our future growth. We cannot be aerthat we will be able to ident
attractive acquisition targets, obtain financing dequisitions on satisfactory terms, successfadguire identified targets or manage timin
acquisitions with capital obligations across ousibasses. Additionally, we may not be successfuhtegrating acquired businesses into
existing operations and achieving projected symstgCompetition for acquisition opportunities ir tharious industries in which we ope!
may rise, thereby increasing our costs of makirguiitions or causing us to refrain from makingttier acquisitions. We are also subjec
applicable antitrust laws and must avoid anticoitigetbehavior. These and other acquisitietated factors may negatively and advel
impact our growth, profitability and results of oggons.

We are subject to business continuity risks assod¢ed with centralization of certain administrative functions.

We have been and are in the process of regionaiiyralizing certain administrative functions, prihain North America, Europe and Asia,
improve efficiency and reduce costs. To the extbat these central locations are disrupted or thsilkkey business processes, suc
invoicing, payments and general management opestamuld be interrupted.

A failure of our information technology (IT) infras tructure could adversely impact our business and agrations.

We rely upon the capacity, reliability and secudfyour information technology infrastructure andg ability to expand and continually upd
this infrastructure in response to the changingiaes our business. For example, we are implemgméw enterprise resource planning
other IT systems in certain of our businesses aveeriod of several years. As we implement the sgstems, they may not perform
expected. We also face the challenge of suppoadtimglder systems and implementing necessary upgrdfdwe experience a problem with
functioning of an important IT system or a secubtgach of our IT systems, the resulting disrumioould have an adverse effect on
business.

We and certain of our thirgarty vendors receive and store personal informatiaconnection with our human resources operat#n othe
aspects of our business. Despite our implementafigecurity measures, our IT systems are vulnerabtiamages
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from computer viruses, natural disasters, unautbdraccess, cyber attack and other similar digragtiAny system failure, accident or sect
breach could result in disruptions to our operatioh material network breach in the security of busystems could include the theft of
intellectual property, trade secrets or custom@arimation. To the extent that any disruptions arusity breach results in a loss or damac
our data, or an inappropriate disclosure of comiidd or customer information, it could cause sigaint damage to our reputation, affect
relationships with our customers, lead to claimairagt the Company and ultimately harm our businesaddition, we may be required to in
significant costs to protect against damage cabgetese disruptions or security breaches in thaéu

Our business success depends on attracting and retang qualified personnel.

Our ability to sustain and grow our business reggiirs to hire, retain and develop a highly skiled diverse management team and workf
Failure to ensure that we have the leadership dgpaith the necessary skill set and experiencddoupede our ability to deliver our grov
objectives and execute our strategic plan. Orgéinizal and reporting changes as a result of owtdeship transition could result in increa
turnover. Additionally, any unplanned turnover palility to attract and retain key employees cdudde a negative effect on our result
operations.

Building Efficiency Risks

Failure to comply with regulations due to our contiacts with U.S. government entities could adversebffect our business and results
operations.

Our Building Efficiency business contracts with gavment entities and is subject to specific rutegulations and approvals applicabl
government contractors. We are subject to routindite. by the Defense Contract Audit Agency to assour compliance with the
requirements. Our failure to comply with these threo laws and regulations could result in conttaghinations, suspension or debarment -
contracting with the U.S. federal government, cfies and damages and criminal prosecution. Irtiadd changes in procurement polic
budget considerations, unexpected U.S. developmseuath as terrorist attacks, or similar politicalvedlopments or events abroad that
change the U.S. federal government’s national #yalefense posture may affect sales to governmetities.

Volatility in commodity prices may adversely affectour results of operations.

Increases in commodity costs negatively impactptteditability of orders in backlog as prices on skrders are fixed; therefore, in the shor
term we cannot adjust for changes in commoditygsridf we are not able to recover commodity costeéases through price increases tc
customers on new orders, then such increasesavié n adverse effect on our results of operatibdditionally, unfavorability in our hedgit
programs during a period of declining commoditycps could result in lower margins as we reduceeprio match the market on a fi
commodity cost level.

Conditions in the residential and commercial new aostruction markets may adversely affect our resultof operations.

HVAC equipment sales in the residential and commenew construction markets correlate to the nunadb@mew homes and buildings that
built. The strength of the residential and commamiarkets depends in part on the availability @isumer and commercial financing for
customers, along with inventory and pricing of &rig homes and buildings. If economic and creditkeiconditions decline, it may result i
decline in the residential housing construction kaaiand construction of new commercial buildingscls conditions could have an adve
effect on our results of operations and resultdteptial liabilities or additional costs, includiigpairment charges.

A variety of other factors could adversely affecthe results of operations of our Building Efficiencybusiness.

Any of the following could materially and adversétypact the results of operations of our Buildinfidiency business: loss of, changes ir
failure to perform under facility management supgpiytracts or other guaranteed performance costweith our major customers; cancella
of, or significant delays in, projects in our bamkl delays or difficulties in new product developrhehe potential introduction of similar
superior technologies; financial instability or tetr declines of our major component suppliers;uhavailability of raw materials (primar
steel, copper and electronic components) necefsapyroduction of HYAC equipment; price increasédimited-source components, prodt
and services that we are unable to pass on to #inkety unseasonable weather conditions in varieuts f the world; changes in energy ¢
or governmental regulations that would decreasearbentive for customers to update or improve tleiilding control systems; revisions
energy efficiency legislation; a decline in thesmutrcing of facility management services; availgbibf labor to support growth of our serv
businesses; and natural or maade disasters or losses that impact our abiligetover facility management and other products senices t
our customers.
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Automotive Experience Risks

Conditions in the automotive industry may adverselaffect our results of operations.

Our financial performance depends, in part, on ¢@ws$ in the automotive industry. In fiscal 201@yr largestcustomers globally we
automobile manufacturers Ford Motor Company (Fde@&imler AG and General Motors Corporation (GM)alftomakers experience a dec
in the number of new vehicle sales, we may expeeerductions in orders from these customers, incite-offs of accounts receivable, in
impairment charges or require additional restructuiactions beyond our current restructuring plareticularly if any of the automak
cannot adequately fund their operations or expeedimancial distress.

Uncertainty related to the economic conditions in BErope may adversely affect our results of operation

Automakers across Europe are experiencing diffesilfrom a weakened economy and tightening creditkets. As a result, we he
experienced and may continue to experience redwctin orders from these OEM customers. A prolondgednturn in the Europe
automotive industry or a significant change in pridmix due to consumer demand could require whitt down additional plants or resul
additional impairment charges, restructuring actionchanges in our valuation allowances agairfefriehel tax assets, which could be mat
to our consolidated financial statements. Continueckrtainty relating to the economic condition€Eimrope may continue to have an adv
impact on our business.

We are subject to pricing pressure from our automate customers.

We face significant competitive pressures in alloof business segments. Because of their purchasieg our automotive customers
influence market participants to compete on prieens. If we are not able to offset pricing redutsicesulting from these pressures
improved operating efficiencies and reduced exganes, those pricing reductions may have an adversact on our business.

Financial distress of the automotive supply chainauld harm our results of operations.

Automotive industry conditions could adversely afféhe original equipment supplier base. Lower puatihn levels for key custome
increases in certain raw material, commodity aretgy costs and global credit market conditions @daabult in financial distress among m
companies within the automotive supply base. Fiigdmistress within the supplier base may leadammercial disputes and possible suj
chain interruptions, which in turn could disrupt guoduction. In addition, an adverse industry emwinent may require us to provide finan
support to distressed suppliers or take other mmeaga ensure uninterrupted production, which cawdlve additional costs or risks. If any
these risks materialize, we are likely to incurskess or our results of operations, financial positdr liquidity could otherwise be advers
affected.

Change in consumer demand may adversely affect ovesults of operations.

Increases in energy costs or other factors (dlijmate change concerns) may shift consumer demesay &om motor vehicles that typica
have higher interior content that we supply, suglight trucks, crossver vehicles, minivans and SUVs, to smaller velsi¢claving less interi
content. The loss of business with respect to, lack of commercial success of, one or more pddicuehicle models for which we ar
significant supplier could reduce our sales andnhaur profitability, thereby adversely affectingroasults of operations.

We may not be able to successfully negotiate priginterms with our customers in the Automotive Expemnce business, which ms
adversely affect our results of operations.

We negotiate sales prices annually with our autoraatustomers. Cogtutting initiatives that our customers have adomjederally result i
increased downward pressure on pricing. In somescaisr customer supply agreements require redsdtiocomponent pricing over the petr
of production. If we are unable to generate sudfitiproduction cost savings in the future to offséte reductions, our results of operati
may be adversely affected. In particular, large mamtial settlements with our customers may adve@s#ct our results of operations or ce
our financial results to vary on a quarterly basis.

Volatility in commodity prices may adversely affectour results of operations.

Commodity prices can be volatile from year to ydacommodity prices rise, and if we are not alderécover these cost increases from
customers, these increases will have an adversete&fifi our results of operations.
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The cyclicality of original equipment automobile production rates may adversely affect the results afperations in our Automotive
Experience business.

Our Automotive Experience business is directlyteelao automotive production by our customers. AMgtive production and sales are hic
cyclical and depend on general economic conditaords other factors, including consumer spendingmeéerences. An economic decline
results in a reduction in automotive productiondoy Automotive Experience customers could have terigh adverse impact on our result
operations.

A variety of other factors could adversely affecthe results of operations of our Automotive Experieoe business.

Any of the following could materially and adverseigpact the results of operations of our Automotissperience business: the loss of
changes in, automobile supply contracts, sourcingtegyies or customer claims with our major custema suppliers; stadp expense
associated with new vehicle programs or delaysaocellations of such programs; underutilizatioroaf manufacturing facilities, which ¢
generally located near, and devoted to, a partiaulatomers facility; inability to recover engineering andlimg costs; market and financ
consequences of any recalls that may be requiregradgucts that we have supplied; delays or diffiealin new product development i
integration; quantity and complexity of new progréamnches, which are subject to our customensing, performance, design and que
standards; interruption of supply of certain sirgh@irce components; the potential introduction ofilsir or superior technologies; chanc
nature of our joint ventures and relationships wotlr strategic business partners; global overcapaasid vehicle platform proliferatic
divestiture of the businesses held for sale coeflt in a gain or loss on sale to the extent ttimate selling price differs from the curr
carrying value of the net assets; and potentialptimations and complexities encountered duringititended divestiture of our Electron
business.

Power Solutions Risks

We face competition and pricing pressure from othecompanies in the Power Solutions business.

Our Power Solutions business competes with a nuib@iajor domestic and international manufactuesrd distributors of leadeid batterie:
as well as a large number of smaller, regional cgtitgys. The North American, European and Asiarddged battery markets are hig
competitive. The manufacturers in these marketspsdenon price, quality, technical innovation, seevand warranty. If we are unable
remain competitive and maintain market share inméiggons and markets we serve, our results of tipesamay be adversely affected.

Volatility in commodity prices may adversely affectour results of operations.

Lead is a major component of our leacld batteries, and the price of lead may be higblgtile. We attempt to manage the impact of clvag
lead prices through the recycling of used battergarned to us by our aftermarket customers, comiadeterms and commodity hedg
programs. Our ability to mitigate the impact ofdgarice changes can be impacted by many factorhidimg customer negotiations, invent
level fluctuations and sales volume/mix changeg,awhich could have an adverse effect on ourltesf operations.

Additionally, the prices of other commaodities, parity fuel, acid, resin and tin, may be volatileéother commaodity prices rise, and if we
not able to recover these cost increases throuigk prcreases to our customers, such increasehailt an adverse effect on our resul
operations. Moreover, the implementation of anggincreases to our customers could negatively éhghmand for our products.

Decreased demand from our customers in the automet industry may adversely affect our results of opations.

Our financial performance in the Power Solutionsibess depends, in part, on conditions in the aotiemindustry. Sales to OEMs accour
for approximately 25% of the total sales of the Eo®olutions business in fiscal 201Beclines in the North American, European and A
automotive production levels could reduce our satesadversely affect our results of operationaddition, if any OEMs reach a point wh
they cannot fund their operations, we may incutersifs of accounts receivable, incur impairment cleargr require additional restructur
actions beyond our current restructuring plans.

A variety of other factors could adversely affecthe results of operations of our Power Solutions birsess.
Any of the following could materially and adverseigpact the results of operations of our Power &mhg business: loss of, or change:
automobile battery supply contracts with our lagg@ginal equipment and aftermarket customers; tiweiasing quality and useful life

batteries or use of alternative battery technokdieth of which may adversely impact the lead-beitery
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market; delays or cancellations of new vehicle paots; market and financial consequences of anyise¢bat may be required on our produ
delays or difficulties in new product developmentluding lithium-ion technology; impact of poteaitincreases in lithiunien battery volume
on established lead-acid battery volumes as lithHinimbattery technology grows and costs become roonepetitive; financial instability «
market declines of our customers or suppliers; stavan projected market development in emergingkets; interruption of supply of cert:
singlesource components; changing nature of our jointwes and relationships with our strategic busirpa$ners; unseasonable wea
conditions in various parts of the world; increasglobal environmental and safety regulations eglab the manufacturing and recycling
leadacid batteries, and transportation of battery nmterour ability to secure sufficient tolling cajity to recycle batteries; price &
availability of battery cores used in recyclingdahe lack of the development of a market for hylamd electric vehicles.

ITEM 1B UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

The Company has no unresolved written commentgdeggits periodic or current reports from the stdfthe SEC.
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ITEM 2 PROPERTIES

At September 30, 2013the Company conducted its operations in 66 c@sthroughout the world, with its world headquestcated i
Milwaukee, Wisconsin. The Company’s wholly- and ardy-owned facilities, which are listed in the tabletbe following pages by busine
and location, totaled approximately 87 million saqufeet of floor space and are owned by the Compangpt as noted. The facilities prima
consisted of manufacturing, assembly and/or waredhspace. The Company considers its facilitieeteuitable and adequate for their cur
uses. The majority of the facilities are operatihgormal levels based on capacity.

Building Efficiency

Arizona Phoenix (1),(4) Austria Vienna (4)
California Fremont (1),(4) Belgium Diegem (1),(4)
Roseville (1),(4) Brazil Curitiba (4)
Simi Valley (1),(4) Canada Ajax (1),(3)
Delaware Newark (1),(4) Markham (2),(4)
Florida Largo (1),(3) Oakville (1),(4)
Medley (1),(4) China Guangzhou (1),(4)
Georgia Atlanta (1),(4) Qingyuan (2),(3)
lllinois Arlington Heights (4) Wuxi (2),(3)
Elmhurst (1),(4) Denmark Hojbjerg (3)
Wheeling (1),(4) Hornslet (1),(3)
Kansas Lenexa (1),(4) Viby (2),(3)
Wichita (2),(3) France Carquefou Cedex (2),(3)
Kentucky Louisville (1),(4) Colombes (1),(3)
Maryland Baltimore (1),(4) Germany Essen (1),(3)
Capitol Heights (1),(4) Flensburg (1)
Rossville (1) Hamburg (1),(3)
Sparks (1),(4) Kempen (1)
Massachusetts Lynnfield (4) Mannheim (1),(3)
Michigan Sterling Heights (1),(4) Hong Kong Hong Kong (1),(4)
Minnesota Plymouth (1),(4) India Pune (1)
Mississippi Hattiesburg (1) Italy Milan (1),(3)
Missouri Albany Japan Tokyo (1),(4)
St. Louis (1),(4) Mexico Apodaca (1)
New Jersey Hainesport (1),(4) Durango (1)
North Carolina Charlotte (1),(4) Juarez (3)
Oklahoma Norman (3) Reynosa (3)
Oregon Portland (1),(4) Netherlands Dordrecht (3)

Pennsylvania

Audubon (1),(4)

Gorinchem (1),(3)

Waynesboro (3) Russia Moscow (1),(3)

York (1) South Africa Isando (1),(4)
Texas Houston (1),(4) Spain Sabadell (1),(3)

Irving (4) Thailand Samutsakorn (1),(4)

San Antonio Turkey Manisa (1)
Washington Fife (1),(4) United Arab Emirates Dubai (1),(3)
Wisconsin Milwaukee (2),(4)

Waukesha (1),(4)
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Automotive Experience

Alabama

Georgia
lllinois
Indiana
Kentucky

Louisiana
Michigan

Missouri

Ohio

Tennessee

Texas

Bessemer (1)
Clanton
Cottondale
Eastaboga
McCalla (1)

West Point (1)
Sycamore

Kendallville
Cadiz
Georgetown (2)
Louisville (1)
Shelbyville (1)
Winchester (1)

Shreveport
Auburn Hills (1)
Battle Creek
Cascade (1)
Detroit
Highland Park (1)
Holland (2),(3)
Lansing (2)
Monroe (1)
Port Huron (1)
Plymouth (2),(3)
Romulus (1)
Taylor (1)
Warren (1)
Eldon (2)
Riverside (1)
Bryan
Greenfield
Northwood
Wauseon

Murfreesboro (2)

Pulaski (1)
El Paso (1)
San Antonio (1)

Argentina

Australia
Austria

Belgium
Brazil

Bulgaria

Canada

China

Czech Republic

France

Buenos Aires (1)
Cordoba (1)
Rosario

Adelaide (1)

Graz (1)
Mandling

Assenede (1)
Gravatai
Pouso Alegre
Quatro Barras (2)
Sao Bernardo do Campo
Santo Andre
Sao Jose dos Campos
Sao Jose dos Pinhais (1)
Sofia (1),(4)

Milton
Mississauga (1)
Tillsonburg
Whitby (2)

Beijing (3)
Changchun (1)
Shanghai (1),(3)
Wuhu (1)

Bezdecin (1)
Ceska Lipa (4)
Mlada Boleslav (1)
Roudnice
Rychnov (1)
Strakonice (4)
Straz pod Ralskem
Zatec

Cergy (1),(4)
Conflans-sur-Lanterne
Creutzwald
Fesches-le-Chatel (1)
La Ferte Bernard
Rosny
Strasbourg
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Automotive Experience (continued)

Germany

India
Italy

Japan

Korea

Macedonia
Malaysia

Mexico

Boblingen (1)
Bochum (2)
Burscheid (2),(4)
Dautphe (2)
Espelkamp
Grefrath
Hannover (1)
Hilchenbach (2)
Holzgerlingen (1)
Karlsruhe (1),(4)
Luneburg
Markgroningen (1)
Neustadt
Rastatt (1)
Remchingen
Rockenhausen
Saarlouis (1)
Solingen
Uberherrn
Waghausel (3)
Zwickau
Pune (1),(3)
Grugliasco (1)
Melfi
Ogliastro Cilento
Rocca D'Evandro

Hamamatsu
Higashiomi
Yokohama (1),(4)
Yokosuka (2)
Ansan (1),(4)
Asan

Skopje

Melaka (1)
Pekan (1)

Poland

Portugal
Romania

Russia

Slovak Republic

Slovenia

South Africa

Spain

Selangor Darul Ehsan

Coahuila (1)
Juarez (2)
Lerma (1)
Matamaros (1)
Monclova
Puebla (2)
Ramos Arizpe
Reynosa (1)
Saltillo (2)
Tlaxcala
Toluca (1)

Sweden
Thailand

Tunesia
Turkey

United Kingdom

Bierun
Siemianowice
Skarbimierz (1)
Swiebodzin
Zory

Palmela

Bradu
Craiova (1)
Jimbolia (1)
Mioveni (1)
Pitesti (1)
Ploesti
Timisoara (1)

St. Petersburg (1)
Togliatti (1)

Kostany nad Turcom (2)

Lozorno (1)
Lucenec (2)
Namestovo (1)
Trencin (1)
Zilina (2)
Novo Mesto (1)
Slovenj Gradec (3)
Chloorkop (1)
East London (1)
Korsten
Pretoria
Swartkops (1)
Uitenhage (1)
Abrera
Alagon
Almussafes (2)
Calatorao (1)
Pedrola
Redondela (1)
Valladolid
Goteburg (1)
Rayong
Chonburi (1)
Bi'r al Bay (1)
Bursa (2)
Kocaeli
Birmingham
Burton-Upon-Trent
Ellesmere (1)
Garston (1)
Liverpool (1)
Sunderland
Telford (1)
Wednesbury
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Power Solutions

Arizona Yuma (3) Austria Graz (1),(3)
Delaware Middletown (3) Vienna (1),(3)
Florida Tampa (3) Brazil Sorocaba (3)
lllinois Geneva (3) China Changxing (3)
Indiana Ft. Wayne (3) Chonggqing (3)
lowa Red Oak (3) Shanghai (2)
Kentucky Florence (1),(3) Czech Republic Ceska Lipa (2),(3)
Michigan Holland (3) France Rouen
Missouri St. Joseph (2),(3) Sarreguemines (3)
North Carolina Kernersville (3) Germany Hannover (3)
Ohio Toledo (3) Krautscheid (3)
Oregon Canby (2),(3) Zwickau (2),(3)
Portland (2),(3) Korea Gumi (2),(3)
South Carolina Florence (3) Mexico Celaya
Oconee (3) Cienega de Flores (1)
Texas San Antonio (3) Escobedo
Wisconsin Milwaukee (4) Flores
Garcia
San Pedro (1),(4)
Tlalnepantla (1),(4)
Torreon
Spain Burgos
Guadamar del Segura
Guadalajara (1)
Ibi (3)
Sweden Hultsfred
Corporate
Wisconsin Milwaukee (4) China Dalian (1),(4)
Mexico Monterrey (1),(4)
Singapore Singapore (1),(4)
Slovak Republic Bratislava (1),(4)
(1) Leased facility
(2 Includes both leased and owned facilities
3) Includes both administrative and manufactufanglities
4 Administrative facility only

In addition to the above listing, which identifiesge properties (greater than 25,000 square finetle are approximately 560 Building
Efficiency branch offices and other administratbféices located in major cities throughout the wloiThese offices are primarily leased
facilities and vary in size in proportion to thelwme of business in the particular locality.

ITEM 3 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As noted in Item 1, liabilities potentially ariséobally under various environmental laws and worgafety laws for activities that are no
compliance with such laws and for the cleanup telssivhere Company-related substances have beasedlanto the environment.

Currently, the Company is responding to allegatithve it is responsible for performing environmémtamediation, or for the repayment
costs spent by governmental entities or othersopmifig remediation, at approxim ately 35es in the United States. Many of these site
landfills used by the Company in the past for tigpasal of waste materials; others are secondan denelters and lead recycling sites w
the Company returned leatntaining materials for recycling; a few involvieet cleanup of Company manufacturing facilities; dhe
remaining fall into miscellaneous categories. Tlenpany may face similar claims
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of liability at additional sites in the future. Wieepotential liabilities are alleged, the Companyspies a course of action intended to miti
them.

The Company accrues for potential environmentdilliées in a manner consistent with accountingnpiples generally accepted in the Un
States; that is, when it is probable a liabilityshiaeen incurred and the amount of the liabilityréssonably estimable. Reserves
environmental liabilities totaled $25 million atf@ember 30, 2013 and 201Zhe Company reviews the status of its environalesites on
quarterly basis and adjusts its reserves accordiBlich potential liabilities accrued by the Compdo not take into consideration poss
recoveries of future insurance proceeds. They dweler, take into account the likely share othetiga will bear at remediation sites. |
difficult to estimate the Comparg/'ultimate level of liability at many remediatioites due to the large number of other parties thay be
involved, the complexity of determining the relatiNability among those parties, the uncertaintycathe nature and scope of the investiga
and remediation to be conducted, the uncertaintyheénapplication of law and risk assessment, th®wa choices and costs associated
diverse technologies that may be used in correeti¥i®ns at the sites, and the often quite leng#njods over which eventual remediation |
occur. Nevertheless, the Company does not curreetlgve that any claims, penalties or costs imegtion with known environmental matt
will have a material adverse effect on the Compariiancial position, results of operations or cflsiws. In addition, the Company
identified asset retirement obligations for enviremtal matters that are expected to be address#ik aktirement, disposal, removal
abandonment of existing owned facilities, primaiilythe Power Solutions business. At SeptembefB03 and 2012 the Company record
conditional asset retirement obligations of $58iomland $76 million , respectively.

The Company is involved in a number of productiligband various other casualty lawsuits incidémtthe operation of its businesses.
Company maintains insurance coverages and recefitisa¢ed costs for claims and suits of this natlirs. managemerg’ opinion that none
these will have a material adverse effect on then@my’s financial position, results of operations or cfistvs. Costs related to such mat
were not material to the periods presented.

ITEM 4 MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of FormK],ahe following list of executive officers of tteompany as of November 20, 2013 is inclt
as an unnumbered Item in Part | of this reporien bf being included in the CompasyProxy Statement relating to the Annual Meetin
Shareholders to be held on January 29, 2014.

Beda Bolzenius, 57, was elected a Corporate Vice President ineNther 2005 and has served as Presidéatemotive Seating sins
October 2012. He previously served as PresidetihefAutomotive Experience business from Novembd62® October 2012 and
Executive Vice President and General Manager Eyrafreca and South America for Automotive Experienitom November 2004
November 2006. Dr. Bolzenius joined the Companidavember 2004 from Robert Bosch GmbH, a global rfeasturer of automotive ai
industrial technology, consumer goods and build@aynology, where he most recently served as tbsigent of Boscls' Body Electronic
division.

Colin Boyd , 54, was elected Vice President, Information Tetbgy and Chief Information Officer in October 200€r. Boyc
previously served as Chief Information Officer aarporate Vice President of Sony Ericsson from 21002008.

Susan F. Davis, 60, was elected Executive Vice President of HuiRasources in September 2006. She previously sesedce
President of Human Resources from May 1994 to Sdpde 2006 and as Vice President of Organizationavelbpment for tr
Automotive Experience business from August 1993\poil 1994. Ms. Davis joined the Company in 1983s.MDavis is a Director
Quanex Building Products Corporation, where shbésChairwoman of the Compensation and Managemewn¢lBDpment Committee a
serves on the Nominating and Corporate Governaoncendttee.

Charles A. Harvey , 61, was elected Corporate Vice President of Bitoeand Public Affairs in November 2005. He praasly serve
as Vice President of Human Resources for the AutwedExperience business and in other human reseueadership positions. |
Harvey joined the Company in 1991.

William C. Jackson , 53, was named Executive Vice President, Corpdatelopment, in September 2013 and has serverka&lent -
Automotive Electronics & Interiors since March 20Mr. Jackson also served as Executive Vice Prasid®perations and Innovatic
from May 2011 to September 2013. Prior to joinimdydson Controls, Mr. Jackson was Vice PresidentRnedident of Automotive
Sears Holdings Corporation from 2009 to 2010. Rodhat, he served as Senior
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Vice President and board member of Booz, Allen &riteon and Booz & Company, a strategy and consgiffirm, where he led the firra’
Global Automotive, Transportation and Industriatad®ice.

Brian Kesseler , 47, was elected a Corporate Vice President aedid&nt of the Power Solutions business in Jan@af®s. Ht
previously served as the Chief Operating Officettted Power Solutions business from May 2012 to dan@2013. He served as V
President and General Manager, Europe Systems Wc8eiNorth America Service & Unitary Products Godor the Building Efficienc
business from 2009 to April 2012, as Vice Presiderdt General Manager, Americas for the Power Swoigtbusiness from 2006 to 2(
and as Vice President and General Manager, Nortlerisa for the Automotive business from 2003 to 200B. Kesseler joined tt
Company in 1994.

R. Bruce McDonald , 53, was elected Executive Vice President in Sep&r 2006 and Chief Financial Officer in May 206%
previously served as Corporate Vice President flamuary 2002 to September 2006, Assistant Chiefrgial Officer from October 20!
to May 2005 and Corporate Controller from Novem2@0d1 to October 2004. Mr. McDonald joined the Comypim 2001.

Kim Metcalf-Kupres , 52, was elected a Corporate Vice President aridf Gharketing Officer in May 2013. She served axé
President, Strategy, Marketing and Sales in thedP@elutions business from 2007 to May 2013. Preslig she served as Vice Presid
Sales and Marketing for Building Efficiency Systemd$\North America and has held positions of inciegsesponsibility since joining tl
Company in 1994.

Alex A. Molinaroli , 54, was elected Chief Executive Officer and Riessi effective October 2013. He was also electatiedBoard ¢
Directors in October 2013. He previously serve¥ige Chairman from January 2013 to October 2013% @srporate Vice President fr
May 2004 to January 2013 and as President of timep@aoys Power Solutions business from January 2007 tealgr?2013. Mr. Molinaro
served as Vice President and General Manager fothNamerica Systems & the Middle East for the Compa Building Efficienc
business and has held increasing levels of redpititysfor controls systems and services sales @perations. Mr. Molinaroli joined tl
Company in 1983.

John Murphy , 50, was elected a Corporate Vice President aasid@nt of the Global Workplace Solutions busiriesiuly 2013. H
previously served as the Vice President and Gehaabhger of North Americ&ystems, Latin America, Middle East and Global Sigg
for the Building Efficiency business from Octob&d0B to July 2013. He has held several global manage roles within the Buildir
Efficiency business since joining the Company i89.9

C. David Myers, 50, was elected a Corporate Vice President aesid@nt of the Building Efficiency business in Dmter 2005, whe
he joined the Company in connection with the adtjais of York International Corporation (York). Atork, Mr. Myers served as Ch
Executive Officer from February 2004 to Decembed®President from June 2003 to December 2005, UEixecVice President and Ch
Financial Officer from January 2003 to June 2008 ¥ite President and Chief Financial Officer froebFuary 2000 to January 2003.

Jerome D. Okarma, 61, was elected Vice President, Secretary ané@egounsel in November 2004 and was named a GepWice
President in September 2003. He previously sergedsaistant Secretary from 1990 to November 20@# anDeputy General Coun
from June 2000 to November 2004. Mr. Okarma joitedCompany in 1989.

Stephen A. Roell , 63, was elected Chairman effective in Januan820&d was first elected to the Board of Directar©rtober 200
He served as Chief Executive Officer from Octob@02 through September 2013 and as President frogn 2089 through Septemt
2013. Mr. Roell previously served as Executive VReesident from October 2004 through September 2@bilef Financial Office
between 1991 and May 2005, Senior Vice Presideoi fr'September 1998 to October 2004 and Vice Presiffem 1991 t
September 1998. Mr. Roell joined the Company in2198r. Roell has announced his intention to refleember 31, 2013.

Brian J. Stief , 57, was elected Vice President and CorporaterGidentin July 2010 and serves as the CompsuRrincipal Accountin
Officer. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Stief sa partner with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, wh&lpined in 1979 and in which
became partner in 1989. He served several of tivesfiargest clients and also held various officenaiging partner roles.

Frank A. Voltolina , 53, was elected a Corporate Vice President arrgdCate Treasurer in July 2003 when he joined tbenany
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Voltolina was ¥i®resident and Treasurer at ArvinMeritor, Inc.

There are no family relationships, as defined leyitistructions to this item, among the Companykscexive officers.
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All officers are elected for terms that expire be tfate of the meeting of the Board of Directotkwing the Annual Meeting of Sharehold
or until their successors are duly-elected andifigehl

PART Il

ITEMS MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The shares of the Company’s common stock are tradédde New York Stock Exchange under the symb@l.”J

Number of Record Holders

Title of Class as of September 30, 2013
Common Stock, $1.00 par value 38,067

Common Stock Price Range Dividends

2013 2012 2013 2012
First Quarter $24.75 -30.74 $24.29-33.9C $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1¢
Second Quarter 30.3@5.17 30.81 -35.95 0.1¢ 0.1¢
Third Quarter 31.95 -38.33 26.15 -33.2€ 0.1¢ 0.1¢
Fourth Quarter 35.43 -43.49 23.37 -29.5¢ 0.1¢ 0.1¢
Year $ 24.75 43.49 $23.37-35.95 $ 0.7¢ $ 0.7z

In November 2012, the Company’s Board of Direcuthorized a stock repurchase program to acquir® $%00 million of the Company’
outstanding common stock, which supersedes any pragrams. In September 2013, the Compamoard of Directors authorized up to
additional $500 million in stock repurchases of @empanys outstanding common stock, and in November 2018 Gompany's Board
Directors authorized an additional $3.0 billion enthe stock repurchase program, both incremeatatior authorizations. Stock repurche
under the stock repurchase program may be madeghrmapen market, privately negotiated, or structdransactions or otherwise at times
in such amounts as Company management deems appeodthe stock repurchase program does not hawexpination date and may
amended or terminated by the Board of Directorarat time without prior notice. As of November 21013, the Company has sp
approximately $400 million on repurchases underdtoek repurchase program in fiscal 2014. In addjtin November 2013 the Compi
announced an $800 million accelerated stock remselgreement with Goldman Sachs that will be fdimiélovember 2013.

The Company entered into an Equity Swap Agreendated March 13, 2009, with Citibank, N.A. (Citibankhe Company selectively u:
equity swaps to reduce market risk associated igtetockbased compensation plans, such as its deferredeswapon plans. These eqt
compensation liabilities increase as the Compasigsk price increases and decrease as the Conspstogk price decreases. In contrast
value of the Equity Swap Agreement moves in theosjip direction of these liabilities, allowing t@®mpany to fix a portion of the liabiliti
at a stated amount.

In connection with the Equity Swap Agreement, Gitik may purchase unlimited shares of the Compasigck in the market or in privat
negotiated transactions. The Company disclaimsGitétank is an “affiliated purchaser” of the Comgaas such term is defined in Rule 10b
18(a)(3) under the Securities Exchange Act or @itibank is purchasing any shares for the Compdime Equity Swap Agreement has
stated expiration date. The net effect of the chandair value of the Equity Swap Agreement arel¢hange in equity compensation liabili
was not material to the Company’s earnings fortlinee months ended September 30, 2013 .
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The following table presents information regardthg repurchase of the Compasyommon stock by the Company as part of the py
announced program and purchases of the Compamyhmon stock by Citibank in connection with tlggiey Swap Agreement during the th
months ended September 30, 2013 .

Total Number of Shares  Approximate Dollar
Purchased as Part of the Value of Shares that
Total Number of Shares Average Price Paid per Publicly Announced May Yet be Purchased

Period Purchased Share Program under the Programs
7/1/13 - 7/31/13

Purchases by Company (1) 1,827,04! $41.0% 1,827,04! $200,006,02
8/1/13 - 8/31/13

Purchases by Company (1) 1,216,971 $41.0¢ 1,216,971 $150,006,53
9/1/13 - 9/30/13

Purchases by Company (1) — — — $650,006,53!
7/1/13 - 7/31/13

Purchases by Citibank — — — NA
8/1/13 - 8/31/13

Purchases by Citibank — — — NA
9/1/13 - 9/30/13

Purchases by Citibank — — — NA

(1) Repurchases of the Compasigommon stock by the Company pursuant to its plybdinnounced program may be intended to par
offset dilution related to the Company'’s stock optand restricted stock equity compensation plans.
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The following information in Item 5 is not deemexite “soliciting material” or to be “filedivith the SEC or subject to Regulation 14A or
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Exchawggkor to the liabilities of Section 18 of the éhange Act, and will not be deemed tc
incorporated by reference into any filing under Sexurities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act, exdepghe extent the Company specific
incorporates it by reference into such a filing.

The line graph below compares the cumulative thakeholder return on our Common Stock with thewdative total return of companies
the Standard & Poor’s (S&B)J 500 Stock Index and companies in our Diversifigtlstrials Peer Group.* This graph assumes thestmer
of $100 on September 30, 2008 and the reinvestofait dividends since that date.

COMPANY/INDEX Sepls Sepl® Sepld Sepll Sepl2 Sepl3
Johnson Controls, Inc. 100 87.03 10581 03.11 89.10 13351
Diversified Industrials Peer Group 100 102.06 123.17 116.66 133.08 21032
S&P 500 Comp-Ltd. 100 93.09 10253 103.73 135.06 161.17

Total Return to Shareholders
Dollars

250

— -
=11]

0 T T T T

Sep08 Sepl? Sepl0 Sepll Sepl2 Sepl3

—+— Johnson Controls, Inc. —8— Diversified Industrials Peer Group —&— 3&P 300 Comp-Ltd.

* The JCI Diversified Industrials Peer Group includes: Danaher Corporation, Dover Corporation, Eaton Corporation. Emerson Electric
Corporation, Honeywell International Inc . Ingersol Rand Plc_, Iinois Tool Works Inc_, 3M Company, Textron Inc., and United
Technologies Corporation.

The Company’s transfer agent’s contact informatsoas follows:

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
Shareowner Services Department
P.O. Box 64874

St. Paul, MN 55164-0874

(877) 602-7397
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ITEM 6 SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data reflects thsults of operations, financial position data anchmon share information for the fiscal ye
ended September 30, 2009 through September 30, @A1Rillions, except per share data, percentages, number of employees ¢
shareholders). Certain amounts have been revisezflézt the retrospective application of the Compa change in inventory costing metl
for certain inventory in its Power Solutions busisi@o the first-in first-out (FIFO) method from theest-in firstout (LIFO). Refer to Note

“Summary of Significant Accounting Policiesyf the notes to consolidated financial statememitdifrther details surrounding this accoun

policy change.

Year ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
OPERATING RESULTS
Net sales $ 42,73( 41,95t 40,83 % 34,30: 28,49°
Segment income (1) 3,29: 2,49 2,34¢ 2,02t 277
Net income (loss) attributable to Johnson Conttals,
(6) 1,17¢ 1,18¢ 1,41¢ 1,35¢ (667)
Earnings (loss) per share (6)
Basic $ 1.72 1.74 20¢ % 2.01 (1.1
Diluted 1.71 1.7z 2.0¢ 1.9¢ (1.1
Return on average shareholders’ equity attributable
Johnson Controls, Inc. (2) (6) 1% 10% 13% 14% (7%
Capital expenditures $ 1,371 1,831 1,328 $ 777 647
Depreciation and amortization 952 824 731 691 74E
Number of employees 170,00( 170,00( 162,00( 137,00( 130,00(
FINANCIAL POSITION
Working capital (3) $ 1,06 2,37( 1,701 % 1,031 1,212
Total assets 31,51¢ 30,95¢ 29,78¢ 25,85¢ 24,15
Long-term debt 4,56( 5,321 4,53: 2,652 3,16¢
Total debt 5,49¢ 6,06¢ 5,14¢ 3,38¢ 3,96¢
Shareholders' equity attributable to Johnson Cémthoc. 12,31« 11,62t 11,15 10,18: 9,16¢
Total debt to capitalization (4) 31% 34% 32% 25% 30%
Net book value per share (5) $ 17.9¢ 17.0¢ 16.4C % 15.11 13.6¢
COMMON SHARE INFORMATION
Dividends per share $ 0.7¢€ 0.72 064 % 0.52 0.52
Market prices
High $ 43.4¢ 35.9¢ 429z % 35.71 30.01
Low 24.7¢ 23.3i 25.91 23.6- 8.3t
Weighted average shares (in millions)
Basic 683.7 681.t 677.% 672.( 595.%
Diluted 689.2 688.€ 689.¢ 682. 595.%
Number of shareholders 38,06" 40,01¢ 43,34( 44,62" 46,46(

(1) Segment income is calculated as income from coiminoperations before income taxes and noncommplinterests excluding r
financing charges, debt conversion costs, sigmificastructuring and impairment costs, and net riarkarket adjustments on pens

and postretirement plans.

(2) Return on average shareholdezguity attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. (ROE)resents net income attributable to Joh
Controls, Inc. divided by average shareholdersitgaitributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.
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3 Working capital is defined as current asses$s lcurrent liabilities, excluding cash, short-tetabt, the current portion of lorigrm debt
and assets and liabilities held for sale.

4 Total debt to total capitalization represeotsl debt divided by the sum of total debt andrshalders’equity attributable to Johns
Controls, Inc.

(5) Net book value per share represents shareh’ equity attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. ddddy the number of common shz
outstanding at the end of the period.

(6) Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Includes $985 million, $297 million and $230 milliof significant restructuring a
impairment costs in fiscal year 2013, 2012, and9206spectively. It also includes $(405) milliom4F million, $384 million, $26
million and $532 million of net mark-toyarket charges (gains) on pension and postretireplans in fiscal year 2013, 2012, 2C
2010 and 2009, respectively. The preceding amaretstated on a pre-tax basis.

ITEM 7 MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

General

The Company operates in three primary businesseidiiy Efficiency, Automotive Experience and Powgolutions. Building Efficienc
provides facility systems, services and workplagiitions including comfort, energy and security mgement for the residential and non
residential buildings markets. Automotive Experieraesigns and manufactures interior systems andupt® for passenger cars and |
trucks, including vans, picldp trucks and sport/crossover utility vehicles. Bowolutions designs and manufactures automotittertes fo
the replacement and original equipment markets.

This discussion summarizes the significant factdfscting the consolidated operating results, foiaincondition and liquidity of the Compa
for the three-year period ended September 30, 20l3s discussion should be read in conjunctiorhwiem 8, the consolidated financ
statements and the notes to consolidated finastzEgments.

Certain amounts have been revised to reflect thresmgective application of the Compasythange in inventory costing method for ce
inventory in its Power Solutions business to thstdin first-out (FIFO) method from the last-indirout (LIFO). Refer to Note 1 Summary ¢
Significant Accounting Policies,” of the notes tnsolidated financial statements for further detailrrounding this accounting policy change.

Effective October 1, 2012, the Company reorganibedreportable segments within its Automotive Eigregze business to align with its n
management reporting structure and business aesiviPrior to this reorganization, Automotive Expace was comprised of three report.
segments for financial reporting purposes: Northefioa, Europe and Asia. As a result of this chamgg&omotive Experience is nc
comprised of three new reportable segments fonéizé reporting purposes: Seating, Interiors anectbnics. Historical information has b
revised to reflect the new Automotive Experiengeoréable segment structure.

Outlook

On October 29, 2013, the Company gave a prelimimatjook of its market and financial expectations fiscal 2014, saying it believ
improving end markets will enable the Company tadestly grow revenues in the upcoming year. Addéllyn the Company said it expe
first quarter fiscal 2014 earnings per diluted shiarincrease by approximately 30% (35% adjustorgtie impact of the HomeLink®roduc
line divestiture). The Company will provide furthéetailed guidance at an analyst meeting on Decet)e2013, which will be accessible
the public in a manner that the Company will diselin advance.

An announcement regarding the potential sale oféh@aining Automotive Experience Electronics busiis expected to be made by the
of the calendar year. Additionally, on October 2913, the Company announced its intention to egpkirategic options to enhance
position and financial capacity of its Automotivederience Interiors business as a part of the Cagipgreviously stated intention to build
multi-industry business portfolio.
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FISCAL YEAR 2013 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR 2012

Net Sales
Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Net sales $ 42,730 $ 41,95¢ 2%

The increase in consolidated net sales was duegt®hsales in the Automotive Experience busingé&9€ million) and Power Solutio
business ($459 million), partially offset by thefanvorable impact of foreign currency translatio24% million) and lower sales in the Build
Efficiency business ($35 million). Excluding thefaworable impact of foreign currency translatioonsolidated net sales increased 2¢
compared to the prior year. The favorable impaéthigher Automotive Experience volumes in North Ama and Europe, higher glol
battery shipments and improved pricing in the Po@elutions business, and improved market conditionthe North America resident
market were partially offset by softness in globallding demand. Refer to the segment analysisvbelihin Item 7 for a discussion of 1
sales by segment.

Cost of Sales / Gross Profit

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Cost of sales $ 3595 $ 35,80" 0%
Gross profit 6,77¢ 6,14¢ 10%
% of sales 15.% 14.7%

The increase in total cost of sales year over yearesponds to the sales growth noted above, withsgprofit as a percentage of s
increasing by 120 basis points. Gross profit in fhg#omotive Experience business was favorably ingghdy higher volumes and lov
purchasing costs, partially offset by higher oparatcosts, and net unfavorable commercial settlésnand pricing. The Power Solutic
business experienced favorable pricing and prohirct higher volumes and increased benefits of galtintegration including the incremer
contribution of the Company's battery recyclingilfac Gross profit in the Building Efficiency buséss experienced favorable margin rates
benefited year over year from improved labor wifian and pricing initiatives. Foreign currencynsiation had a favorable impact on cos
sales of approximately $212 million. Net marka@rket adjustments on pension and postretiremamispghad a net favorable year over
impact on cost of sales of $217 million ($184 mifligain in fiscal 2013 compared to a $33 milliomrge in fiscal 2012) primarily due to
increase in year over year discount rates and &lemsset return experience, partially offsetdsumption changes for certain norss. plans
Refer to the segment analysis below within Itenor7af discussion of segment income by segment.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 3,968 % 4,47¢ -11%
% of sales 9.2% 10.7%

Selling, general and administrative expenses (SG&&greased by $513 million year over year, and S@&AMA percentage of sales decre
by 140 basis points. The favorable impact of netkate-market adjustments on pension and postretiremansph SG&A increased year o
year by $635 million ($221 million gain in fiscaD23 compared to a $414 million charge in fiscal20drimarily due to an increase in y
over year discount rates and favorable asset retxparience, partially offset by assumption charfgegertain norld.S. plans. In addition,
pension settlement gain recorded in the fourth teuanf fiscal 2013 related to a lungoim buyout of deferred vested participants in the.
pension plan had a favorable impact on SG&A of $tiflion. Power Solutions business SG&A decreasathgnily due to favorable leg
settlements and a prior year impairment of an ggoitestment, partially offset by higher employetated expenses. Automotive Experie
business SG&A increased primarily due to higheriregring and employee related expenses. Buildifigi&ficy business SG&A increas
primarily due to higher employee related expengesjally offset by cost reduction programs andiaent year pension curtailment gain
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resulting from a lost Global Workplace Solutionsitact. Foreign currency translation had a favaratvipact on SG&A of $17 million. Rel
to the segment analysis below within Iltem 7 foisccdssion of segment income by segment.

Gain on Business Divestitures - Net

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Gain on business divestitures - net $ 48: % 40 *

* Measure not meaningful

The increase in the gains on business divestitne¢sof transaction costs was due to a current gaar on divestiture of the HomeLi@k
product line in the Automotive Experience Electmanisegment ($476 million) and a current year gaindivestiture in the Automoti
Experience Seating segment ($29 million), partiaffiset by prior year gains on business divestfiunrethe Building Efficiency business (4
million) and a current year loss on divestitureha Building Efficiency Other segment ($22 million)

Refer to Note 2, “Acquisitions and Divestituresf'tibe notes to consolidated financial statement$uidher disclosure related to the Company’
business divestitures.

Restructuring and Impairment Costs

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Restructuring and impairment costs $ 98t % 297 *

* Measure not meaningful

To better align its resources with its growth stgi¢s and reduce the cost structure of its glopatations to address the softness in ce
underlying markets, the Company committed to a i@t restructuring plan in fiscal 2012 and reded $297 million of significa
restructuring and impairment costs, of which $5Riom was recorded in the third quarter and $248ioni in the fourth quarter of fiscal 20!
As a continuation of its restructuring plan annadhén fiscal 2012, the Company recorded $985 mnillad significant restructuring a
impairment costs in fiscal 2013, of which $84 roifliwas recorded in the second quarter, $143 miitiahe third quarter and $758 million
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013. The restructgriactions related to cost reduction initiativesttie Companys Automotive Experienc
Building Efficiency and Power Solutions businesand included workforce reductions, plant closusesl asset and goodwill impairments.
restructuring actions are expected to be substgnti@amplete by the end of fiscal 2014.

Refer to Note 16, “Significant Restructuring andplirment Costs,bf the notes to consolidated financial statemeatsfdrther disclosui
related to the Company’s restructuring plans.

Net Financing Charges

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Net financing charges $ 24t $ 238 6%

The increase in net financing charges was primatig to higher interest expense as a result ofehiglebt levels during fiscal 2013
compared to the prior year.
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Equity Income

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Equity income $ 40z $ 34C 18%

The increase in equity income was primarily duga&ins on acquisitions of partialywned affiliates in the Automotive Experience bes
($106 million), partially offset by a prior yeardemption of a warrant for an existing partiatiwned affiliate in the Power Solutions busir
($25 million), a prior year equity interest gaintime Automotive Experience business ($15 millionJl @ prior year equity interest gain
acquisition of a partiallpwned affiliate in the Power Solutions business rf$Bion). Refer to the segment analysis below witliem 7 for
discussion of segment income by segment.

Provision for Income Taxes

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Provision for income taxes $ 1,16¢ $ 20¢ *

* Measure not meaningful

The effective rate is above the U.S. statutory fatdiscal 2013 primarily due to the tax consequesof the sale of the HomeLink®oduc
line, significant restructuring and impairment gpghe change in our assertion over reinvestmefibrefgn undistributed earnings prima
related to the Electronics business, and valuagidlmwance and uncertain tax position adjustmengstiglly offset by favorable tax au
resolutions, the benefits of continuing global panning initiatives and income in certain nOrS. jurisdictions with a tax rate lower than
U.S. statutory tax rate. The effective rate is betbe U.S. statutory rate for fiscal 20p2imarily due to continuing global tax plann
initiatives and income in certain non-U.S. jurigiios with a rate of tax lower than the U.S. statyttax rate. Refer to Note 18Intome
Taxes,” of the notes to consolidated financialestants for further details.

Valuation Allowances

The Company reviews the realizability of its dedertax asset valuation allowances on a quartedyspar whenever events or change
circumstances indicate that a review is requiradidtermining the requirement for a valuation aloee, the historical and projected finar
results of the legal entity or consolidated groapording the net deferred tax asset are considatedg with any other positive or nega
evidence. Since future financial results may diffem previous estimates, periodic adjustmentfitoGompanys valuation allowances may
necessary.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013he Company performed an analysis related tadhBzability of its worldwide deferred tax asseAs
result, and after considering tax planning initia§ and other positive and negative evidence, tragany determined that it was more lik
than not that deferred tax assets within GermarmlyRwiand would not be realized. The Company al¢erdéned that it was more likely th
not that the deferred tax assets within two FrePatver Solutions entities would be realized. Thersfthe Company recorded $145 millior
net valuation allowances as income tax expendeeithree month period ended September 30, 2013 .

In the second quarter of fiscal 201&he Company determined that it was more likegntimot that a portion of the deferred tax assetisin
Brazil and Germany would not be realized. Thereftire Company recorded $94 million of valuatiomwances as income tax expense.

In fiscal 2012, the Company recorded an overall increase taaiisation allowances of $47 million primarily duedaliscrete period income -
adjustment in the fourth quarter. In the fourth eraof fiscal 2012, the Company performed an analysis related toréhézability of it
worldwide deferred tax assets. As a result, angl @finsidering tax planning initiatives and othesifive and negative evidence, the Comy
determined that it was more likely than not thateded tax assets within Power Solutions in Chirmuld not be realized. Therefore,
Company recorded a $35 million valuation allowaaseéncome tax expense in the three month periodce8éptember 30, 2012 .
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Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company is subject to income taxes in the @rf8l. numerous foreign jurisdictions. Judgment isuiregl in determining its worldwic
provision for income taxes and recording the relaiesets and liabilities. In the ordinary coursehaf Companys business, there are m
transactions and calculations where the ultimatelédermination is uncertain. The Company is regylander audit by tax authorities.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2013 , tax auditalesions resulted in a net $79 million benefit home tax expense.

As a result of foreign law changes during the sdaqurarter of fiscal 2013the Company increased its total reserve for datetax position:
resulting in income tax expense of $17 million.

As a result of certain events related to priorgkanning initiatives, during the third quarter &fdal 2012, the Company reduced the reserve
uncertain tax positions by $22 million, including3million of interest and penalties, resultingaibenefit to income tax expense.

The Company'’s federal income tax returns and certany.S. income tax returns for various fiscal yearsam under various stages of a
by the Internal Revenue Service and respectivelh@-tax authorities. Although the outcome of taxlis is always uncertain, managen
believes that it has appropriate support for th&itpms taken on its tax returns and that its ahtaxaprovisions included amounts sufficien
pay assessments, if any, which may be proposetiebtaking authorities. At September 30, 2013, tben@any had recorded a liability for
best estimate of the probable loss on certain ofték positions, the majority of which is includéd other noncurrent liabilities in t
consolidated statements of financial position. Nbekess, the amounts ultimately paid, if any, upesolution of the issues raised by the ta
authorities may differ materially from the amouatgrued for each year.

The Company expects that certain tax examinatamgellate proceedings and/or tax litigation wilhclude within the next twelve months,
net impact of which is not expected to be signiftd® the Company's consolidated financial stateémen

Other Tax Matters

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013 , the Compdisposed of the HomeLink@®roduct line and certain businesses, which resut&$9 millior
of incremental tax expense above the statutoryaatie net gain.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, the Compamyvirled income tax expense on the foreign undisteith earnings of the ndd-S. subsidiarie
primarily related to the Electronics business, whiesulted in $210 million of incremental tax exgen

During fiscal 2013 the Company incurred significant charges forrtestiring and impairment costs. A substantial portof these charg
cannot be benefited for tax purposes due to ouentitax position in these jurisdictions and thdentying tax basis in the impaired assets,
causing a $235 million incremental tax expense.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2013the Company resolved certain Mexican tax issuésch resulted in a $61 million benefit to incona
expense.

Impacts of Tax Legisation and Change in Statutory Tax Rates

As a result of foreign law changes during the sdaquarter of fiscal 2013the Company increased its total reserve for datetax position:
resulting in income tax expense of $17 million.

The "look-through rule," under subpart F of the Ui8ernal Revenue Code, expired for the Companyseptember 30, 2012 . The "look:
through rule" had provided an exception to the WeSation of certain income generated by foreighsaliaries. The rule was extendet
January 2013 retroactive to the beginning of them@any's 2013 fiscal year.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2042 legislation was adopted in Japan which reduisestatutory income tax rate by 5%. A

tax legislation was adopted in various jurisdictidn limit the annual utilization of tax lossesttlhae carried forward. None of these chal
had a material impact on the Company’s consolidfteahcial condition, results of operations or céekvs.
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Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Income attributable to noncontrolling interests $ 11¢ % 127 -6 %

The decrease in income attributable to noncontilinterests was primarily due to the effects ofirmesrease in the Company's owner:
percentage in an Automotive Experience partiallyrew affiliate.

Net Income Attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.  $ 1,17¢ $ 1,18¢ 1%

The decrease in net income attributable to Johi@&mmtrols, Inc. was primarily due to higher restuiictg and impairment costs, higher
financing charges, an increase in the provisionfoome taxes and the unfavorable impact of fore@igmency translation, partially offset
higher gross profit, lower selling, general and adstrative expenses, incremental gains on busidesstitures net of transaction costs, hi
equity income and lower income attributable to romlling interests. Fiscal 2013 diluted earnipgs share was $1.71 compared to |
year's diluted earnings per share of $1.72.

Segment Analysis
Management evaluates the performance of its busineiss based primarily on segment income, whictiened as income from continu
operations before income taxes and noncontrolligrésts excluding net financing charges, significastructuring and impairment costs,

net mark-to-market adjustments on pension and gtireiment plans.

Building Efficiency

Net Sales Segment Income
for the Year Ended for the Year Ended
September 30, September 30,

(in millions) 2013 2012 Change 2013 2012 Change
North America Systems $ 2,36 $ 2,38¢ 1% $ 27¢ % 28¢ 2%
North America Service 2,13( 2,14~ -1% 22¢ 164 3¢ %
Global Workplace Solutions 4,26¢ 4,29¢ 1% 114 52 *
Asia 2,022 1,98 2% 27¢ 267 4%
Other 3,81z 3,90( -2% 89 141 -37%

$ 1459. $ 14,71t 1% $ 98¢ $ 91C 9%
* Measure not meaningful
Net Sales
. The decrease in North America Systems was duewerlgolumes of equipment and controls systemsencthmmercial constructi

and replacement markets ($25 million), and the worible impact of foreign currency translation (ilion).

. The decrease in North America Service was dua teduction in truckased volumes ($46 million) and the unfavorableaotpo
foreign currency translation ($1 million), partiatbffset by higher energy solutions volumes ($3Hiom).

. The decrease in Global Workplace Solutions wastdenet decrease in services to new and existiagpmers ($109 million) and t
unfavorable impact of foreign currency translat{686 million), partially offset by incremental salrom a business acquisition ($.
million).
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The increase in Asia was due to higher volumesqgoiEnent and controls ($47 million), and highervgzr volumes ($30 million
partially offset by the unfavorable impact of fapeicurrency translation ($42 million).

The decrease in Other was due to prior year divess ($67 million), lower volumes in the MiddleE4$64 million) and Europe ($
million), and the unfavorable impact of foreign @ncy translation ($18 million), partially offsey higher volumes in unitary produ
($66 million), Latin America ($23 million) and othbusinesses ($26 million).

Segment Income:

The decrease in North America Systems was duegbehiselling, general and administrative expen$88 (million) and lowe
volumes ($8 million), partially offset by favorahteargin rates ($28 million) and a pension settlengam ($6 million).

The increase in North America Service was due tmrible mix and margin rates ($59 million), loweelling, general ar
administrative expenses ($9 million), a pensiotlesaent gain ($6 million) and a prior year lossharsiness divestitures ($3 millio
partially offset by lower volumes ($13 million).

The increase in Global Workplace Solutions was tduavorable margin rates ($47 million), a penstantailment gain resulting fro
a lost contract net of other contract costs ($24ian), a pension settlement gain ($14 million)ci@mental operating income fror
business acquisition ($3 million), higher equiticome ($1 million) and the favorable impact of fgreicurrency translation (:
million), partially offset by lower volumes ($14 tion), and higher selling, general and administaexpenses ($14 million).

The increase in Asia was due to favorable margiaesré$32 million) and higher volumes ($19 milliopgrtially offset by highe
selling, general and administrative expenses ($8in), the unfavorable impact of foreign currenitgnslation ($5 million) and low
equity income ($1 million).

The decrease in Other was due to prior year gairsusiness divestitures net of transaction co#t8 (fillion), a current year loss
business divestiture including transaction cosB (fillion), higher selling, general and adminitra expenses ($21 million), low
operating income due to prior year divestituresl($dillion), contract related charges ($7 milliomdathe unfavorable impact
foreign currency translation ($2 million), partiathffset by favorable margin rates ($49 millionigler equity income ($3 million) a
a pension settlement gain ($2 million).

Automotive Experience

Net Sales Segment Income (Loss)
for the Year Ended for the Year Ended
September 30, September 30,

(in millions) 2013 2012 Change 2013 2012 Change
Seating $ 16,28 $ 15,85 3% $ 72: % 694 4%
Interiors 4,17¢ 4,12¢ 1% (9 (20 55%
Electronics 1,32( 1,351 2% 58¢ 12¢ *

$ 21,78 $ 21,33« 2% $ 1,29¢ $ 802 62%
* Measure not meaningful
Net Sales
. The increase in Seating was due to higher voluméke Company's major OEM customers ($407 milliam}remental sales due

business acquisitions ($89 million), favorable satex ($75 million), and the prior year negativepmat of the flooding in Thaila
and related events ($25 million), partially offést the unfavorable impact of foreign currency tfatisn ($147 million) and low:
volumes due to a business divestiture ($18 million)

The increase in Interiors was due to higher volutoebe Company's major OEM customers ($38 milliamyl the favorable impact
foreign currency translation ($9 million).

The decrease in Electronics was due to net unfal®micing and commercial settlements ($26 miliand the unfavorable impact
foreign currency translation ($11 million), parljabffset by higher volumes to the Company's m&&M customers ($6 million).
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Segment Income:

. The increase in Seating was due to gains onisitiqns of partiallyewned affiliates ($106 million), higher volumes @million),
lower purchasing costs ($54 million), a gain onibess divestiture ($29 million), a pension settlatgin ($21 million), the prior ye
negative impact of the flooding in Thailand andatetl events ($6 million), and incremental operaiimgpme due to a busine
acquisition ($4 million), partially offset by nehfavorable pricing and commercial settlements (866on), higher selling, gener
and administrative expenses ($59 million), unfabtaanix ($42 million), higher operating costs ($2dlion), distressed supplier co
(%21 million), higher engineering and launch cd$s7 million), lower equity income including a prigear equity interest gain ($
million), litigation charges ($10 million), the umforable impact of foreign currency translation ®#lion) and lower operatir
income due to a business divestiture ($5 million).

. The increase in Interiors was due to net favorasleing and commercial settlements ($49 milliorwér operating costs ($
million), higher volumes ($7 million), favorable m{$6 million), a pension settlement gain ($4 roiflj and the favorable impact
foreign currency translation ($2 million), partiabbffset by higher engineering and launch costsS ($@lion), higher selling, genei
and administrative expenses ($25 million), highaerchasing costs ($17 million), distressed supmlgeats ($2 million) and lower equ
income ($1 million).

. The increase in Electronics was due to a gaitherdivestiture of the HomeLink@roduct line net of transaction costs ($476 mil)j
lower purchasing costs ($32 million), higher volum@2 million) and higher equity income ($1 milljorpartially offset by ne
unfavorable pricing and commercial settlements ($#Bion), higher engineering costs ($17 milliorfligher selling, general a
administrative expenses ($6 million), higher opeatosts ($5 million) and the unfavorable impaictaveign currency translation (
million).

Power Solutions

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Net sales $ 6,35¢ $ 5,90¢ 8%
Segment income 1,00¢ 784 28%
. Net sales increased due to favorable pricing andumnt mix ($223 million), higher sales volumes ($1illion) and the impact

higher lead costs on pricing ($64 million), pattiaffset by the unfavorable impact of foreign @mcy translation ($7 million).

. Segment income increased due to favorable prodixctimoluding lead acquisition costs and batteryeso($187 million), highe
volumes ($29 million), favorable legal settlemef®20 million), a pension settlement gain ($16 naiili, a prior year impairment of
equity investment ($14 million), change in assérement obligations ($7 million) and higher equibcome ($2 million), partiall
offset by a prior year gain on redemption of a waatifor an existing partiallpwned affiliate ($25 million), higher selling, gaatanc
administrative expenses ($14 million), a prior ygain on acquisition of a partialywned affiliate ($9 million), higher net operat
and transportation costs ($4 million), and the uafable impact of foreign currency translation (gillion).
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FISCAL YEAR 2012 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR 2011

Net Sales
Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Net sales $ 41,95 $ 40,83: 3%

The increase in consolidated net sales was dugktetsales in the Automotive Experience busin82s0(billion), Power Solutions busin
(%224 million) and Building Efficiency business @nillion), partially offset by the unfavorable imgt of foreign currency translation ($
billion). Excluding the unfavorable impact of fogei currency translation, consolidated net salesased 6% as compared to the prior
The favorable impacts of increased automotive itrgiysroduction in North America, strong automotized buildings demand in China, :
incremental sales from acquisitions were partialtiset by the negative impacts of lower automofiveéustry production in Europe, we
Building Efficiency markets and mild weather coralits on automotive battery aftermarket demand. Refthe segment analysis below wil
Item 7 for a discussion of net sales by segment.

Cost of Sales / Gross Profit

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Cost of sales $ 35807 $ 34,77 3%
Gross profit 6,14¢ 6,05¢ 1%
% of sales 14.7% 14.€%

The increase in total cost of sales year over gemesponds to the sales growth noted above, withsgprofit percentage decreasing slig
Gross profit in the Automotive Experience businesss favorably impacted by lower purchasing cosfsebfby higher operating co
associated with performance at metals facilitied aet unfavorable commercial settlements and mgicithe Power Solutions busin
experienced favorable pricing and product mix dffsehigher operating, lead, battery core and partation costs. Gross profit in the Build
Efficiency business benefited year over year fromprioved labor utilization and pricing initiativesffset by overall unfavorable gross mai
rates. Foreign currency translation had a favorahfgact on cost of sales of approximately $1.1idsill Net mark-tomarket adjustments

pension and postretirement plans had a net favonrgdr over year impact on cost of sales of $8Hami($33 million charge in fiscal 20.
compared to $120 million charge in fiscal 2011 )vm@iily due to assumption changes for certain bdB- plans partially offset by a decline
year over year discount rates. Refer to the segaralysis below within Iltem 7 for a discussion e§ment income by segme

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 447¢ $ 4,39: 2%
% of sales 10.7% 10.8%

Selling, general and administrative expenses (SGi&ddeased by $85 million year over year, but dasee slightly as a percentage of s
Automotive Experience business SG&A increased milgnaue to the incremental SG&A of acquired busises, partially offset by non-
recurring fiscal 2011 costs related to businessiiaitgpns. Power Solutions business SG&A incregseaiarily due to higher employee rela
costs and incremental SG&A of acquired businesBe#ding Efficiency business SG&A decreased pritlyadue to cost reduction initiativ
and fiscal 2011 restructuring costs. The unfavaratmipact of net mark-toaarket adjustments on pension and postretiremamisph SG&/
increased year over year by $150 million ($414iomlicharge in fiscal 2012 compared to $264 millitvarge in fiscal 2011) primarily due t
significant decline in year over year discount safeéoreign currency translation had a favorableaichpn SG&A of $101 million. Refer to t
segment analysis below within Item 7 for a discmwsgif segment income by segment.
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Gain on Business Divestitures - Net

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Gain on business divestitures - net $ 4cC $ — *

* Measure not meaningful

The increase in the gains on business divestitugesf transaction costs was due to fiscal 2012gditures in the Building Efficiency busine
There were no business divestitures in fiscal 2011.

Refer to Note 2, “Acquisitions and Divestituresf'tibe notes to consolidated financial statement$uidher disclosure related to the Company’
business divestitures.

Restructuring and Impairment Costs

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Restructuring and impairment costs $ 297 $ — *

* Measure not meaningful

To better align its resources with its growth stgi¢s and reduce the cost structure of its glopatations to address the softness in ce
underlying markets, the Company committed to a i@t restructuring plan in fiscal 2012 and reded $297 million of significa
restructuring and impairment costs, of which $5Riom was recorded in the third quarter and $248ioni in the fourth quarter of fiscal 20!
The restructuring charge related to cost redugtigiatives in the Company's Automotive ExperienBeijlding Efficiency and Power Solutic
businesses and included workforce reductions amok glosures. The restructuring actions are exgdctde substantially complete by the
of fiscal 2014.

Refer to Note 16, “Significant Restructuring andplirment Costs,bf the notes to consolidated financial statemeatsfdrther disclosui
related to the Company's restructuring plans.

Net Financing Charges

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Net financing charges $ 23z % 174 34%

The increase in net financing charges was primalily to higher debt levels in fiscal 2012 as comgao fiscal 2011.

Equity Income

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Equity income $ 34C $ 29¢ 14%

The increase in equity income was primarily du@ tgain on redemption of a warrant for an existiagiplly-owned affiliate and a gain or
fiscal 2012 acquisition of a partiallywned affiliate in the Power Solutions businesstially offset by a gain on a fiscal 2011 acqusitiof ¢
partially-owned affiliate net of acquisition costsd related purchase accounting adjustments aadially-owned equity affiliate's restatem
of prior period income in the Power Solutions basi The remaining increase in equity income wimsapily due to higher earnings at cer
Building Efficiency partiallyewned affiliates. Refer to the segment analysiowelvithin Item 7 for a discussion of segment incoby
segment.
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Provision for Income Taxes

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Provision for income taxes $ 20¢ $ 25¢ -18%

* Measure not meaningful

The effective rate is below the U.S. statutory gatienarily due to continuing global tax planningtiatives and income in certain ndhS
jurisdictions with a rate of tax lower than the Usatutory tax rate. Refer to Note *“Income Taxes, of the notes to consolidated finan
statements for further details.

Valuation Allowances

The Company reviews the realizability of its dederitax asset valuation allowances on a quartedyspar whenever events or change
circumstances indicate that a review is requiradidtermining the requirement for a valuation aloee, the historical and projected finar
results of the legal entity or consolidated groapording the net deferred tax asset are considatedg with any other positive or nega
evidence. Since future financial results may diffem previous estimates, periodic adjustmenthéQompany's valuation allowances ma
necessary.

In fiscal 2012, the Company recorded an overalldase to its valuation allowances of $47 milliomyarily due to a discrete period income
adjustment in the fourth quarter. In the fourth graof fiscal 2012, the Company performed an asialyelated to the realizability of
worldwide deferred tax assets. As a result, arel afinsidering tax planning initiatives and othesifive and negative evidence, the Comj
determined that it was more likely than not thateded tax assets within Power Solutions in Chirmuld not be realized. Therefore,
Company recorded a $35 million valuation allowaaséncome tax expense in the three month periodceSeéptember 30, 2012.

In fiscal 2011, the Company recorded a decreais t@luation allowances primarily due to a $30limil discrete period income tax adjustrr
in the fourth quarter. In the fourth quarter ot&62011, the Company performed an analysis relatéite realizability of its worldwide deferr
tax assets. As a result, and after consideringpkamning initiatives and other positive and negatwvidence, the Company determined tt
was more likely than not that the deferred tax @msgeimarily within Denmark, Italy, Automotive Expence in Korea and Automoti
Experience in the United Kingdom would be realiZzEderefore, the Company released a net $30 mitiforaluation allowances as a benef
income tax expense in the three month period eSéptember 30, 2011.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company is subject to income taxes in the @8l numerous foreign jurisdictions. Judgment isuireg in determining its worldwic
provision for income taxes and recording the relaesets and liabilities. In the ordinary courséhef Company's business, there are r
transactions and calculations where the ultimataéiermination is uncertain. The Company is regdplander audit by tax authorities.

As a result of certain events related to priorgianning initiatives, during the third quarter &fdal 2012, the Company reduced the resen
uncertain tax positions by $22 million, including3million of interest and penalties, resultingaibenefit to income tax expense.

The Company's federal income tax returns and cerant.S. income tax returns for various fiscal yearsa@ under various stages of a
by the Internal Revenue Service and respectivelh@-tax authorities. Although the outcome of taxlits is always uncertain, managen
believes that it has appropriate support for th&tmms taken on its tax returns and that its ahtaxaprovisions included amounts sufficien
pay assessments, if any, which may be proposetiebtaking authorities. At September 30, 2012, tben@any had recorded a liability for
best estimate of the probable loss on certain oftak positions, the majority of which is included other noncurrent liabilities in t
consolidated statements of financial position. Nbekess, the amounts ultimately paid, if any, upsolution of the issues raised by the ta
authorities may differ materially from the amouatsrued for each year.
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Impacts of Tax Legisation and Change in Statutory Tax Rates

The look-through rule, under subpart F of the Un$rnal Revenue Code, expired for the Company eptednber 30, 2012. The lodkrougt
rule had provided an exception to the U.S. taxatiboertain income generated by foreign subsidsariée rule was extended in Januaéy :
retroactive to the beginning of the Company's €&l year.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 203legislation was adopted in Japan which reducedtatutory income tax rate by 5%. A
tax legislation was adopted in various jurisdictidn limit the annual utilization of tax lossestthae carried forward. None of these chal
had a material impact on the Company's consolid@edcial condition, results of operations or césiws.

Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Income attributable to noncontrolling interests $ 127 % 117 9%

The increase in income attributable to noncontigllinterests was primarily due to higher earningseatain Power Solutions and Build
Efficiency partiallyowned affiliates, partially offset by the effects an increase in the Company's ownership perceritage Automotiv:
Experience partially-owned affiliate.

Net Income Attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. $ 1,18/ $ 1,41¢ -16 %

The decrease in net income attributable to Johi@mmtrols, Inc. was primarily due to higher selliggneral and administrative expen
significant restructuring and impairment costs, fiedncing charges and income attributable to natreding interests, and the unfavors
impact of foreign currency translation, partialffset by higher sales and equity income, and aedeser in the provision for income taxes. Fi
2012 diluted earnings per share was $1.72 comparistal 2011 diluted earnings per share of $2.06.

Segment Analysis
Management evaluates the performance of its busineiss based primarily on segment income, whictiened as income from continu

operations before income taxes and noncontrolligrésts excluding net financing charges, significastructuring and impairment costs,
net mark-to-market adjustments on pension and girgiment plans.
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Building Efficiency

Net Sales Segment Income
for the Year Ended for the Year Ended
September 30, September 30,

(in millions) 2012 2011 Change 2012 2011 Change

North America Systems $ 2,38¢ % 2,34: 2% $ 28¢ % 247 16%

North America Service 2,14t 2,30¢ -T% 164 121 36%

Global Workplace Solutions 4,29¢ 4,15: 3% 52 22 *

Asia 1,98 1,84( 8% 267 251 6%

Other 3,90( 4,25 -8 % 141 10t 34%

$ 14,71t $ 14,89 1% $ 91C $ 74¢€ 22%

* Measure not meaningful

Net Sales:

. The increase in North America Systems was primatig to higher volumes of equipment and controftesys in the commerc
construction and replacement markets ($50 milligegrtially offset by the unfavorable impact of figre currency translation (!
million).

. The decrease in North America Service was pilyndue to a reduction in truckased volumes ($130 million) and energy solut

volumes ($50 million), and the unfavorable impafctaveign currency translation ($4 million), pathjaoffset by the incremental sa
from a fiscal 2011 business acquisition ($24 miljio

. The increase in Global Workplace Solutions was grily due to a net increase in services to new exidting customers ($2
million), partially offset by the unfavorable imgaaf foreign currency translation ($123 million).

. The increase in Asia was primarily due to highevise volumes including the fiscal 2011 negativgaut of the Japan earthquake
related events ($84 million), higher volumes of ipquent and controls systems ($39 million), and fimeorable impact of foreic
currency translation ($24 million).

. The decrease in Other was primarily due to the warible impact of foreign currency translation (6@illion), lower volumes i
Latin America ($93 million), the Middle East ($41lion) and Europe ($32 million), and lower volumese to fiscal 2012 divestitut
($55 million), partially offset by higher volumes other business areas ($33 million) and unitaogpcts ($2 million).

Segment Income:

. The increase in North America Systems was primatilg to lower selling, general and administratixpemses ($24 million) ai
higher volumes ($15 million).

. The increase in North America Service was primadiye to lower selling, general and administratixpemses ($40 million) al
favorable margin rates ($38 million), partially ¢t by lower volumes ($31 million), loss on a besmm divestiture ($3 million) a
lower equity income ($1 million).

. The increase in Global Workplace Solutions was grilm due to higher volumes ($15 million), lowerllsg, general an
administrative expenses ($14 million) and favoramiargin rates ($4 million), partially offset by thufavorable impact of forei
currency translation ($3 million).

. The increase in Asia was primarily due to highelurtes ($30 million) and the favorable impact ofefign currency translation (
million), partially offset by higher selling, germrand administrative expenses ($18 million) anfhworable margin rates ($2 million).

. The increase in Other was primarily due to gain®usiness divestitures net of transaction cost2 (##lion), fiscal 2011 restructurit
costs ($35 million), fiscal 2011 narcurring charges related to South America inditages ($24 million), lower selling, general .
administrative expenses ($14 million), fiscal 2(dusiness distribution costs ($11 million) and higkguity income ($6 million
partially offset by unfavorable margin rates ($5ilion), lower volumes
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(%20 million), net fiscal 2011 warranty accrual @tment due to favorable experience ($14 millidkmyer income due to fiscal 20
divestitures ($10 million) and the unfavorable irapaf foreign currency translation ($1 million).

Automotive Experience

Net Sales Segment Income (Loss)
for the Year Ended for the Year Ended
September 30, September 30,

(in millions) 2012 2011 Change 2012 2011 Change
Seating $ 1585 $  14,65¢ 8% $ 694 $ 641 8%
Interiors 4,12¢ 4,11¢ 0% (20 (5) *
Electronics 1,351 1,29( 5% 12¢ 144 -1C%

$ 21,33« $ 20,06 6% $ 80 $ 78C 3%
* Measure not meaningful
Net Sales
. The increase in Seating was primarily due to higlebumes to major OEM customers including the i1 negative impact of t

Japan earthquake and related events ($1.2 billaowg,incremental sales due to business acquisif#&862 million), partially offset k
the unfavorable impact of foreign currency transhat($584 million), net unfavorable pricing and aoercial settlements ($1
million), and the negative impact of the floodimgTihailand and related events ($25 million).

. The increase in Interiors was primarily due to kigholumes to major OEM customers including thedi2011 negative impact of 1
Japan earthquake and related events ($147 millpar}jally offset by the unfavorable impact of figre currency translation ($1
million) and net unfavorable pricing and commersiettiements ($20 million).

. The increase in Electronics was primarily due gher volumes to major OEM customers including feedl 2011 negative impact
the Japan earthquake and related events ($73 m)jlizmd incremental sales due to a fiscal 2011nlessi acquisition ($66 millior
partially offset by the unfavorable impact of fapeicurrency translation ($63 million) and net umfiable pricing and commerc
settlements ($15 million).

Segment Income:

. The increase in Seating was primarily due to highebumes including the fiscal 2011 negative impaicthe earthquake in Japan .
related events ($246 million), lower purchasingted$78 million), fiscal 2011 costs related to Imasis acquisitions ($64 milliol
incremental operating income of fiscal 2011 acdoiss ($59 million), lower engineering expenses3y(#iillion), higher equity incorr
($3 million) and the favorable impact of foreignr@ncy translation ($2 million), partially offset thigher operating costs ($1
million), net unfavorable commercial settlementsl gnicing ($167 million), higher selling, generaddaadministrative expenses (¢
million), and the negative impact of the floodimgTihailand and related events ($6 million).

. The decrease in Interiors was primarily due to eigbperating costs ($35 million), and net unfavtgatbmmercial settlements ¢
pricing ($31 million), partially offset by lower pechasing costs ($32 million), lower selling, gerierad administrative expenses
million), higher equity income ($9 million) and lewvengineering expenses ($1 million).

. The decrease in Electronics was primarily due touméavorable commercial settlements and pricintb(illion), higher operatir
costs ($13 million), higher selling, general andnadstrative expenses ($11 million), and lower ¢gincome ($11 million), partial
offset by higher volumes including the fiscal 2Qidgative impact of the earthquake in Japan andecbkevents ($14 million), low
engineering expenses ($9 million), lower purchasiogts ($6 million), incremental operating inconfeadiscal 2011 acquisition (!
million) and the favorable impact of foreign curegrtranslation ($1 million).
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Power Solutions

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Net sales $ 5,90¢ $ 5,87¢ 1%
Segment income 784 822 5%
. Net sales increased primarily due to favorableipgi@nd product mix ($156 million), higher volumiesluding the prior year negati

impact of the earthquake in Japan and related s\&i#t4 million), and incremental sales due to ress acquisitions ($38 milliol
partially offset by the unfavorable impact of fayeicurrency translation ($193 million) and impaétpass through pricing ($1
million).

. Segment income decreased primarily due to higherating and transportation costs ($46 million); Heig selling, general a
administrative expenses ($43 million); a gain ofisaal 2011 acquisition of a partialywned affiliate net of acquisition costs |
related purchase accounting adjustments and aalpaxiwned affiliate's restatement of prior period ineorf$37 million); th
unfavorable impact of foreign currency translatig@2l million); an impairment of an equity investmg$14 million) and th
unfavorable impact of business acquisitions ($1lion); partially offset by favorable pricing andquuct mix net of lead acquisiti
costs including battery cores ($46 million); a gamredemption of a warrant for an existing pdasti@wned affiliate ($25 million
higher volumes including the fiscal 2011 negativpact of the earthquake in Japan and related ey®24smillion); change in as:
retirement obligations ($14 million); an insurarsettlement ($12 million); a gain on a fiscal 20X@j@sition of a partiallyewnec
affiliate ($9 million) and higher equity income ($4llion).

GOODWILL, LONG-LIVED ASSETS AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

Goodwill at September 30, 20¥&s $6.6 billion, $393 million lower than the prigear. The decrease was primarily due to the inpeit ir
the Automotive Experience Interiors segment, asudised below, and business divestitures in the motive Experience Electronics ¢
Seating segments, partially offset by business iaitiguns in the Automotive Experience Seating andlding Efficiency Global Workplac
Solutions segments.

Goodwill reflects the cost of an acquisition in egs of the fair values assigned to identifiable astets acquired. The Company rev
goodwill for impairment during the fourth fiscal ater or more frequently if events or changes murnstances indicate the asset migt
impaired. The Company performs impairment reviemsifs reporting units, which have been determitede the Companyg’ reportabl
segments or one level below the reportable segnientertain instances, using a fair value methosedaon managemestjudgments ar
assumptions or third party valuations. The faiueabf a reporting unit refers to the price that lddoe received to sell the unit as a whole i
orderly transaction between market participanthatmeasurement date. In estimating the fair vahe Company uses multiples of earn
based on the average of historical, published plakiof earnings of comparable entities with similperations and economic characteris
In certain instances, the Company uses discouratsd ffow analyses or estimated sales price to dushipport the fair value estimates.
inputs utilized in the analyses are classified egel 3 inputs within the fair value hierarchy adinkd in ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurement.’
The estimated fair value is then compared withcdueying amount of the reporting unit, includingoeded goodwill. The Company is sub
to financial statement risk to the extent that tlaerying amount exceeds the estimated fair valie impairment testing performed by
Company in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 20d8i¢ated that the estimated fair value of the Auitime Experience Interiors reporting L
did not exceed its corresponding carrying amoustutting recorded goodwill, and an impairment existdlo other reporting unit w
determined to be at risk of failing step one of go@dwill impairment test as the impairment testirgformed indicated that the estimated
value of each reporting unit substantially exceeitledorresponding carrying amount including reeardjoodwill at September 30, 2013.
impairments existed at September 30, 2012 and 2011.

Based on a combination of factors, including theeng operating results of the Automotive Experielmteriors business, restrictions on ful
capital and restructuring funding, and the Compaayinounced intention to explore strategic opti@tated to this business, the Compe
forecasted cash flow estimates used in the goo@dssiessment were negatively impacted as of Septe36b2013. As a result, the Comp
concluded that the carrying value of the Interiggporting unit exceeded its fair value as of Sepn80, 2013. The Company record¢
goodwill impairment charge of $430 million in theufth quarter of fiscal 2013, which was determibgdcomparing the carrying value of
reporting unit's goodwill with the implied fair wed of goodwill for the reporting unit. The assurops included in the impairment test req
judgment, and changes to these inputs could inthactesults of the calculation. Other than managg'énternal projections of future ci
flows, the primary assumptions used in the impairintest were the weighted-average cost of capitdll@ang-term growth rates. Although the

39




Company's cash flow forecasts are based on assumpiat are considered reasonable by managemeéntcensistent with the plans
estimates management is using to operate the ynugibusiness, there is significant judgment ined®ining the expected future cash flc
attributable to the Interiors business. The impaintrcharge is a notash expense that was recorded within restructamhimpairment cos
on the consolidated statement of income and didadotrsely affect the Company's debt position, dbsh, liquidity or compliance wit
financial covenants.

Indefinite lived other intangible assets are aisbject to at least annual impairment testing. Othtamgible assets with definite lives conti
to be amortized over their estimated useful lived are subject to impairment testing if events linges in circumstances indicate tha
asset might be impaired. A considerable amount afiagement judgment and assumptions are requirpdrforming the impairment tes
While the Company believes the judgments and asSongpused in the impairment tests are reasonafte @ impairment existed
September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, different asomspcould change the estimated fair values dmetefore, impairment charges coulc
required, which could be material to the consoliddinancial statements.

The Company reviews longred assets, including property, plant and equipinad other intangible assets with definite livies,impairmen
whenever events or changes in circumstances imdibat the asset’s carrying amount may not be exade. The Company conducts its long
lived asset impairment analyses in accordance A88 360-10-15, “Impairment or Disposal of Long-LivAssets.” ASC 360-1Q5 require
the Company to group assets and liabilities atlalaest level for which identifiable cash flows dezgely independent of the cash flows
other assets and liabilities and evaluate the agsap against the sum of the undiscounted futash ¢lows. If the undiscounted cash flows
not indicate the carrying amount of the assetdésverable, an impairment charge is measured aantfveint by which the carrying amoun
the asset group exceeds its fair value based coulited cash flow analysis or appraisals.

In the second, third and fourth quarters of fis2@l13, the Company concluded it had a triggeringhewequiring assessment of impairment
certain of its londived assets in conjunction with its restructurexgions announced in fiscal 2013. In addition,ha fourth quarter of fisc
2013, the Company concluded that it had a triggeewent requiring assessment of impairment fotahgived assets held by the Automot
Experience Interiors segment due to the impairneérgoodwill in the quarter. As a result, the Compaaviewed the londived assets fc
impairment and recorded a $156 million impairmemirge within restructuring and impairment costdt@nconsolidated statement of inco
of which $13 million was recorded in the secondrtgra$36 million in the third quarter and $107 lioit in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013.
the total impairment charge, $57 million relatedhte Automotive Experience Interiors segment, $4ilan related to the Building Efficienc
Other segment, $22 million related to the AutometBixperience Seating segment, $18 million relatethé Power Solutions segment,

million related to corporate assets and $7 millretated to various segments within the Buildingigi#incy business. Refer to Note

“Significant Restructuring and Impairment Costsf’the notes to consolidated financial statememtsaéiditional information. The impairme
was measured, depending on the asset, either andecome approach utilizing forecasted discountesh flows or a market approach utiliz
an appraisal to determine fair values of the impairt assets. These methods are consistent witimeétieods the Company employed in
periods to value other lorigred assets. The inputs utilized in the analysescéassified as Level 3 inputs within the fairualhierarchy &
defined in ASC 820, "Fair Value Measurement."

In the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2012 ompany concluded it had a triggering event raggiassessment of impairment for certai
its longdived assets in conjunction with its restructurexgions announced in fiscal 2012. In addition,he fourth quarter of fiscal 2012,
Company concluded it had a triggering event reggiassessment of impairment for certain of its {ved assets due to volume decline
the European automotive markets. As a result, tbengany reviewed the lorlgred assets for impairment and recorded a $39ian
impairment charge within restructuring and impainineosts on the consolidated statement of incofehah $3 million was recorded in t
third quarter and $36 million in the fourth quartdrfiscal 2012. Of the total impairment charge4 $tillion related to the Power Solutic
segment, $11 million related to the Automotive Eigece Interiors segment, $4 million related to Baelding Efficiency Other segment &
$10 million related to corporate assets. Refer tieNL6, “Significant Restructuring and Impairmeras@,” of the notes to consolidal
financial statements for additional information.eTimpairment was measured, depending on the &etr under an income approach utiliz
forecasted discounted cash flows or a market appratlizing an appraisal to determine fair valwéshe impairment assets. These met|
are consistent with the methods the Company emglayg@rior periods to value other lofiged assets. The inputs utilized in the analyse
classified as Level 3 inputs within the fair vahierarchy as defined in ASC 820, "Fair Value Measugnt."

In the second quarter of fiscal 2012, the Compaapnrded a $14 million impairment charge relatedricequity investment. Refer to Note
“Fair Value Measurements,” of the notes to consaéid financial statements for additional informatio

Investments in partially-owned affiliates (“affites”) at September 30, 2018ere $1.0 billion, $76 million higher than the prigear. Thi
increase was primarily due to positive earningaffijiates in all businesses, primarily in the Antotive Experience
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and Power Solutions businesses, partially offsetiydends paid by affiliates and the acquisitiafsthe controlling interest in formel
unconsolidated Automotive Experience Seating atfis.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Working Capital

September 30, September 30,

(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Current assets $ 13,69¢ $ 12,74:
Current liabilities (12,119 (10,85%)

1,581 1,88¢ -1€ %
Less: Cash 1,05¢ 26E
Add: Short-term debt 11¢ 32z
Add: Current portion of long-term debt 81¢ 424
Less: Assets held for sale 804 —
Add: Liabilities held for sale 40z —
Working capital $ 1,06z $ 2,37( -55 %
Accounts receivable 7,20¢ 7,30¢ 1%
Inventories 2,32t 2,34: 1%
Accounts payable 6,31¢ 6,11¢ 3%
. The Company defines working capital as curressets less current liabilities, excluding cashristesm debt, the current portion

longterm debt, and assets and liabilities held for.sianagement believes that this measure of workiagital, which excludt
financing-related items, provides a more usefulsneament of the Company’s operating performance.

. The decrease in working capital at Septembe28@3 as compared to September 30, 2048 primarily due to a decrease in o
current assets related to income taxes, an incieasserves due to restructuring activities, highecounts payable due to timing
supplier payments and lower accounts receivableéaimaproved collections and timing of customereigts.

. The Company’s days sales in accounts receivabl8eptember 30, 2018ere 51, lower than 55 at the comparable periodee
September 30, 2012There has been no significant adverse chandeeifevel of overdue receivables or changes in neveacognitio
methods.

. The Company’s inventory turns for the year endptember 30, 201@%ere slightly lower than the comparable period e

September 30, 2012 primarily due to higher invegnfmoduction to meet higher sales levels.

. Days in accounts payable at September 30, 2@t8 W2, consistent with the comparable period esdgdember 30, 2012
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Cash Flows

Year Ended September 30,

(in millions) 2013 2012

Cash provided by operating activities $ 2,68¢ $ 1,55¢

Cash used by investing activities (580) (1,799

Cash provided (used) by financing activities (1,219 207

Capital expenditures (1,377 (1,839

. The increase in cash provided by operating aatiwitvas primarily due to favorable changes in acthagilities, accrued income tax

other assets and restructuring reserves; and Ipaesion and postretirement contributions; partiafiiset by unfavorable changes
inventories and accounts receivable.

. The decrease in cash used by investing activitias wimarily due to cash received for business dliitvres and lower capi
expenditures, partially offset by higher cash gardacquisitions of businesses.

. The increase in cash used by financing activitias wimarily due to a prior year $1.1 billion basduance, higher repayments of
and an increase in stock repurchases, partialsepfiy higher proceeds from the exercise of stgtlons. Refer to Note 9, Debt an
Financing Arrangements,” of the notes to consoéiddinancial statements for further discussion ebtdssuances and debt levels.

. The decrease in capital expenditures in the cuweat is primarily related to capacity increased waartical integration efforts in t
prior year in the Power Solutions business, anddugction in program spending for new customer laeacin the Automotiv
Experience business.

Capitalization

September 30, September 30,

(in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Short-term debt $ 11¢ % 32¢
Current portion of long-term debt 81¢ 424
Long-term debt 4,56( 5,321
Total debt $ 549¢ % 6,06¢ -9%
Shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Cdsttac. 12,31« 11,62¢ 6 %

Total capitalization $ 17,81 % 17,69: 1%
Total debt as a % of total capitalization 31% 34%
. The Company believes the percentage of total wetotal capitalization is useful to understangdthe Companyg financial condition ¢

it provides a review of the extent to which the (oamy relies on external debt financing for its fungdand is a measure of risk to
shareholders.

. At September 30, 2013 and 201the Company had committed bilateral euro denctatharedit facilities totaling 237 million eu
Additionally, at September 30, 2013 and 201Re Company had committed bilateral U.S. dollemaminated revolving credit faciliti
totaling $185 million. Each of these facilitiesssheduled to expire in fiscal 2014. There were raavd on any of the revolving cre
facilities for the respective periods.

. In November 2011, the Company issued $400 milliggregate principal amount of 2.6% senior unsecfired rate notes due in fis
2017, $450 million aggregate principal amount %86 senior unsecured fixed rate notes due in fia@ak and $250 million aggreg
principal amount of 5.25% senior unsecured fixee reotes due in fiscal 2042. Aggregate net proceédd..1 billion from the issu
were used for general corporate purposes, incluttingetirement of short-term debt and contribigiom the Compang’ pension ar
postretirement plans.

. In December 2011, the Company entered into enfdar, 75 million euro, floating rate credit fagilischeduled to mature in Febru
2017. The Company drew on the credit facility dgrthe second quarter of fiscal 2012. Proceeds flenfacility were used for gene
corporate purposes.
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In March 2012, the Company remarketed $46 milliggragate principal amount of 11.5% subordinate@saolue in fiscal 2042,
behalf of holders of Corporate Units and holdersegarate notes, by issuing $46 million aggregateipal amount of 2.355% sen
notes due on March 31, 2017.

In November 2012, the Company retired $100 miliioprincipal amount, plus accrued interest of i8% fixed rate notes that matu
November 2012. The Company used cash to fund tyragat.

In November 2012, the Company entered into exfizar, 70 million euro, floating rate credit fagilscheduled to mature in fiscal 20
The Company drew on the credit facility during thearter ended December 31, 2012. Proceeds froifatiigy were used for gene
corporate purposes.

In August 2013, the Company made a partial repayroked3 million euro, plus accrued interest, of 180 million euro floating ra
credit facility scheduled to mature in February 20The Company used cash to fund the payment.

In August 2013, the Company replaced its $2ltohicommitted fouryear credit facility, scheduled to mature in Febyu2015, with
$2.5 billion committed fiveyear credit facility scheduled to mature in Aug@étl8. The facility is used to support the Comps
outstanding commercial paper. There were no drawtb@ facility as of September 30, 2013.

In September 2013, the Company retired $300 miliroprincipal amount, plus accrued interest, of4it875% fixed rate notes tl
matured in September 2013. The Company used cdahddhe payment.

The Company also selectively makes use of dieont- credit lines. The Company estimates that,faSeptember 30, 2013it coulc
borrow up to $2.1 billion on committed credit lines

The Company believes its capital resources anddity position at September 30, 2048 adequate to meet projected needs
Company believes requirements for working capapital expenditures, dividends, stock repurchas@simum pension contributior
debt maturities and any potential acquisitiondsodl 2014 will continue to be funded from operasipsupplemented by short- and long
term borrowings, if required. The Company currentignages its shotérm debt position in the U.S. and euro commerpape
markets and bank loan markets. In the event thepaasnis unable to issue commercial paper, it wdalde the ability to draw on
$2.5 billion revolving credit facility, which mates in August 2018. There were no draws on the véwplcredit facility as ¢
September 30, 2013As such, the Company believes it has sufficigrdrfcial resources to fund operations and meaethligations fo
the foreseeable future.

The Company earns a significant amount of its dpegancome outside the U.S., which is deemed tgpbenanently reinvested
foreign jurisdictions. The Company currently does imtend nor foresee a need to repatriate theseésfurhe Compang’intent is fo
such earnings to be reinvested by the subsidiarigs be repatriated only when it would be tax effee through the utilization
foreign tax credits. The Company expects existiogestic cash and liquidity to continue to be sigfit to fund the Company’
domestic operating activities and cash commitméotsinvesting and financing activities for at ledbe next twelve months a
thereafter for the foreseeable future. In addittbe, Company expects existing foreign cash, casivaignts, shorterm investments a
cash flows from operations to continue to be sidfitto fund the Companyg’foreign operating activities and cash commitméot
investing activities, such as material capital exjiires, for at least the next twelve months dretdafter for the foreseeable futi
Should the Company require more capital in the th& is generated by operations domesticallyCivmpany will elect to raise capi
in the U.S. through debt or equity issuances. @hernative could result in increased interest espeor other dilution of the Companry’
earnings. The Company has borrowed funds domdsgtigatl continues to have the ability to borrow fsrbmestically at reasona
interest rates.

The Company’s debt financial covenants requirg@ramum consolidated shareholdeesjuity attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.
least $3.5 billion at all times and allow a maximaggregated amount of 10% of consolidated sharelsildquity attributable 1
Johnson Controls, Inc. for liens and pledges. Rop@ses of calculating the Company’s covenantssaatated shareholdergquity
attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. is calcdatathout giving effect to (i) the application ofS€ 715-60, “Defined Benefit Plans -
Other Postretirement,” or (ii) the cumulative fameicurrency translation adjustment. As of Septen3Ber2013, consolidate
shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Cdsitioc. as defined per the Compasigebt financial covenants was $11.9 billion
there was a maximum of $273 million of liens anddges outstanding. The Company expects to remauofmpliance with a
covenants and other requirements set forth inr@dicagreements and indentures for the foresedatnlee. None of the Compars/tieb
agreements limit access to stated borrowing leselequire accelerated repayment in the eventddaease in the Compasyctredi
rating.
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A summary of the Company’s significant contractoialigations as of September 30, 2013 is as follgasillions):

2019

Total 2014 2015-2016 2017-2018 and Beyond
Contractual Obligations
Long-term debt
(including capital lease obligations)* $ 537¢ $ 81¢ $ 1,062 $ 904 $ 2,59¢
Interest on long-term debt
(including capital lease obligations)* 2,32¢ 211 36¢€ 267 1,48t
Operating leases 90¢ 30C 382 15E 71
Purchase obligations 2,28¢ 1,79t 29t 18C 19
Pension and postretirement contributions 42¢€ 83 56 65 222
Total contractual cash obligations $ 11,33 $ 3,20¢ $ 2,161 $ 1571 % 4,391

* See "Capitalization" for additional informatioelated to the Company' s lobgrm debt. The Company's interest rate swaps drincladec
in the table asll outstanding interest rate swaps were in antgssstion at September 30, 2013, which indicates@ompany was in a i
position of receiving cash under such swaps.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND POLICIES

The Company prepares its consolidated financiaéstants in conformity with accounting principlesgeally accepted in the United State
America (U.S. GAAP). This requires management tkenastimates and assumptions that affect reporeslats and related disclosul
Actual results could differ from those estimatebe Tollowing policies are considered by manageneite the most critical in understanc
the judgments that are involved in the preparatiotihe Companys consolidated financial statements and the urinéda that could impact tl
Company’s results of operations, financial positoal cash flows.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s Building Efficiency business recogsizevenue from certain lotigem contracts over the contractual period unde
percentage-oéompletion (POC) method of accounting. This methbdccounting recognizes sales and gross profitaak is performed bas
on the relationship between actual costs incurretitatal estimated costs at completion. Recogniezgdnues that will not be billed under
terms of the contract until a later date are reedrdrimarily in accounts receivable. Likewise, cants where billings to date have exces
recognized revenues are recorded primarily in otiierent liabilities. Changes to the original esties may be required during the life of
contract and such estimates are reviewed montlaesSand gross profit are adjusted using the cumelaatchup method for revisions
estimated total contract costs and contract valdeBmated losses are recorded when identifiedimBlagainst customers are recognize
revenue upon settlement. The amount of accoun&viadue due after one year is not significant. Tise of the POC method of accoun
involves considerable use of estimates in detengimevenues, costs and profits and in assigningatheunts to accounting periods.
periodic reviews have not resulted in adjustmeht tvere significant to the Companytesults of operations. The Company contini
evaluates all of the assumptions, risks and unio¢iga inherent with the application of the POC noet of accounting.

The Building Efficiency business enters into extthdvarranties and lontgrm service and maintenance agreements with oertatomers. F
these arrangements, revenue is recognized onighdthiame basis over the respective contract term.

The Companys Building Efficiency business also sells certagrating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) arefrigeration products a
services in bundled arrangements, where multiptelyts and/or services are involved. In accordamite ASU No. 2009-13, Revenu
Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-Deliverable RevenArrangements - A Consensus of the FASB Emerngisiges Task Forcethe Compan
divides bundled arrangements into separate debiesand revenue is allocated to each deliveradded on the relative selling price mett
Significant deliverables within these arrangementdude equipment, commissioning, service labor amtended warranties. In order
estimate relative selling price, market data aaddfer price studies are utilized. Approximatelyrfto twelve months separate the timing of
first deliverable until the last piece of equipméntdelivered, and there may be extended warramgngements with duration of one to 1
years commencing upon the end of the standard mtsirperiod.

In all other cases, the Company recognizes revantie time title passes to the customer or ascgsrare performed.
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill reflects the cost of an acquisition in egs of the fair values assigned to identifiable assets acquired. The Company rev
goodwill for impairment during the fourth fiscal apger or more frequently if events or changes muwnstances indicate the asset migt
impaired. The Company performs impairment revieasifs reporting units, which have been determitede the Companyg’ reportabl
segments or one level below the reportable segmentsrtain instances, using a fair value methosetaon managemestjudgments ar
assumptions or third party valuations. The faiueabf a reporting unit refers to the price that lddee received to sell the unit as a whole i
orderly transaction between market participanthatmeasurement date. In estimating the fair vahee Company uses multiples of earn
based on the average of historical, published plakiof earnings of comparable entities with simdperations and economic characteris
In certain instances, the Company uses discourgshd fftow analyses or estimated sales price to durslupport the fair value estimates.
inputs utilized in the analyses are classified @gdl 3 inputs within the fair value hierarchy adinkd in ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurement.’
The estimated fair value is then compared withcduweying amount of the reporting unit, includingoeded goodwill. The Company is sub
to financial statement risk to the extent that therying amount exceeds the estimated fair valire impairment testing performed by
Company in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 20d8i¢ated that the estimated fair value of the Auitime Experience Interiors reporting L
did not exceed its corresponding carrying amoustuiting recorded goodwill, and an impairment existdlo other reporting unit w
determined to be at risk of failing step one of go@dwill impairment test as the impairment tesiirgformed indicated that the estimated
value of each reporting unit substantially exceeitledorresponding carrying amount including reeardjoodwill at September 30, 2013.
impairments existed at September 30, 2012 and 2011.

Refer to Note 6, "Goodwill and Other Intangible &tss" of the notes to consolidated financial staets for further information regarding
goodwill impairment charge recorded in the fourtlader of fiscal 2013.

Indefinite lived other intangible assets are aisbject to at least annual impairment testing. Othtamgible assets with definite lives conti
to be amortized over their estimated useful lived are subject to impairment testing if events linges in circumstances indicate tha
asset might be impaired. A considerable amount afiagement judgment and assumptions are requirpdrforming the impairment tes
While the Company believes the judgments and asSongpused in the impairment tests are reasonafte @ impairment existed
September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, different asomspcould change the estimated fair values dmetefore, impairment charges coulc
required, which could be material to the consoliddinancial statements.

Employee Benefit Plans

The Company provides a range of benefits to itslepegs and retired employees, including pensiomnspamstretirement benefits. Plan as
and obligations are measured annually, or moreuéety if there is a remeasurement event, basethenCompanys measurement d:
utilizing various actuarial assumptions such asalist rates, assumed rates of return, compensatioeases, turnover rates and health
cost trend rates as of that date. The Companywsviis actuarial assumptions on an annual basisvaiegs modifications to the assumpti
based on current rates and trends when appropriate.

The Company utilizes a mark-toarket approach for recognizing pension and pastreent benefit expenses, including measuring theke
related value of plan assets at fair value andgmizong actuarial gains and losses in the fourtargr of each fiscal year or at the date
remeasurement event. Refer to Note 15, "RetirerRéanis," of the notes to consolidated financialestents for disclosure of the Compa
pension and postretirement benefit plans.

U.S. GAAP requires that companies recognize insthéement of financial position a liability for defd benefit pension and postretiren
plans that are underfunded or unfunded, or an &sseiefined benefit pension and postretiremenhgldnat are overfunded. U.S. GAAP
requires that companies measure the benefit oldigmand fair value of plan assets that determihereefit plans funded status as of the ¢
of the employer’s fiscal year end.

The Company considers the expected benefit paynoenésplan-byplan basis when setting assumed discount rates. rasult, the Compa
uses different discount rates for each plan depgnain the plan jurisdiction, the demographics afip@ants and the expected timing of ber
payments. For the U.S. pension and postretiremlanspthe Company uses a discount rate provideanhbyndependent third party calcule
based on an appropriate mix of high quality borts. the nond.S. pension and postretirement plans, the Compgangistently uses t
relevant country specific benchmark indices fordwining the various discount rates. The Compsuayscount rate on U.S. plans was 4.!
and 4.15% at September 30, 2013 and 2012 , regplyctifhe Company’s weighted average discount oat@ont.S. plans was 3.60% &
3.40% at September 30, 2013 and 2012 , respectively
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In estimating the expected return on plan asskts,Gompany considers the historical returns on plssets, adjusted for forwalabking
considerations, inflation assumptions and the irhphthe active management of the plans’ investsts. Reflecting the relatively longrr
nature of the plans’ obligations, approximately 46Pthe plansassets are invested in fixed income securitiesA@84 in equity securities, wi
the remainder primarily invested in alternativedstments. For the years ending September 30, 261 2@12 , the Company’s expected long
term return on U.S. pension plan assets used &mdite net periodic benefit cost was 8.00% and%.,5@spectively. The actual rate of rer
on U.S. pension plans was above 8.00% in fiscaB201 above 8.50% in fiscal 2012 . For the yeadingnSeptember 30, 2013 and 2Q1Be
Company'’s weighted average expected long-termmeiornont.S. pension plan assets was 4.55% and 5.15%,atesgg. The actual rate
return on non-U.S. pension plans was above 4.55fsdal 2013 and above 5.15% in fiscal 2012 . lRerytears ending September 30, 2ah8
2012 , the Company'’s weighted average expectedtimg return on postretirement plan assets was 5806.30%, respectively. The ac
rate of return on postretirement plan assets ajpeird 5.80% in fiscal 2013 and was above 6.30%s@al 2012 .

Beginning in fiscal 2014 , the Company believesltrmgy-term rate of return will approximate 8.00%6%P6 and 5.80% for U.S. pension, non
U.S. pension and postretirement plans, respectively differences between actual investment resats the expected lortgrm asset retur
will be reflected in net periodic benefit costdlire fourth quarter of each fiscal year. If the Camys actual returns on plan assets are les¢
the Company'’s expectations, additional contribigioray be required.

In fiscal 2013, total employer and employee contributions to dleéined benefit pension plans were $95 millionwdfich $1 million wer
voluntary contributions made by the Company. Thenfany expects to contribute approximately $80 omllin cash to its defined ben:
pension plans in fiscal year 2014 . In fiscal 2018tal employer and employee contributions to fibetretirement plans were $13 million
which $12 million were voluntary contributions malole the Company. The Company does not expect teraak significant contributions
its postretirement plans in fiscal year 2014 .

Based on information provided by its independentiades and other relevant sources, the Comparigvies! that the assumptions used
reasonable; however, changes in these assumptoitimpact the Company’s financial position, réswif operations or cash flows.

Product Warranties

The Company offers warranties to its customers nigipg upon the specific product and terms of th&amer purchase agreement. A tyf
warranty program requires that the Company reptifective products within a specified time periodni the date of sale. The Comp
records an estimate of future warranyated costs based on actual historical retumsrand other known factors. Based on analysistofn
rates and other factors, the Company’s warrantyipians are adjusted as necessary. At Septemb&03@3, the Company had recorded $
million of warranty reserves, including extendednaaties for which deferred revenue is recorded Tompany monitors its warranty acti
and adjusts its reserve estimates when it is pfelibbt future warranty costs will be differentthfiose estimates.

Refer to Note 7, "Product Warranties," of the naiesconsolidated financial statements for disclesaf the Company's product warrg
liabilities.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeASC 740, “Income TaxesDeferred tax assets and liabilities are recogniaethe
future tax consequences attributable to differermetsveen financial statement carrying amounts ddtieg assets and liabilities and tt
respective tax bases and operating loss and atkerdarryforwards. Deferred tax assets and lissliare measured using enacted tax
expected to apply to taxable income in the yeanshith those temporary differences are expectdoketoecovered or settled. The Comg
records a valuation allowance that primarily repres nond.S. operating and other loss carryforwards foralhiealization is uncerta
Management judgment is required in determiningGbenpanys provision for income taxes, deferred tax assadsliabilities and the valuatic
allowance recorded against the Compangét deferred tax assets. In calculating the piowifor income taxes on an interim basis,
Company uses an estimate of the annual effectiveate based upon the facts and circumstances kabwach interim period. On a quart
basis, the actual effective tax rate is adjustedpgsopriate based upon the actual results as gedhpathose forecasted at the beginning ¢
fiscal year.

The Company reviews the realizability of its dedertax asset valuation allowances on a quartedyspar whenever events or change
circumstances indicate that a review is requiradidtermining the requirement for a valuation aloee, the historical and projected finar
results of the legal entity or consolidated groapording the net deferred tax asset are considatedg with any other positive or nega
evidence. Since future financial results may diffem previous estimates, periodic adjustmentfitoGompanys valuation allowances may
necessary. At September 30, 2013, the Company katliation allowance of
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$1,172 million, of which $911 million relates todferal net operating loss carryforwards primarilyBirazil, France, Germany and Spain,
which sustainable taxable income has not been dstnaded; and $261 million for other deferred taseds.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the Brf8. numerous nob-S. jurisdictions. Judgment is required in deteiing its worldwidk
provision for income taxes and recording the relaiesets and liabilities. In the ordinary coursehaf Companys business, there are m
transactions and calculations where the ultimatedistermination is uncertain. The Company is regylander audit by tax authorities.
September 30, 2013, the Company had unrecognizdzetefits of $1,345 million.

The Company does not generally provide addition&l. ihcome taxes on undistributed earnings of dd®- consolidated subsidiaries inclu
in shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnsont@ds, Inc. Such earnings could become taxable upersale or liquidation of these nohS
subsidiaries or upon dividend repatriation. The @any’s intent is for such earnings to be reinvestedheysubsidiaries or to be repatrie
only when it would be tax effective through theliméition of foreign tax credits. However, the Compalid provide incremental income

expense on the undistributed earnings of certamlh&. subsidiaries that have assets held for sadeeothemselves held for sale at Septe
30, 2013. Refer to “Capitalization” within the “Liglity and Capital Resourceséction for discussion of domestic and foreign gasiections

Refer to Note 18, "Income Taxes," of the notestiesolidated financial statements for the Compangsme tax disclosures.
NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In July 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standafpdate (ASU) No. 20134, "Income Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of anedognize
Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforwardimilar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforwasdsts." ASU No. 2013t1 clarifies the
companies should present an unrecognized tax bexseéi reduction to a deferred tax asset for apetating loss carryforward, a similar
loss or a tax credit carryforward. ASU No. 201 Bwill be effective prospectively for the Compdioy the quarter ending December 31, 2!
with early adoption permitted. The Company is cuiljeassessing the impact on its consolidated rsié of financial position; however, 1
adoption of this guidance will have no impact oa @ompany's consolidated results of operations.

In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 20IR- "Foreign Currency Matters (Topic 830): Paremrttscounting for the Cumulatiy
Translation Adjustment upon Derecognition of Cert8ubsidiaries or Groups of Assets within a Fordigtity or of an Investment in a Fore
Entity." ASU No. 201305 clarifies when companies should release the taiiwe translation adjustment (CTA) into net incomleen a pare
either sells a part or all of its investment inoaefgn entity or no longer holds a controlling ficzal interest in a subsidiary or group of as
within a foreign entity. Additionally, ASU No. 20135 states that CTA should be released into neniigcopon an acquirer obtaining contrc
an acquiree in which it held an equity interest iadiately before the acquisition date (step acdaisit ASU No. 20135 will be effectiv
prospectively for the Company for the quarter egdirecember 31, 2014, with early adoption permitigee significance of this guidance
the Company is dependent on any future derecogrétients involving the Company's foreign entities.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-"Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): ReportingAofiounts Reclassified Out
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.” ASU NA.320R requires companies to provide information atlbetamounts reclassified out
accumulated other comprehensive income by compormelditionally, companies are required to discldBese reclassifications by ei
respective line item on the statements of incom@UMANo0. 201392 is effective for the Company for the quartereshdecember 31, 20:
though the Company has early adopted as permittieel.adoption of this guidance had no impact onGbenpany's consolidated financ
condition or results of operations. Refer to Nofe "Equity and Noncontrolling Interests," of thetemto consolidated financial statement:
disclosures regarding other comprehensive income.

In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU No. 2012-02,dhgibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): TestindefiniteLived Intangible Assets fi
Impairment.” ASU No. 20122 provides companies an option first to asseshtaire factors to determine whether the existeottevents an
circumstances indicates that it is more likely theot that the indefinitéived intangible asset is impaired. If, as a resdlthe qualitativ
assessment, it is determined that it is not mdayithan not that the indefinitéred intangible asset is impaired, then the Congpanno
required to take further action. ASU No. 2012-02effective for the Company for impairment testsindefinitedived intangible asse
performed in the current fiscal year. The adoptbthis guidance had no impact on the Compamgnsolidated financial condition or result
operations.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011*Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about Qtfsg Assets and Liabilities ASU
No. 20111 requires additional quantitative and qualitatdisclosures of gross and net information regardingncial instruments ai
derivative instruments that are offset or eligifile offset in the consolidated statement of finahpiosition. ASU No. 20111 will be effectiv
for the Company for the quarter ending Decembe2813. The adoption of this guidance will have mpact on the Compang’consolidate
financial condition or results of operations.
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In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011408angibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Ting Goodwill for Impairment.”
ASU No. 201108 provides companies an option to perform a catalg assessment to determine whether further gitlddvpairment testing i
necessary. If, as a result of the qualitative @sseat, it is determined that it is more likely thaot that a reporting und’fair value is less th.
its carrying amount, the two-step quantitative impant test is required. Otherwise, no furtheritesis required. ASU No. 20108 is effectiwi
for the Company for goodwill impairment tests pemied in the current fiscal year. The adoption a$ thuidance had no impact on
Company'’s consolidated financial condition or résof operations.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, “@ahensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Qetmgnsive Income.ASU
No. 201:-05 eliminates the option to present componentstioér comprehensive income as part of the statenfestiareholdersequity. All
non-owner changes in shareholderguity instead must be presented either in a sic@iéinuous statement of comprehensive income twa
separate but consecutive statements. ASU No. R8Mas effective for the Company for the quarteteehDecember 31, 2012. The adof
of this guidance had no impact on the Compamgnsolidated financial condition or results oéi@gions. Refer to the consolidated staten
of comprehensive income (loss) and Note 14, “Eqaityl Noncontrolling Interestsgf the notes to consolidated financial statemeat
disclosures regarding other comprehensive income.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company selectively uses derivative instrumémigeduce market risk associated with changesrigidn currency, commaodities, intel
rates and stockased compensation. All hedging transactions atteodmed and executed pursuant to clearly definditips and procedure
which strictly prohibit the use of financial instnents for speculative purposes. At the inceptionthef hedge, the Company assesse
effectiveness of the hedge instrument and desigrtie hedge instrument as either (1) a hedge @cagnized asset or liability or o
recognized firm commitment (a fair value hedge),ghedge of a forecasted transaction or of thabiity of cash flows to be received or p
related to an unrecognized asset or liability (shchow hedge) or (3) a hedge of a net investmerd nonU.S. operation (a net investm
hedge). The Company performs hedge effectivenasigeon an ongoing basis depending on the typeedfing instrument used. All otl
derivatives not designated as hedging instrumemideuASC 815, “Derivatives and Hedgingyfe revalued in the consolidated statemer
income.

For all foreign currency derivative instrumentsigrated as cash flow hedges, retrospective effengiss is tested on a monthly basis us
cumulative dollar offset test. The fair value o thedged exposures and the fair value of the hiedty@ments are revalued, and the ratio o
cumulative sum of the periodic changes in the valuhe hedge instruments to the cumulative suthefperiodic changes in the value of
hedge is calculated. The hedge is deemed as hajfégtive if the ratio is between 80% and 125%. Eommodity derivative contrac
designated as cash flow hedges, effectivenesstisdt@ising a regression calculation. Ineffectivengsninimal as the Company aligns mo:
the critical terms of its derivatives with the siyppontracts.

For net investment hedges, the Company assessgst itsvestment positions in the nbhS. operations and compares it with the outstay
net investment hedges on a quarterly basis. Thgenexldeemed effective if the aggregate outstangimripal of the hedge instrume
designated as the net investment hedge in a nondpeation does not exceed the Company’s net imesg positions in the respective non
U.S. operation.

The Company selectively uses interest rate swapsdiace market risk associated with changes imésteates for its fixedate bonds. For tl
five fixed to floating interest rate swaps totaliig50 million to hedge the coupon of its 1.75% eateaturing March 2014, the Compi
elected the short cut method as the criteria tdyappe short cut method as defined in ASC 815 was and the critical terms for both the he
and underlying hedged item are identical at incepbf the hedge and the presented reporting perladspplying the short cut method,
Company is allowed to assume zero ineffectivenegthout performing detailed effectiveness assesssnemd does not record ¢
ineffectiveness related to the hedge relationshgy. remaining interest rate swaps, the Itiagl method is used. The Company there
assesses retrospective and prospective effectivemea quarterly basis and records any measuréfddtieeness in the consolidated statem
of income.

Equity swaps and any other derivative instrumentsdesignated as hedging instruments under ASGé&{iEire no assessment of effectivel
on a quarterly basis.

A discussion of the Company’s accounting policies derivative financial instruments is included Mote 1, ‘Summary of Significal
Accounting Policies,’of the notes to consolidated financial statemesmsl, further disclosure relating to derivatives &edging activities
included in Note 10, “Derivative Instruments anddgmg Activities,” and Note 11, “Fair Value Measorents,”of the notes to consolidal
financial statements.
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Foreign Exchange

The Company has manufacturing, sales and distobutcilities around the world and thus makes itmests and enters into transacti
denominated in various foreign currencies. In otdemaintain strict control and achieve the bereditthe Compang’ global diversificatior
foreign exchange exposures for each currency dtechimternally so that only its net foreign excharexposures are, as appropriate, he
with financial instruments.

The Company hedges 70% to 90% of the nominal amotistach of its known foreign exchange transacti@xosures. The Compe
primarily enters into foreign currency exchangetcacts to reduce the earnings and cash flow impiattte variation of noritinctional currenc
denominated receivables and payables. Gains arsddassulting from hedging instruments offset treign exchange gains or losses or
underlying assets and liabilities being hedged. Magurities of the forward exchange contracts gahecoincide with the settlement date:
the related transactions. Realized and unrealiagtsgand losses on these contracts are recogmizbé same period as gains and losses ¢
hedged items. The Company also selectively hedg#siated transactions that are subject to foresgnhange exposure, primarily w
foreign currency exchange contracts, which aregiesed as cash flow hedges in accordance with AISC 8t September 30, 2013 and 2012
the Company estimates that an unfavorable 10% ehianidpe exchange rates would have decreased reslized gains by approximately $:
million and $23 million, respectively.

The Company has entered into crossrency interest rate swaps to selectively hedgéigms of its net investment in Japan. The cury
effects of the crossurrency interest rate swaps are reflected in tbeuraulated other comprehensive income (AOCI) actawithin
shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Cdsitrimc. where they offset gains and losses recbate the Compang’ net investment
Japan.

Interest Rates

The Company uses interest rate swaps to offsekjissure to interest rate movements. In accordaitbeASC 815, these outstanding sw
qualify and are designated as fair value hedges.Gdmpany had ten interest rate swaps totalinglillidn outstanding at September 30, 2
and eight interest rates swaps totaling $850 milboitstanding at September 30, 2012. A 10% increafiee average cost of the Company’
variable rate debt would have resulted in an unfave change in prax interest expense of approximately $6 milliord &8 million a
September 30, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

Commodities

The Company uses commodity contracts in the firsrdrivatives market in cases where commodityeprisk cannot be naturally offset
hedged through supply base fixed price contracteni@odity risks are systematically managed purst@ampblicy guidelines. As a cash fli
hedge, gains and losses resulting from the hedgstguments offset the gains or losses on purchafsie underlying commodities that will
used in the business. The maturities of the comtyp@dintracts coincide with the expected purchagd@tommaodities.

ENVIRONMENTAL, HEALTH AND SAFETY AND OTHER MATTERS

The Companys global operations are governed by environmeates land worker safety laws. Under various circuntsta, these laws impc
civil and criminal penalties and fines, as welliaginctive and remedial relief, for noncompliancedarequire remediation at sites wt
Company-related substances have been releasettiénémvironment.

The Company has expended substantial resourceallgloboth financial and managerial, to comply wathplicable environmental laws ¢
worker safety laws and to protect the environmertt workers. The Company believes it is in substhrtompliance with such laws &
maintains procedures designed to foster and ermsungliance. However, the Company has been, arfteifiuture may become, the subjec
formal or informal enforcement actions or procegdimegarding noncompliance with such laws or theediation of Companyelatec
substances released into the environment. Suchempatypically are resolved by negotiation with regory authorities resulting
commitments to compliance, abatement or remediaposgrams and in some cases payment of penaltietoridally, neither suc
commitments nor penalties imposed on the Compang haen material.

Environmental considerations are a part of all ificent capital expenditure decisions; however, engitures in fiscal 2018lated solely t
environmental compliance were not material. At b8tptember 30, 2013 and 2012 , the Company recadeidonmental liabilities o$2E
million . A charge to income is recorded when it is probahht a liability has been incurred and the amauirthe liability is reasonab
estimable. The Compars/environmental liabilities do not take into corsation any possible recoveries of future insurgroeeeds. Becau
of the uncertainties associated with environmergalediation activities at sites where the Compaay fre potentially liable, future expen
to remediate identified sites could be considerhidyer than the accrued
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liability. However, while neither the timing norgramount of ultimate costs associated with knowrirenmental remediation matters car
determined at this time, the Company does not @éxpat these matters will have a material adveffaeteon its financial position, results
operations or cash flows. In addition, the Comphay identified asset retirement obligations foriemmental matters that are expected t
addressed at the retirement, disposal, removalbandonment of existing owned facilities, primarity the Power Solutions business.
September 30, 2013 and 2012 , the Company recaoatatitional asset retirement obligations of $58ionland $76 million , respectively.

Additionally, the Company is involved in a numbdrproduct liability and various other casualty laits incident to the operation of
businesses. The Company maintains insurance ceel@yl records estimated costs for claims and efiiisis nature. It is management’
opinion that none of these will have a materialiverse effect on the Compasyfinancial position, results of operations or céelws (se
Note 21,"Commitments and Contingenciesf the notes to consolidated financial statemer@skts related to such matters were not ma
to the periods presented.

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

Previously reported quarterly amounts have beeisedwto reflect the retrospective application ¢ ompanys change in inventory costi
method for certain inventory in its Power Solutidnssiness to the first-in first-out (FIFO) methadr the last-in firsbut (LIFO). Refer t
Note 1,“Summary of Significant Accounting Policiesgf the notes to consolidated financial statemeatsfdrther details surrounding tl
accounting policy change.

(in millions, except per share data) First Second Third Fourth Full
(unaudited) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
2013(1)
Net sales $ 1042: $ 10,43 $ 10,83: $ 11,047 $ 42,73(
Gross profit 1,51¢€ 1,51¢ 1,64t 2,10z 6,77¢
Net income (3) 38¢ 194 572 141 1,297
Net income attributable to Johnson
Controls, Inc. 35¢ 164 55C 10t 1,17¢
Earnings per share (5)
Basic 0.5 0.2¢ 0.8C 0.1t 1.72
Diluted 0.5z 0.24 0.8C 0.1t 1.71
2012(2)
Net sales $ 10417 $ 10,56 $ 10,58: $ 10,39: $ 41,95¢
Gross profit 1,491 1,552 1,51¢ 1,581 6,14¢
Net income (4) 431 417 44z 21 1,311
Net income (loss) attributable to Johnson Controls,
Inc. 39¢ 37¢ 417 (8) 1,18¢
Earnings (loss) per share (5)
Basic 0.5¢ 0.5¢ 0.61 (0.0)) 1.74
Diluted 0.5¢ 0.5¢ 0.61 (0.0)) 1.72

(1) For the first, second, third and fourth questef fiscal 2013, the retrospective applicatiortred Companys change in inventory costi
method resulted in an increase (decrease) to grasis of $8 million, $27 million, $(35) million ath $11 million, respectively, and
increase (decrease) to net income attributablebmsbn Controls, Inc. of $5 million (less than $0fer diluted share), $16 milli
($0.03 per diluted share), $(21) million ($0.03 diuted share) and $7 million ($0.01 per dilutbdi®), respectively.

(2) For the first, second, third and fourth questef fiscal 2012, the retrospective applicatiortred Companys change in inventory costi
method resulted in a decrease to gross profit 6friflion, $1 million, $23 million and $1 milliorrespectively. For the first and th
quarters of fiscal 2012, the change resulted ie@eahse to net income attributable to Johnson Glentnc. of $28 million ($0.04 p
diluted share) and $14 million ($0.02 per dilutddre), respectively, and there was no significamdct for the second and fou
quarters of fiscal 2012.

(3)  The fiscal 2013 second quarter net income incl@@dsmillion of significant restructuring and impaient costs and an $82 million g
on acquisition of a partially-owned affiliate india in the Automotive Experience Seating segmeiné T
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fiscal 2013 third quarter net income includes $iiBion of significant restructuring and impairmecsts and a $29 million gain
business divestitures in the Automotive ExperieBeating segment. The fiscal 2013 fourth quartein@@me includes $758 million
significant restructuring and impairment costs4&émillion gain on divestiture of the HomeLink®oduct line net of transaction cc
in the Automotive Experience Electronics segmed@5million of net mark-tonarket gains on pension and postretirement plai6¢
million pension settlement gain and a $22 millioad on business divestiture including transactastscin the Building Efficiency Oth
segment. The preceding amounts are stated ontaypbasis.

4 The fiscal 2012 first quarter net income imga a $25 million gain on redemption of a warrantan existing Power Solutions partially-
owned affiliate. The fiscal 2012 second quarterinedme includes a $35 million gain on businesesliNures net of transaction cost
the Building Efficiency business and a $14 milliompairment of an equity investment in the Powen8ohs segment. The fiscal 2(
third quarter net income includes $52 million afrsficant restructuring and impairment costs. Tisedl 2012 fourth quarter net inco
includes $447 million of net mark-tmarket charges on pension and postretirement ladss245 million of significant restructuri
and impairment costs. The preceding amounts aredsta a pre-tax basis.

(5) Due to the use of the weightaderage shares outstanding for each quarter fopeting earnings per share, the sum of the quarpen
share amounts may not equal the per share amauthiefgear.

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

See “Risk Management” included in Item 7 - Managet'seDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditeomd Results of Operations.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Johi@ontrols, Inc.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaelisted in the accompanying index present faiityall material respects, the finani
position of Johnson Controls, Inc. and its subsiegat September 30, 2013 and 2Q&ad the results of their operations and theih dbsvs
for each of the three years in the period endedeBdmer 30, 2013 conformity with accounting principles generaligcepted in the Unit
States of America. In addition, in our opinion, fiancial statement schedule listed in the accamipg index presents fairly, in all mate
respects, the information set forth therein wheadrin conjunction with the related consolidatedhficial statements. Also in our opinion,
Company maintained, in all material respects, éffecinternal control over financial reporting ak $eptember 30, 2013based on criter
established inlnternal Control - Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohshe Treadwa
Commission (COSO). The Compamymanagement is responsible for these financiderstents and financial statement schedule
maintaining effective internal control over finaakcireporting and for its assessment of the effeci@ss of internal control over finani
reporting, included in ManagemesitReport on Internal Control Over Financial Repaytappearing under Iltem 9A. Our responsibilityd
express opinions on these financial statementsthenfinancial statement schedule, and on the Coypanternal control over financ
reporting based on our integrated audits. We caeduour audits in accordance with the standardshefPublic Company Accounti
Oversight Board (United States). Those standargisine that we plan and perform the audits to obtaasonable assurance about whethe
financial statements are free of material misstatgnand whether effective internal control overafinial reporting was maintained in
material respects. Our audits of the financialestegnts included examining, on a test basis, evasopporting the amounts and disclosur:
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made Bpagement, and evaluating the o
financial statement presentation. Our audit ofrimaé control over financial reporting included dbiag an understanding of internal con
over financial reporting, assessing the risk thataderial weakness exists, and testing and evalyisitie design and operating effectivene:
internal control based on the assessed risk. Oditsaalso included performing such other procedwssve considered necessary in
circumstances. We believe that our audits proviteaaonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrstatements, in 2013 the Company changed thegnitory costing method for cert
inventories. All periods have been retroactivelyised for this accounting change.

éPricewater houseCoopers LLP, 100 East Wisconsin Avenue, Milwaukee, WI 53202
T: (414)212- 1600, F: (414) 212- 1880, www.pwc.com/us
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A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeliregthe reliability of financie
reporting and the preparation of financial statetmdor external purposes in accordance with gelyemicepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgdnose policies and procedures that (i) pertaithéomaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assur
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoasizations of management
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readsleaassurance regarding prevention or timely deteaf unauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agect to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Milwaukee, Wisconsin
November 21, 2013
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Johnson Controls, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended September 30,

(in millions, except per share data) 2013 2012 2011
Net sales

Products and systems* $ 34,41: % 33,56. % 32,42(

Services* 8,31¢ 8,394 8,41:

42,73( 41,95¢ 40,83

Cost of sales

Products and systems* 29,19¢ 28,90¢ 27,67¢

Services* 6,75¢ 6,89¢ 7,10(

35,95 35,801 34,77

Gross profit 6,77¢ 6,14¢ 6,05¢
Selling, general and administrative expenses (3,965 (4,479 (4,399
Gain on business divestitures - net 48: 40 —
Restructuring and impairment costs (985) (297) —
Net financing charges (24¥) (239 (179
Equity income 40z 34C 29¢
Income before income taxes 2,46¢ 1,52( 1,79(
Provision for income taxes 1,16¢ 20¢ 25¢
Net income 1,297 1,311 1,53:
Income attributable to noncontrolling interests 11¢ 127 117
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. $ 1,17¢  $ 1,18 % 1,41

Earnings per share
Basic
Diluted

&

1.7z
1.71

&

174 ¢ 2.0¢
172 % 2.0¢

©
©

* Products and systems consist of Automotive Exgoee and Power Solutions products and system8aitding Efficiency installed
systems. Services are Building Efficiency technarad Global Workplace Solutions.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thénancial statements.
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Johnson Controls, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (kEs)

Year Ended September 30,

(in millions) 2013 2012 2011

Net income $ 1,297 $ 1,311 % 1,53:

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Foreign currency translation adjustments (20 (222) (110
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on deresitiv (5) 39 47
Unrealized gains (losses) on marketable commork stoc 2 (€N} 3
Pension and postretirement plans (16) (8 4
Other comprehensive loss (39 (192 (150
Total comprehensive income 1,25¢ 1,11¢ 1,38
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontroliitgrests 12C 12¢€ 11€
Comprehensive income attributable to Johnson Clsntirac. $ 113¢ $ 99: $ 1,26¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thénancial statements.
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Johnson Controls, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

(in millions, except par value and share data)
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $68 and $78, respectively

Inventories

Assets held for sale

Other current assets
Current assets

Property, plant and equipment - net
Goodwill

Other intangible assets - net
Investments in partially-owned affiliates
Other noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Equity

Short-term debt
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation and benefits
Liabilities held for sale
Other current liabilities

Current liabilities

Long-term debt

Pension and postretirement benefits

Other noncurrent liabilities
Long-term liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 21)
Redeemable noncontrolling interests

Common stock, $1.00 par value, shares authoriz8601000,000
shares issued: 2013 - 700,178,785; 2012 - 688,483,8

Capital in excess of par value
Retained earnings
Treasury stock, at cost (2013 - 15,643,146; 208,276,266 shares)
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Cdsittac.
Noncontrolling interests

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thénancial statements.

September 30,
2013 2012
1,05¢ 26t
7,20¢ 7,30¢
2,32t 2,34:
804 —
2,30¢ 2,821
13,69¢ 12,74:
6,58t 6,44(
6,58¢ 6,98:
99¢ 947
1,024 94¢
2,62: 2,89/
31,51¢ 30,95¢
11¢ 32z
81¢ 424
6,31¢ 6,11/
1,21t 1,09(
40z —
3,24¢ 2,90/
12,117 10,85¢
4,56( 5,321
75C 1,24¢
1,36( 1,504
6,67( 8,07:
157 25¢
70C 68¢
2,39¢ 2,047
9,32¢ 8,611
(531) 179
41¢ 45¢
12,31« 11,62¢
26( 14¢
12,57 11,77:
31,51¢ 30,95¢
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Johnson Controls, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended September 30,

(in millions) 2013 2012 2011
Operating Activities
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. $ 1,17¢  $ 1,182 % 1,41¢
Income attributable to noncontrolling interests 11¢ 127 117
Net income 1,297 1,311 1,53
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash praviole operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 952 824 731
Pension and postretirement benefit expense (income) (475) 47¢ 41C
Pension and postretirement contributions (97) (414 (451)
Equity in earnings of partially-owned affiliatestrof dividends received (86) (13¢) (15)
Deferred income taxes 272 (239 (25€)
Non-cash restructuring and impairment charges 58€ 53 —
Gain on divestitures - net (487%) (40 —
Fair value adjustment of equity investment (20€) 12 (89
Equity-based compensation 64 56 59
Other (21) (11) 2
Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding adtipris and divestitures:
Receivables (182) (119 (727)
Inventories (97) 10¢ (38¢)
Other assets (181) (367) (118
Restructuring reserves 234 19¢ (94)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 68€ (64) 345
Accrued income taxes 32z (75) 131
Cash provided by operating activities 2,68¢ 1,55¢ 1,07¢

Investing Activities

Capital expenditures (1,379) (1,83) (1,325
Sale of property, plant and equipment 11€ 58 54
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired (123) (30) (1,22¢)
Business divestitures 761 10§ —
Changes in long-term investments (10 (100 (140
Other 53 6 —

Cash used by investing activities (580) (1,797 (2,637)

Financing Activities

Increase (decrease) in short-term debt - net (297 (302) 51C
Increase in long-term debt 114 1,26( 1,852
Repayment of long-term debt (490 (36) (787)
Stock repurchases (350 (102) —
Payment of cash dividends (513) (477) (413
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options 254 40 10¢
Cash paid to acquire a noncontrolling interest (64) (115 (29
Other 32 (61) (5)

Cash provided (used) by financing activities (1,219 207 1,23¢
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and caslaéts (99) 34 19
Cash held for sale 4 — —
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 79C 8 (303
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 26E 257 56C

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 1,058 % 26 % 257




The accompanying notes are an integral part of thénancial statements.
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Johnson Controls, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity Attbutable to Johnson Controls, Inc.

Accumulated

Capital in Treasury Other
Common  Excess of Retained Stock, Comprehensive
(in millions, except per share data) Total Stock Par Value  Earnings at Cost Income (Loss)
At September 30, 2010 (previously reported) $ 10,07 $ 9 $ 244 $ 6,89 $ (74 $ 79¢
Inventory costing policy change and common stock
par value change (Note 1) 112 667 (667) 112 — —
At September 30, 2010 (revised) 10,18 67€ 1,781 7,00z (74) 79¢
Comprehensive income (loss) 1,26¢ — — 1,41¢ — (149
Cash dividends
Common ($0.64 per share) (435) — — (435) — —
Redemption value adjustment attributable to
redeemable noncontrolling interests (32 — — 32 — —
Other, including options exercised 172 7 16E — — —
At September 30, 2011 11,15¢ 682 1,94¢ 7,95( (74) 64¢
Comprehensive income (loss) 99:¢ — — 1,18¢ — (197)
Cash dividends
Common ($0.72 per share) (492) — — (492 — —
Redemption value adjustment attributable to
redeemable noncontrolling interests (35 — — (35 — —
Repurchases of common stock (102) — — — (102) —
Other, including options exercised 107 5 101 4 3 —
At September 30, 2012 11,62t 68¢ 2,047 8,611 (179 45¢
Comprehensive income (loss) 1,13¢ — — 1,17¢ — (40
Cash dividends
Common ($0.76 per share) (520 — — (520 — —
Redemption value adjustment attributable to
redeemable noncontrolling interests 5¢ — — 59 — —
Repurchases of common stock (350 — — — (350 —
Other, including options exercised 362 12 352 — 2 —
At September 30, 2013 $ 1231 $ 70C $ 2,39¢ $ 9328 $ (531 $ 41¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thénancial statements.
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Johnson Controls, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tbeoants of Johnson Controls, Inc. and its domemstid nond.S. subsidiaries that ¢
consolidated in conformity with accounting pringpl generally accepted in the United States of Acae(U.S. GAAP). All significar
intercompany transactions have been eliminatecediments in partiallpwned affiliates are accounted for by the equityhoé when th
Company’s interest exceeds 20% and the Companyrdadsgve a controlling interest.

Under certain criteria as provided for in Financfdcounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Stadd Codification (ASC) 81
“Consolidation,” the Company may consolidate aipdytowned affiliate. To determine whether to colidate a partiallyewned affiliate, th
Company first determines if the entity is a vargabiterest entity (VIE). An entity is consideredtie a VIE if it has one of the followil
characteristics: 1) the entity is thinly capitatize?) residual equity holders do not control theitgn3) equity holders are shielded fr
economic losses or do not participate fully in &mity’s residual economics; or 4) the entity watablished with nosubstantive voting. If tt
entity meets one of these characteristics, the Gomphen determines if it is the primary benefigiaf the VIE. The party with the power
direct activities of the VIE that most significaniimpact the VIES economic performance and the potential to abkeriefits or losses tt
could be significant to the VIE is considered thianary beneficiary and consolidates the VIE. If gty is not considered a VIE, then
Company applies the voting interest model to deiteerwhether or not the Company shall consolidagepifrtially-owned affiliate.

Consolidated VIEs

Based upon the criteria set forth in ASC 810, tleenany has determined that it was the primary beinef in threeVIEs for the reportin
periods ended September 30, 2013 and 2042 the Company absorbs significant economichi®fentities and has the power to direct
activities that are considered most significarthi® entities.

Two of the VIEs manufacture products in North Aroarfor the automotive industry. The Company furtgs éntities’ shorterm liquidity
needs through revolving credit facilities and Haes power to direct the activities that are congidanost significant to the entities througt
key customer supply relationships.

During the three month period ended December 311 28 pre-existing VIE accounted for under the gguiethod was reorganized inttaree
separate investments as a result of the countgrpaercising its option to put its interest to @empany. The Company acquired additir
interests in twaof the reorganized group entities. The reorgangmdip entities are considered to be VIEs as therattwner party has be
provided decision making rights but does not hayditg at risk. The Company is considered the primzgneficiary of onef the entities du
to the Company power pertaining to decisions over significanivéiges of the entity. As such, the VIE has beemsolidated within tt
Company’s consolidated statements of financial timsi The impact of the consolidation of the entdy the Companyg consolidate
statements of income for the years ended SepteBihe2013 and 2012 was not material. The VIE is rthasea casbligor under a third par
debt agreement of $175 millignmaturing in fiscal 2020, under which it could bew subject to paying more than its allocated sbatae
third party debt in the event of bankruptcy of awemore of the other co-obligors. The otheradiigors, all related parties in which
Company is an equity investor, consist of the rengi group entities involved in the reorganizatids part of the overall reorganizat
transaction, the Company has also provided finarsigport to the group entities in the form of Isaotaling $64 million, which ar
subordinate to the third party debt agreement. Cbepany is a significant customer of certainotiigors, resulting in a remote possibility
loss. Additionally, the Company is subject to aflguaranty expiring in fiscal 2022; in the evdmdttthe other owner party no longer owns
part of the group entities due to sale or transfer,Company has guaranteed that the proceedseddeom the sale or transfer will not be |
than $25 million. The Company has partnered with the group entitiedesign and manufacture battery componentshiiPower Solutior
business.
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The carrying amounts and classification of assetsmé of which are restricted) and liabilities irdda in the Compang’ consolidate
statements of financial position for the consokdVIEs are as follows (in millions):

September 30,
2013 2012
Current assets $ 27 $ 19¢
Noncurrent assets 13¢ 144
Total assets $ 41z $ 343
Current liabilities $ 21z $ 17z
Noncurrent liabilities 39 25
Total liabilities $ 251 $ 197

The Company did not have a significant variabler@st in any other consolidated VIEs for the presstreporting periods.
Nonconsolidated VIEs

The Company has a 40% interest in an equity methaabstee whereby the investee is a VIE. The ineepteduces and sells leadid batterie
of which the Company will both purchase and sum@stain batteries to complement each investmenh@i’ portfolio. The Company has
contractual right to purchase the remaining 60%tgdaterest in the investee between May 2014 aral M016 (the “call option”)If the
Company does not exercise the call option prigtstexpiration in May 2016, for a period of shonths thereafter the Company is subject
contractual obligation at the counterparty’s optiorsell the Company’s equity investment in theestee to the counterparty (thepurchas
option”). The purchase price is fixed under both the caliompand the repurchase option. Based upon theriariset forth in ASC 810, tl
Company has determined that the investee is a ¥lEha equity holders, through their equity investtegmay not participate fully in t
entity’s residual economics. The Company is not the pyinb@neficiary as the Company does not have the ptovenake key operatil
decisions considered to be most significant to\the. Therefore, the investee is accounted for urtderequity method of accounting as
Companys interest exceeds 20% and the Company does netehawntrolling interest. The investment balancduthed within investments
partially-owned affiliates in the consolidated staent of financial position at September 30, 20d@ 2012 was $56 million and $55 millign
respectively, which represents the Companyaximum exposure to loss. Current assets antiitiedrelated to the VIE are immaterial ¢
represent normal course of business trade receiwadold payables for all presented periods. In @ct@b13, the Company purchasec
additional 50% equity interest in the investeeimdgthe Company's total interest in the investe®8G%. As a result this transaction, the fi
price call option and repurchase option no longésteand the Company will begin to consolidate itheestee under the voting interest me
in the first quarter of fiscal 2014.

As mentioned previously within the “ConsolidatedEgl section above, during the three month periatkdrDecember 31, 2011, a mesting
VIE was reorganized into three separate investmess result of the counterparty exercising itsoopto put its interest to the Company.
reorganized group entities are considered to bes\dkthe other owner party has been provided deasaking rights but does not have eg
at risk. The Company is not considered to be tiaany beneficiary of twaf the entities as the Company cannot make keyatipgrdecision
considered to be most significant to the VIEs. Efae, the entities are accounted for under théyequethod of accounting as the Company’
interest exceeds 20% and the Company does notéhawatrolling interest. The Company’s maximum expedo loss includes the partially-
owned affiliate investment balance of $57 milliamda$52 million at September 30, 2013 and 201@spectively, as well as the subordin
loan from the Company, third party debt agreemeat #oor guaranty mentioned previously within thédhsolidated VIEs'section abow
Current liabilities due to the VIEs are not matkaiad represent normal course of business tradebpey for all presented periods.

The Company did not have a significant variableri@st in any other nonconsolidated VIEs for thes@néed reporting periods.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statesiémtconformity with U.S. GAAP requires manageminiake estimates and assumpt

that affect the reported amounts of assets anditi@b and disclosure of contingent assets arilitees at the date of the financial statem
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenseg the reporting period. Actual results coultfetifrom those estimates.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, axtsaeceivable, shoterm debt and accounts payable approximate theiying values. Se
Note 10,“Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”datNote 11, “Fair Value Measurement®f the notes to consolidated finan
statements for fair value of financial instrumeintsjuding derivative instruments, hedging actadtiand long-term debt.

Assets and Liabilities Held for Sale

The Company classifies assets and liabilities @apgroups) to be sold as held for sale in theogen which all of the following criteria a
met: management, having the authority to approeeatttion, commits to a plan to sell the disposalpr the disposal group is available
immediate sale in its present condition subjecy ¢émlterms that are usual and customary for sdlesah disposal groups; an active progra
locate a buyer and other actions required to camplee plan to sell the disposal group have betiatied; the sale of the disposal grou
probable, and transfer of the disposal group issetqn to qualify for recognition as a completece s&lthin one year, except if events
circumstances beyond the Company's control extemgériod of time required to sell the disposalugrbeyond one year; the disposal grot
being actively marketed for sale at a price thae&sonable in relation to its current fair valaed actions required to complete the plan ind
that it is unlikely that significant changes to fhian will be made or that the plan will be withdra

The Company initially measures a disposal groupithelassified as held for sale at the lower sfciarrying value or fair value less any cos
sell. Any loss resulting from this measurementeisognized in the period in which the held for saiteria are met. Conversely, gains are
recognized on the sale of a disposal group urgildate of sale. The Company assesses the fair ghl@isposal group less any costs to
each reporting period it remains classified as lietdsale and reports any subsequent changes adjastment to the carrying value of
disposal group, as long as the new carrying vahgs chot exceed the carrying value of the dispasalpat the time it was initially classified
held for sale.

Upon determining that a disposal group meets therier to be classified as held for sale, the Comypeeports the assets and liabilities of
disposal group, if material, in the line items a&sdeeld for sale and liabilities held for sale,pedively, in the consolidated statemen
financial position. Refer to Note 3, "Assets andliiities Held for Sale," of the notes to consdiath financial statements for furtl
information.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmenith a maturity of three months or less when pasg to be cash equivalents.

At September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company hetdaed cash of approximately $32 million and $2dion , respectively, within cash a
cash equivalents. These amounts primarily wereect from customers for payment of maintenancteseoxler contract, and withdrawals
restricted for this purpose.

Receivables

Receivables consist of amounts billed and curreshtly from customers and unbilled costs and acqousfits related to revenues on lotegsr
contracts that have been recognized for accoumimgoses but not yet billed to customers. The Commxtends credit to customers in
normal course of business and maintains an allogvéorcdoubtful accounts resulting from the inabilir unwillingness of customers to mi
required payments. The allowance for doubtful aot®us based on historical experience, existingnestc conditions and any spec
customer collection issues the Company has idedftifi

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or etarkinished goods and work-precess inventories include material, labor and ufeaiuring
overhead costs.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, the Compahgriged its method of inventory costing for cerfaientory in its Power Solutions busin
to the first-in first-out (FIFO) method from thestain first-out (LIFO) method. The Company's other businesksesdetermine costs using
FIFO method. Prior to the change, Power Solutiaiized two methods of inventory costing: LIFO fmventories in the U.S. and FIFO
inventories in other countries. The Company bebebat the FIFO method is preferable as it bettBects the current value of inventory on
Companys consolidated statement of financial position,vistes better matching of revenues and expensesitgas uniformity across tt
Company’s global operations with respect to thehmetof inventory accounting and improves compaitgbitith the Companys peers. Tt
change has been reported through retrospectivécapph of the new accounting policy to all perigoesented and resulted irf& million
increase (less than $0.01 per diluted
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share), $16 million increase ( $0.03 per dilutedrehand $21 million decrease ( $0@& diluted share) to net income attributable tondor
Controls, Inc. for the quarters ended Decembe312, March 31, 2013 and June 30, 2013, respegtivel

The impact of all adjustments made to the conswitifinancial statements presented is summarizéukifollowing table (in millions, except

per share data):

2013
Previous Effect of
Method As Reported Change

Consolidated Statement of Income
Cost of sales

Products and systems $ 29,207 $ 29,19¢ (12)
Gross profit 6,761 6,77¢ 11
Income before income taxes 2,45¢ 2,46t 11
Provision for income taxes 1,16¢ 1,16¢ 4
Net income 1,29( 1,29 7
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. 1,171 1,17¢ 7
Earnings per share

Basic 1.71 1.7z 0.01

Diluted 1.7C 1.71 0.01
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Lsp
Net income $ 1,29C $ 1,297 7
Total comprehensive income 1,251 1,25¢ 7
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Inventories $ 2,19¢ $ 2,32¢ 127
Other current assets 2,35¢ 2,30¢ (50)
Retained earnings 9,251 9,32¢ 77
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Cash provided by operating activities

Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. $ 1,171 $ 1,17¢ 7

Net income 1,29( 1,29 7

Deferred income taxes 26¢ 273 4

Inventories (86) (97 (11
Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity

Attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.

Retained earnings at September 30, 2012 $ 8541 $ 8,611 70
Retained earnings at September 30, 2013 9,251 9,32¢ 77
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2012

Previously Effect of
Reported Revised Change

Consolidated Statement of Income
Cost of sales

Products and systems $ 28,83¢ $ 28,90¢ $ 70
Gross profit 6,21¢ 6,14¢ (70
Income before income taxes 1,59C 1,52( (70
Provision for income taxes 237 20¢ (28)
Net income 1,35: 1,311 (42
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. 1,22¢ 1,18¢ (42
Earnings per share

Basic 1.8C 1.74 (0.0¢)

Diluted 1.7¢ 1.72 (0.0¢)
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Lsp
Net income $ 1,35 % 1,311 % (42
Total comprehensive income 1,161 1,11¢ (42
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Inventories $ 2,227 % 2,34: % 11€
Other current assets 2,87: 2,821 (46)
Retained earnings 8,541 8,611 70
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Cash provided by operating activities

Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. $ 1,22¢ $ 1,18 $ (42

Net income 1,35z 1,311 (42

Deferred income taxes (20€) (239 (28)

Inventories 39 10¢ 70
Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity

Attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.

Retained earnings at September 30, 2011 $ 7,83t $ 7,95C $ 112
Retained earnings at September 30, 2012 8,541 8,611 70
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2011

Previously Effect of
Reported Revised Change

Consolidated Statement of Income
Cost of sales

Products and systems $ 27,67 % 27,67 $ 1)
Gross profit 6,05¢ 6,05¢ 1
Income before income taxes 1,78¢ 1,79( 1
Provision for income taxes 257 25¢ 1
Net income 1,532 1,532 —
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. 1,41¢ 1,41¢ —
Earnings per share

Basic 2.0¢ 2.0¢ —

Diluted 2.0¢ 2.0¢ —
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Lsp
Net income $ 153: $ 153 $ —
Total comprehensive income 1,382 1,38 —
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Cash provided by operating activities

Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. $ 1,41t % 1,41 % —

Net income 1,532 1,532 —

Deferred income taxes (257) (25€) 1

Inventories (387) (38¢) (D]
Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity

Attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.

Retained earnings at September 30, 2010 $ 6,89C $ 7,00z $ 11z
Retained earnings at September 30, 2011 7,83¢ 7,95( 112

Pre-Production Costs Related to Long-Term Supply Arangements

The Companys policy for engineering, research and developnaerd, other design and development costs relatpdottucts that will be so
under longterm supply arrangements requires such costs texpensed as incurred or capitalized if reimbursenfram the customer
contractually assured. Income related to recovéthiese costs is recorded within selling, genemnal administrative expense in the consolid
statements of income. At September 30, 2013 an@ 2Ghe Company recorded within the consolidatedestants of financial positic
approximately $259 million and $382 million respectively, of engineering and research andeldpment costs for which custor
reimbursement is contractually assured. The reisdhle costs are recorded in other current assegribursement will occur in less than
year and in other noncurrent assets if reimbursémgiroccur beyond one yez

Costs for molds, dies and other tools used to npmkeucts that will be sold under lotgrm supply arrangements are capitalized w
property, plant and equipment if the Company hésth the assets or has the raamcelable right to use the assets during the ¢étime suppl
arrangement. Capitalized items, if specificallyigeed for a supply arrangement, are amortized thverterm of the arrangement; othern
amounts are amortized over the estimated usefes lof the assets. The carrying values of asset&lizgd in accordance with the forega
policy are periodically reviewed for impairment wigwer events or changes in circumstances inditateits carrying amount may not
recoverable. At September 30, 2013 and 2012 , appately $99 million and $113 million respectively, of costs for molds, dies and ¢
tools were capitalized within property, plant angui@ment which represented assets to which the @agnghad title. In addition,

September 30, 2013 and 2012he Company recorded within the consolidatedestants of financial position in other current as
approximately $297 million and $284 millionrespectively, of costs for molds, dies and ottveds for which customer reimbursemer
contractually assured.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at €megtreciation is provided over the estimated uskfek of the respective assets using
straight-line method for financial reporting purpesand accelerated methods for income tax purp@besestimated useful lives range fr@m
to 40 years for buildings and improvements and fota 15 years for machinery and equipment.

The Company capitalizes interest on borrowingsrduthe active construction period of major capitajects. Capitalized interest is adde
the cost of the underlying assets and is amortized the useful lives of the assets.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill reflects the cost of an acquisition in egs of the fair values assigned to identifiable assets acquired. The Company rev
goodwill for impairment during the fourth fiscal ajger or more frequently if events or changes muwnstances indicate the asset migt
impaired. The Company performs impairment revieasifs reporting units, which have been determitede the Companyg’ reportabl
segments or one level below the reportable segmentsrtain instances, using a fair value methosetlaon managemestjudgments ar
assumptions or third party valuations. The faiueabf a reporting unit refers to the price that lddee received to sell the unit as a whole i
orderly transaction between market participanthatmeasurement date. In estimating the fair vahee Company uses multiples of earn
based on the average of historical, published piakiof earnings of comparable entities with simdperations and economic characteris
In certain instances, the Company uses discourgshd ffow analyses or estimated sales price to durslupport the fair value estimates.
inputs utilized in the analyses are classified @gdl 3 inputs within the fair value hierarchy adinkd in ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurement.’
The estimated fair value is then compared withcduweying amount of the reporting unit, includingoeded goodwill. The Company is sub
to financial statement risk to the extent that therying amount exceeds the estimated fair valire impairment testing performed by
Company in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 20d8i¢ated that the estimated fair value of the Auitime Experience Interiors reporting L
did not exceed its corresponding carrying amoustuiting recorded goodwill, and an impairment existdlo other reporting unit w
determined to be at risk of failing step one of go@dwill impairment test as the impairment tesfirgformed indicated that the estimated
value of each reporting unit substantially exceeittedorresponding carrying amount including reeardjoodwill at September 30, 2013.
impairments existed at September 30, 2012 and 2011.

Refer to Note 6, "Goodwill and Other Intangible &tss" of the notes to consolidated financial staets for further information regarding
goodwill impairment charge recorded in the fourtlader of fiscal 2013.

Indefinite lived other intangible assets are aisbject to at least annual impairment testing. Othtamgible assets with definite lives conti
to be amortized over their estimated useful lived are subject to impairment testing if events linges in circumstances indicate tha
asset might be impaired. A considerable amount afiagement judgment and assumptions are requirpdrforming the impairment tes
While the Company believes the judgments and asSongpused in the impairment tests are reasonafte r®m impairment existed
September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, different asomspcould change the estimated fair values dmetefore, impairment charges coulc
required, which could be material to the consoliddinancial statements.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews lonlgred assets, including property, plant and equipinad other intangible assets with definite livies,impairmen
whenever events or changes in circumstances imdibat the asset’s carrying amount may not be exaie. The Company conducts its long
lived asset impairment analyses in accordance A88 360-10-15, “Impairment or Disposal of Long-LivAssets.” ASC 360-1Q5 require
the Company to group assets and liabilities atlalaest level for which identifiable cash flows deggely independent of the cash flows
other assets and liabilities and evaluate the @geep against the sum of the undiscounted futash ¢lows. If the undiscounted cash flow:
not indicate the carrying amount of the asset@sverable, an impairment charge is measured aanttoeint by which the carrying amoun
the asset group exceeds its fair value based oonudised cash flow analysis or appraisals. See Notélmpairment of Long-Lived Assetsgf
the notes to consolidated financial statementslifariosure of the impairment analyses performethbyCompany during fiscal 2013 , 2042¢
2011.

Percentage-of-Completion Contracts

The Building Efficiency business records certaingderm contracts under the percentageafipletion method of accounting. Under
method, sales and gross profit are recognized ak iw@erformed based on the relationship betwextmah costs incurred and total estim:
costs at completion. The Company records costs eandings in excess of billings on uncompleted @mtér primarily within accoun
receivable and billings in excess of costs andiegsnon uncompleted contracts primarily within atlearrent liabilities in the consolidat
statements of financial position. Costs and eamingxcess of billings related
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to these contracts were $489 million and $531 arillat September 30, 2013 and 2QX2spectively. Billings in excess of costs andhaeys
related to these contracts were $263 million aril$8illion at September 30, 2013 and 2012 , respsgt

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s Building Efficiency business recogsizevenue from certain loigrm contracts over the contractual period unde
percentage-otompletion (POC) method of accounting. This metbbdccounting recognizes sales and gross profitak is performed bas
on the relationship between actual costs incurretlitatal estimated costs at completion. Recogniegdnues that will not be billed under
terms of the contract until a later date are reedrgrimarily in accounts receivable. Likewise, cants where billings to date have exces
recognized revenues are recorded primarily in otherent liabilities. Changes to the original esties may be required during the life of
contract and such estimates are reviewed montlilesSand gross profit are adjusted using the cuivelaatchup method for revisions
estimated total contract costs and contract valisSmated losses are recorded when identifiedinSlagainst customers are recognize
revenue upon settlement. The amount of accountiviadgle due after one year is not significant. Tlse of the POC method of accoun
involves considerable use of estimates in detengimevenues, costs and profits and in assigningatheunts to accounting periods.
periodic reviews have not resulted in adjustmeht tvere significant to the Compansytesults of operations. The Company contini
evaluates all of the assumptions, risks and urioéiga inherent with the application of the POC hoet of accounting.

The Building Efficiency business enters into extethavarranties and lontgrm service and maintenance agreements with nertaitomers. F
these arrangements, revenue is recognized onigldthiae basis over the respective contract term.

The Companys Building Efficiency business also sells certagrating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) arefrigeration products a
services in bundled arrangements, where multiptelyets and/or services are involved. In accordamite ASU No. 2009-13, Revenu
Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-Deliverable RevenArrangements - A Consensus of the FASB Emernigisiges Task Forcethe Compan
divides bundled arrangements into separate debiesand revenue is allocated to each deliveradded on the relative selling price mett
Significant deliverables within these arrangementdude equipment, commissioning, service labor amtended warranties. In order
estimate relative selling price, market data aaddfer price studies are utilized. Approximatelyrfto twelve monthseparate the timing of t
first deliverable until the last piece of equipméntdelivered, and there may be extended warramgngements with duration of one fige
years commencing upon the end of the standard mtgirperiod.

In all other cases, the Company recognizes revantie time title passes to the customer or ascgsrare performed.
Research and Development Costs

Expenditures for research activities relating todorct development and improvement are charged stgmioome as incurred and inclu
within selling, general and administrative expengesthe consolidated statement of income. Such mdipgres for the years enc
September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $1,00®mjl$1,025 million and $876 million , respectiyel

A portion of the costs associated with these a@iwiis reimbursed by customers and, for the figears ended September 30, 2013 , 2812
2011 were $448 million , $516 million and $366 iitl , respectively.

Earnings Per Share

The Company presents both basic and diluted eamiag share (EPS) amounts. Basic EPS is calcutgtelividing net income attributable
Johnson Controls, Inc. by the weighted average murmbcommon shares outstanding during the regppariod. Diluted EPS is calculated
dividing net income attributable to Johnson Comstrdhc. by the weighted average number of commameshand common equivalent sh
outstanding during the reporting period that adeutated using the treasury stock method for stmoftons and unvested restricted stock.
Note 13,“Earnings per Share,” of the notes to consolidditeaihcial statements for the calculation of earsipgr share.

Foreign Currency Translation

Substantially all of the Comparsyinternational operations use the respective logakncy as the functional currency. Assets aadilities o
international entities have been translated abpgend exchange rates, and income and expenses hawdraeslated using average exchi
rates for the period. Monetary assets and liaeditlenominated in non-functional currencies arasae§l to reflect periodnd exchange rat
The aggregate transaction gains (losses), neeadfitpact of foreign currency hedges, included inimeome for the years end&tptember 3
2013, 2012 and 2011 were $(25) million , $12 milland $(22) million , respectively.

66




Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company has written policies and proceduresplaze all financial instruments under the direetof corporate treasury and restric
derivative transactions to those intended for heglgiurposes. The use of financial instruments percalative purposes is strictly prohibit
The Company uses financial instruments to managantarket risk from changes in foreign exchangesyatemmodity prices, stodbase:
compensation liabilities and interest rates.

The fair values of all derivatives are recordedha consolidated statements of financial positibime change in a derivativefair value i
recorded each period in current earnings or accateailother comprehensive income, depending on whéib derivative is designated as
of a hedge transaction and if so, the type of heédgesaction. See Note 10, “Derivative Instrumemd Hedging Activities,” and Note 11F&ir
Value Measurements,” of the notes to consolidabeantial statements for disclosure of the Compsirdgrivative instruments and hedc
activities.

Pension and Postretirement Benefits

The Company utilizes a mark-toarket approach for recognizing pension and pastreent benefit expenses, including measuring theke
related value of plan assets at fair value andgmieong actuarial gains and losses in the fourtargr of each fiscal year or at the date
remeasurement event. Refer to Note 15, "RetirerRéanis," of the notes to consolidated financialestents for disclosure of the Compa
pension and postretirement benefit plans.

Retrospective Changes

In addition to the change in inventory costing noetldiscussed in the "Inventories” section abovaateamounts in the prior years have t
revised to conform to the current year’s preseomati

Effective October 1, 2012, the Company reorganibedreportable segments within its Automotive Eigrare business to align with its n
management reporting structure and business aetivids a result of this change, Automotive Exparéeis comprised of threeew reportabl
segments for financial reporting purposes: Seatintgriors and Electronics. Historical informatidrvas been revised to reflect the |
Automotive Experience reportable segment structtefer to Note 6, “Goodwill and Other Intangible sé$s,” and Note 19,Segmer
Information,” of the notes to consolidated finahsi@tements for further information.

In January 2013, the Company’s shareholders apgravestatement of the Compasyirticles of incorporation that included the siifiqztion
of the par value of the Company’s common stock lignging the par value from $0.01 7/18 per shaflt60per share. This change resu
in an increase to common stock and correspondihgcten in capital in excess of par value in thasaidated statements of financial posi
and is reported through retrospective applicatithe new par value for all periods presented.

The net gains related to business divestituresi@neincluded in the gain on business divestiturast-line within the consolidated statem:
of income. In the prior year, net gains relatetidsiness divestitures were included in the selljameral and administrative expenses line.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standafpdate (ASU) No. 20134, "Income Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of anedognize
Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforwardimilar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforwasdsts." ASU No. 2013t1 clarifies the
companies should present an unrecognized tax bexseéi reduction to a deferred tax asset for apetating loss carryforward, a similar
loss or a tax credit carryforward. ASU No. 201 Bwill be effective prospectively for the Compaioy the quarter ending December 31, 2!
with early adoption permitted. The Company is cotlseassessing the impact on its consolidated mste of financial position; however, 1
adoption of this guidance will have no impact o@a @ompany's consolidated results of operations.

In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 20IR- "Foreign Currency Matters (Topic 830): Parerttcounting for the Cumulati
Translation Adjustment upon Derecognition of Certaubsidiaries or Groups of Assets within a Forégtity or of an Investment in a Fore
Entity." ASU No. 2013035 clarifies when companies should release the ative translation adjustment (CTA) into net incomleen a pare
either sells a part or all of its investment inoaefgn entity or no longer holds a controlling ficéal interest in a subsidiary or group of as
within a foreign entity. Additionally, ASU No. 2015 states that CTA should be released into neniigcopon an acquirer obtaining contrc
an acquiree in which it held an equity interest ieaimately before the acquisition date (step acqaigit ASU No. 20135 will be effectivi
prospectively for the Company for the quarter egdin
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December 31, 2014, with early adoption permittdue $ignificance of this guidance for the Compangependent on any future derecogni
events involving the Company's foreign entities.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-"Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): ReportingAofiounts Reclassified Out
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.” ASU NA.3X0R requires companies to provide information atlbetamounts reclassified out
accumulated other comprehensive income by compormelditionally, companies are required to discldBese reclassifications by ei
respective line item on the statements of incom@UMANo0. 201392 is effective for the Company for the quartereshdecember 31, 20:
though the Company has early adopted as permittieel.adoption of this guidance had no impact onGbenpany's consolidated financ
condition or results of operations. Refer to Nofe "Equity and Noncontrolling Interests," of thetemto consolidated financial statement:
disclosures regarding other comprehensive income.

In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU No. 2012-02,digibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): TestindefiniteLived Intangible Assets fi
Impairment.” ASU No. 2012 provides companies an option first to assesktafine factors to determine whether the existeocevents an
circumstances indicates that it is more likely thaot that the indefinitéived intangible asset is impaired. If, as a resilthe qualitativ
assessment, it is determined that it is not mdmylithan not that the indefiniléred intangible asset is impaired, then the Congpanno
required to take further action. ASU No. 2012-02effective for the Company for impairment testsindefinitedived intangible asse
performed in the current fiscal year. The adoptibthis guidance had no impact on the Comparmgnsolidated financial condition or result
operations.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011*RBalance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about @tfsg Assets and Liabilities ASU
No. 201:-11 requires additional quantitative and qualitatdisclosures of gross and net information regardingncial instruments ai
derivative instruments that are offset or eligifie offset in the consolidated statement of finahpiosition. ASU No. 201141 will be effectiv
for the Company for the quarter ending Decembe2813. The adoption of this guidance will have mpact on the Compang/’consolidate
financial condition or results of operations.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011408angibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Ting Goodwill for Impairment.”
ASU No. 201108 provides companies an option to perform a catalg assessment to determine whether further gitlddypairment testing i
necessary. If, as a result of the qualitative @sseat, it is determined that it is more likely thaot that a reporting und’fair value is less th.
its carrying amount, the two-step quantitative impant test is required. Otherwise, no furtheritesis required. ASU No. 20108 is effectiw
for the Company for goodwill impairment tests pemied in the current fiscal year. The adoption a$ thuidance had no impact on
Company'’s consolidated financial condition or résof operations.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, “@ahensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Qetmgnsive Income.ASU
No. 201:-05 eliminates the option to present componentstioér comprehensive income as part of the statenfestiareholdersequity. All
non-owner changes in shareholderguity instead must be presented either in a sic@iéinuous statement of comprehensive income twa
separate but consecutive statements. ASU No. R8Mas effective for the Company for the quarteteehDecember 31, 2012. The adof
of this guidance had no impact on the Compamgnsolidated financial condition or results oéi@gions. Refer to the consolidated staten
of comprehensive income (loss) and Note 14, “Eqaityl Noncontrolling Interestsgf the notes to consolidated financial statemeat
disclosures regarding other comprehensive income.

2. ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

During fiscal 2013, the Company completed threeusitipns for a combined purchase price, net ohcasquired, of $123 million all ol
which was paid as of September 30, 2013. The aitiguis in the aggregate were not material to thenfany's consolidated financ
statements. In connection with the acquisitiong, @ompany recorded goodwill of $266 millionThe purchase price allocations may
subsequently adjusted to reflect final valuatiaindsts. Twoof the acquisitions increased the Company's owngifsbm a noncontrolling 1
controlling interest. As a result, the Company rded a combined non-cash gain of $106 milliorAutomotive Experience Seating eq|
income to adjust the Company's existing equity stvents to fair value.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, the Comypa&ompleted its divestiture of its Automotive Expace Electronics' HomeLink@roduc
line to Gentex Corporation. The selling price wd9® million, all of which was received as of September 30,3204 connection with tf
HomeLink® product line divestiture, the Companyaeted a gain, net of transaction costs, of $476ianiland reduced goodwill b$177
million in the Automotive Experience Electronics segmerfte Tontinuing process to sell the remainder of Almtomotive Experienc
Electronics business is progressing, and the bssiie classified as held for sale in the consddidiattatement of financial position as
September 30, 2013. Refer to Note 3, "Assets atbilities Held for Sale,” of the notes to consdl@h financial statements for furtl
disclosure related to the Company's assets antiebheld for sale.
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Also during fiscal 2013, the Company completed daditional divestitures for a combined sales pnie,of cash transferred, of $60 millipn
all of which was received as of September 30, 20h@. divestitures were not material to the Commanghsolidated financial statements
connection with the divestitures, the Company rdedra gain of $29 million and reduced goodwill by5$million in the Automotivi
Experience Seating segment, and recorded a lossf transaction costs, of $22 million in the Burld Efficiency Other segment.

During fiscal 2012, the Company completed threeussttipns for a combined purchase price, net ohajuired, of $38 million all of whict
was paid as of September 30, 2012. The acquisitiotise aggregate were not material to the Compaoghsolidated financial statements
connection with the acquisitions, the Company réedrgoodwill of $50 million . As a result of tvaf the acquisitions, each of which incree
the Company’s ownership from a noncontrolling tatcolling interest, the Company recorded an aggeegan-cash gain of $12 millionof
which $9 million was recorded within Power Solusoequity income and $3 milliowas recorded in Automotive Experience Seating &
income, to adjust the Company’s existing equityestments in the partially-owned affiliates to fealue.

During fiscal 2012, the Company completed threeestitures for a combined sales price of $105 mmilliall of which was received as
September 30, 2012. The divestitures in the ag¢gagare not material to the Compasyonsolidated financial statements. In conneaiiith
the divestitures, the Company recorded a gainohétansaction costs, of $40 million and reduceddyuill by $34 millionin the Building
Efficiency business.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, the Compacquired an additional 49% of a Power Solutjpadially-owned affiliate. The acquisitic
increased the Company’s ownership percentage t&100he Company paid approximately $143 millionclering cash acquired @11
million ) for the additional ownership percentagelancurred approximately $15 millioof acquisition costs and related purchase accoy
adjustments. As a result of the acquisition, thenany recorded a non-cash gain of $75 milliethin Power Solutions equity income to ad
the Company’s existing equity investment in thetiplly-owned affiliate to fair value. Goodwill of290 million was recorded as part of
transaction, of which $6 million was recorded schl 2012.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2011, the Compaiompleted its acquisition of Keiper/Recaro Autdive, a leader in recliner syst
technology with engineering and manufacturing etiperin metals and mechanisms for automobile seatsed in Kaiserslautern, Germe
The total purchase price, net of cash acquired,appsoximately $442 million , of which $450 milliamas paid as of September 30, 2011
$8 million was received in the three months endeddber 31, 2011 as a result of a tapeto the purchase price. In connection with
Keiper/Recaro Automotive acquisition, the Compaegorded goodwill of $128 millioprimarily in the Automotive Experience Seal
segment, of which $2 million was recorded in fis2@12.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2011, the Camypaompleted its acquisition of the C. Rob. HamneénsGroup (Hammerstein), a lead
global supplier of higlguality metal seat structures, components and nméihg based in Solingen, Germany. The total puecpase, net ¢
cash acquired, was approximately $529 millioall of which was paid as of September 30, 20hlcdnnection with the Hammerst
acquisition, the Company recorded goodwill of $2@0ion primarily in the Automotive Experience Sewat segment, of which $7 milliowas
recorded in fiscal 2012.

Also during fiscal 2011, the Company completed fadditional acquisitions for a combined purchaseepmet of cash acquired, $i1¢
million , all of which was paid as of September 3011. The acquisitions in the aggregate were raieral to the Compang’consolidate
financial statements. As a result of one of thexitions, which increased the CompangWwnership from a noncontrolling to controll
interest, the Company recorded a non-cash gainldf @illion within Automotive Experience Electronics equity émee to adjust tt
Company’s existing equity investment in the pahti@wned affiliate to fair value. In connection withet acquisitions, the Company recor
goodwill of $119 million , of which $14 million wa®corded in fiscal 2012.

There were no business divestitures for the yede@iSeptember 30, 2011.
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3. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE

At September 30, 201,3he Company determined that certain of its bissiese met the criteria to be classified as helddte. The Automotiv
Experience Electronics segment and certain prolilues of the Automotive Experience Interiors segtreme classified as held for sale a
September 30, 2013.

The following table summarizes the carrying val@ithe assets and liabilities held for sale (in ioiik):

September 30,
2013
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4
Accounts receivable 197
Inventories 124
Other current assets 91
Property, plant and equipment - net 167
Goodwill 74
Other intangibles assets - net 57
Investments in partially-owned affiliates 2€
Other noncurrent assets 64
Assets held for sale $ 804
Short-term debt $ 5
Accounts payable 258
Accrued compensation and benefits 4€
Other current liabilities 84
Pension and postretirement benefits 13
Other noncurrent liabilities 1
Liabilities held for sale $ 40z

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sabre required to be recorded at the lower of cagwalue or fair value less any costs to
Accordingly, the Company recorded an impairmentrghaof $41 millionwithin restructuring and impairment costs in thenslidate:
statement of income related to certain productslioethe Automotive Experience Interiors segmemfeRto Note 17, “Impairment of Long-
Lived Assets”of the notes to consolidated financial statememtdifrther information regarding the impairment e The divestiture of tl
businesses held for sale could result in a galnss on sale to the extent the ultimate sellingepdiffers from the current carrying value of
net assets recorded.

The Automotive Experience Electronics business dm¢aneet the criteria to be classified as a disooad operation abeptember 30, 20
primarily due to the uncertainty regarding the Camygs potential continuing involvement in these operaifollowing a divestiture. Tl
Automotive Experience Interiors product lines cifisd as held for sale are immaterial to the Conypiadividually and in the aggregate anc
not constitute a distinguishable business in otalée classified as a discontinued operation.
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4. INVENTORIES

Inventories consisted of the following (in milligns

September 30,
2013 2012
Raw materials and supplies $ 1,08t $ 1,14«
Work-in-process 45¢ 397
Finished goods 78C 802
Inventories $ 2,32t % 2,34:

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, the Compahgriged its method of inventory costing for cerfaientory in its Power Solutions busin
to the first-in first-out (FIFO) method from thestain first-out (LIFO) method. Refer to Note 1, ‘f8mary of Significant Accounting Policies,”
of the notes to consolidated financial statememtsliscussion of the Company’s change in accountiethod.

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the¥dtg (in millions):

September 30,
2013 2012
Buildings and improvements $ 3,04¢ $ 2,71¢
Machinery and equipment 8,18¢ 7,82
Construction in progress 1,441 1,72
Land 374 37t
Total property, plant and equipment 13,05( 12,64(
Less: accumulated depreciation (6,465 (6,200
Property, plant and equipment - net $ 6,58t $ 6,44(

Interest costs capitalized during the fiscal yearded September 30, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 were $#4@m $55 million and $34 million,
respectively. Accumulated depreciation relatedajital leases at September 30, 2013 and 2012 whamidon and $56 million , respectively.
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6. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwillacteof the Company’s reporting segments for theafigears ended September 30, 2648
2012 were as follows (in millions):

Currency
September 30, Business Business Translation ani  September 30,
2011 Acquisitions  Divestitures  Impairments Other 2012

Building Efficiency

North America Systems $ 51¢ $ — 3 — % — 3 2 9 521

North America Service 71C — 2 — — 70¢€

Global Workplace Solutions 184 — — — 3 187

Asia 391 — — — 5 39¢

Other 1,06¢ — (32 — (39) 994
Automotive Experience

Seating 2,50¢ 34 — — (55) 2,48¢

Interiors 387 — — — 15 40z

Electronics 251 — — — 1) 25C
Power Solutions 1,004 45 — — 9) 1,04(
Total $ 7,01 $ 7 $ (34 $ — $ (79) ¢ 6,98:

Currency
September 30, Business Business Translation ani  September 30,
2012 Acquisitions  Divestitures  Impairments Other 2013

Building Efficiency

North America Systems $ 521 $ — % — $ — % L $ 52C

North America Service 70¢ — — — — 70¢

Global Workplace Solutions 187 79 — — 9 257

Asia 39¢ — — — (8) 38¢

Other 994 — — — 9 1,00z
Automotive Experience

Seating 2,48¢ 187 (15 — 3 2,65¢

Interiors 40z — — (430 28 —

Electronics 25C — (25)) — 1 —
Power Solutions 1,04( — — — 14 1,05¢
Total $ 6,98: $ 26 9 (266) $ (430) % 37 % 6,58¢

The fiscal 2013 Automotive Experience Electroniasibess divestitures amount includes $74 milbbigoodwill transferred to assets held
sale on the consolidated statement of financialtipos Refer to Note 3, "Assets and Liabilities Hdbr Sale," of the notes to consolide
financial statements for further information regagdthe Company's disposal groups classified &t foelsale.

Based on a combination of factors, including theerg operating results of the Automotive Experieimteriors business, restrictions on fu
capital and restructuring funding, and the Compaayinounced intention to explore strategic opti@tated to this business, the Compe
forecasted cash flow estimates used in the goo@dssiessment were negatively impacted as of Septe36b@013. As a result, the Comp
concluded that the carrying value of the Interiggporting unit exceeded its fair value as of Sepen80, 2013. The Company recorde
goodwill impairment charge of $430 millian the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, which wasetetined by comparing the carrying value of
reporting unit's goodwill with the implied fair weg of goodwill for the reporting unit. The assurops included in the impairment test req
judgment, and changes to these inputs could inthactesults of the calculation. Other than managg'séternal projections of future ci
flows, the primary assumptions used in the impairntest were the weighted-average cost of capitdllangterm growth rates. Although t
Company's cash flow forecasts are based on assamgjitiat are considered reasonable by managenabasistent with the
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plans and estimates management is using to opidtenderlying business, there is significant judgimn determining the expected fut
cash flows attributable to the Interiors busin€Bse impairment charge is a noash expense that was recorded within restructuaim
impairment costs on the consolidated statemenh@sme and did not adversely affect the Companyd gesition, cash flow, liquidity
compliance with financial covenants.

The Company’s other intangible assets, primariyrfibusiness acquisitions valued based on indepeagpmaisals, consisted of (in millions):

September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net
Amortized intangible assets
Patented technology $ 92 3 (53 $ 39 $ 18¢ $ (115 $ 75
Customer relationships 537 (13¢) 39¢ 517 (117 40C
Miscellaneous 33¢ (92) 24E 204 47 157
Total amortized intangible assets 96~ (282) 68: 90¢ (277) 63z
Unamortized intangible assets
Trademarks 31¢€ — 31¢ 31t — 31t
Total intangible assets $ 1,281 $ (282 $ 99¢ $ 1,22¢  $ 27 $ 947

Amortization of other intangible assets for thecdisyears ended September 30, 2013 , 2012 and 2848175 million , $56 million an#52
million , respectively. Excluding the impact of afuture acquisitions, the Company anticipates aizetion for fiscal 2014 , 2015 , 2012017
and 2018 will be approximately $73 million , $73llian , $67 million , $62 million and $57 millionrespectively.

7. PRODUCT WARRANTIES

The Company offers warranties to its customers nigipg upon the specific product and terms of th&a@mer purchase agreement. A tyf
warranty program requires that the Company reptifective products within a specified time periodni the date of sale. The Comp
records an estimate for future warrangyated costs based on actual historical retuesrahd other known factors. Based on analysistofn
rates and other factors, the Companyarranty provisions are adjusted as necessagyCbimpany monitors its warranty activity and adjuts
reserve estimates when it is probable that futiaaamty costs will be different than those estireate

The Companys product warranty liability is recorded in the solidated statements of financial position in otbarrent liabilities if th
warranty is less than one year and in other noeatitiabilities if the warranty extends longer tha@re year.

The changes in the carrying amount of the Comgatotal product warranty liability, including exted warranties for which deferred reve
is recorded, for the fiscal years ended Septembe2®L3 and 2012 were as follows (in millions):

Year Ended
September 30,
2013 2012
Balance at beginning of period $ 27¢ % 301
Accruals for warranties issued during the period 272 224
Accruals from acquisitions and divestitures (1) (5) Q)
Accruals related to pre-existing warranties (inahgdchanges in estimates) (14 (22)
Settlements made (in cash or in kind) during théople (27%) (221)
Currency translation — 4)
Balance at end of period $ 25€ % 27¢

(1) Fiscal 2013 includes $2 millioaf product warranties transferred to liabilitieslchéor sale on the consolidated statement of fired
position. Refer to Note 3, "Assets and Liabilitidgld for Sale," of the notes to consolidated finahstatements for further informati
regarding the Company's disposal groups classiféeldeld for sale.
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8. LEASES

Certain administrative and production facilitieslaquipment are leased under Idegn agreements. Most leases contain renewal apfm
varying periods, and certain leases include optionmirchase the leased property during or atitideoé the lease term. Leases generally re
the Company to pay for insurance, taxes and maant of the property. Leased capital assets indlidaet property, plant and equipm
primarily buildings and improvements, were $79 ioilland $96 million at September 30, 2013 and 2@&8pectively.

Other facilities and equipment are leased undengements that are accounted for as operatingsle@istal rental expense for the fiscal y:
ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $#lhm$454 million and $424 million , respectiye

Future minimum capital and operating lease paymantsthe related present value of capital leasenpajs at September 30, 20d8re a
follows (in millions):

Capital Operating

Leases Leases
2014 $ 13 ¢ 30C
2015 11 244
2016 8 13€
2017 7 95
2018 14 60
After 2018 25 71
Total minimum lease payments 78 $ 90¢
Interest (13)
Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 65
9. DEBT AND FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS
Short-term debt consisted of the following (in moifis):

September 30,

2013 2012
Bank borrowings and commercial paper $ 11¢ $ 32¢
Weighted average interest rate on short-term detistanding 4.€% 2.5%

During fiscal 2013, the Company replaced its $2llh committed four -year credit facility, scheléd to mature in February 2015, witl$2.5
billion committed five -year credit facility scheldd to mature in August 2018. The facility is ugedsupport the Comparg/’outstandin
commercial paper. There were d@aws on the committed credit facilities during fleeal years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012x.aéy
outstanding commercial paper for the fiscal yeadeeh September 30, 2013 was $1,123 million , andetiweas noneoutstanding
September 30, 2013. Average outstanding commgrajar for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2@E2$1,287 million , an##186 millior
was outstanding at September 30, 2012.
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Long-term debt consisted of the following (in molis; due dates by fiscal year):

September 30,
2013 2012

Unsecured notes
5.8% due in 2013 ($100 million par value) $ — 3 10C
4.875% due in 2013 ($300 million par value) — 31C
Floating rate notes due in 2014 ($350 million palue) 35C 35C
1.75% due in 2014 ($450 million par value) 452 45¢€
7.7% due in 2015 ($125 million par value) 12t 12t
5.5% due in 2016 ($800 million par value) 802 80C
7.125% due in 2017 ($150 million par value) 15¢ 162
2.6% due in 2017 ($400 million par value) 40C 40C
2.355% due in 2017 ($46 million par value) 46 46
5.0% due in 2020 ($500 million par value) 49¢ 49¢
4.25% due 2021 ($500 million par value) 497 497
3.75% due in 2022 ($450 million par value) 44¢ 447
6.0% due in 2036 ($400 million par value) 39t 39t
5.7% due in 2041 ($300 million par value) 29¢ 29¢
5.25% due in 2042 ($250 million par value) 25C 25C
6.95% due in 2046 ($125 million par value) 12t 12t
Capital lease obligations 65 8C
Foreign-denominated debt

Euro 42¢€ 377
Other 42 28
Gross long-term debt 5,37¢ 5,74¢
Less: current portion 81¢ 424
Net long-term debt $ 456( $ 5,321

At September 30, 2013 , the Company’s euro-dendetniang-term debt was at fixed rates with a weidkdverage interest rate of 3.1%t
September 30, 2012 , the Company’s euro-denominaibgdterm debt was at fixed rates with a weighaedrage interest rate of 3.6% .

The installments of long-term debt maturing in ®hgent fiscal years are: 2014 - $819 million ; 208254 million ; 2016 - $808 million
2017 - $885 million ; 2018 - $19 million ; 2019 atitbreafter - $2,594 million . The Company’s laegm debt includes various financ
covenants, none of which are expected to restrtaré operations.

Total interest paid on both short and long-termtdebthe fiscal years ended September 30, 201812 Zand 2011 was $290 millior28:
million and $216 million , respectively. The Compauses financial instruments to manage its intenagst exposure (see Note 1Metivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” and Note 1Eait Value Measurementsgf the notes to consolidated financial statementges:
instruments affect the weighted average interéstaithe Company’s debt and interest expense.

Financing Arrangements

During the quarter ended September 30, 2013, tweniliibn euro revolving credit facilities and a 3fillion euro revolving credit facilit
expired. The Company entered into two new 50 nmiléaro revolving credit facilities scheduled to expin August and September 2014.
Company also entered into a new 37 milleuro revolving credit facility scheduled to expineSeptember 2014. There were no draws o
facilities during fiscal 2013.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2013 a $B@mrevolving credit facility expired. The Compw entered into a ne®50 millior
revolving credit facility scheduled to expire ingBember 2014. There were no draws on this faddlitsing fiscal 2013.
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During the quarter ended September 30, 2013, tmep@oy retired $300 million in principal amount, placcrued interest, of its 4.875¥ed
rate notes that matured September 2013. The Comysmd/cash to fund the payment.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2013, thep@oy made a partial repayment of 43 million euos accrued interest, of i0C
million euro floating rate credit facility scheddléo mature in February 2017. The Company usedtoefsind the payment.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2012, a $iB®mand a $100 millioncommitted revolving credit facility expired. The @pany
entered into a new $35 million committed revolvicrgdit facility scheduled to expire in November 3G&ind a new $100 millionommittec
revolving credit facility scheduled to expire in @nber 2013. As of September 30, 2013, there wedraws on either facility.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2012, thep@agnentered into a five -year, 70 milliearo, floating rate credit facility schedulec
mature in fiscal 2018. The Company drew on theitfedility during the quarter ended December 3012 Proceeds from the facility w
used for general corporate purposes.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2012, thepaasnretired $100 million in principal amount, plrscrued interest, of its 5.8f%ed rate
notes that matured November 2012. The Company essfdto fund the payment.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2012, the Compamarketed $46 million aggregate principal amafrt1.5%subordinated notes due
fiscal 2042, on behalf of holders of Corporate H@ihd holders of separate notes, by issuing $4®madggregate principal amount &f355%
senior notes due on March 31, 2017.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2011, thep@ognissued $400 million aggregate principal amadri.6%senior unsecured fixed ri
notes due in fiscal 2017, $450 million aggregateqgipal amount of 3.75% senior unsecured fixed rates due in fiscal 2022 a#@50 millior
aggregate principal amount of 5.25% senior unsectixed rate notes due in fiscal 2042. Aggregate preceeds of $1.1 billiofrom the
issuances were used for general corporate purposégling the retirement of short-term debt andtdbutions to the Company’pension ar
postretirement plans.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2011, thepaagnentered into a five -year, 75 milliearo, floating rate credit facility schedulec
mature in fiscal 2017. The Company drew on theitfadility during the quarter ended March 31, 20P2oceeds from the facility were u
for general corporate purposes.

Net Financing Charges

The Company's net financing charges line item éndbnsolidated statements of income for the yaadted September 30, 2013, 2012 and ;
contained the following components (in millions):

Year Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011
Interest expense, net of capitalized interest costs $ 25¢ % 23¢ ¢ 18€
Banking fees and bond cost amortization 21 21 27
Interest income (29 a7 (8)
Net foreign exchange results for financing actasti (20 (20 (31
Net financing charges $ 248 $ 23z § 174
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10. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIE S

The Company selectively uses derivative instrumémtseduce market risk associated with change®rieign currency, commodities, stock:
based compensation liabilities and interest rdtbsler Company policy, the use of derivatives idrieted to those intended for hedg
purposes; the use of any derivative instrumenspaculative purposes is strictly prohibited. A digdion of each type of derivative utilized
the Company to manage risk is included in the Yoty paragraphs. In addition, refer to Note 11,ifRéalue Measurementsgf the notes t
consolidated financial statements for informatielated to the fair value measurements and valuatietihods utilized by the Company for €
derivative type.

The Company has global operations and participiatéise foreign exchange markets to minimize it& 0§ loss from fluctuations in forei
currency exchange rates. The Company primarily disesgn currency exchange contracts to hedge ioeghits foreign exchange r:
exposures. The Company hedges 70% to 90% of thénabamount of each of its known foreign excharrgagactional exposures.

The Company has entered into cressrency interest rate swaps to selectively hedgéigns of its net investment in Japan. The cury
effects of the crossurrency interest rate swaps are reflected in tbeuraulated other comprehensive income (AOCI) actawithin
shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Cdsitrimc. where they offset gains and losses recbate the Compang’ net investment
Japan. At September 30, 2013 the Company had fagseurrency interest rate swaps outstandingitigt@5 billion yen. AtSeptember 3
2012 , the Company had three cross-currency intextsswaps outstanding totaling 20 billion yen.

The Company uses commodity contracts in the firsrdrivatives market in cases where commodityeprisk cannot be naturally offset
hedged through supply base fixed price contracten@odity risks are systematically managed purstmmolicy guidelines. As cash flc
hedges, the effective portion of the hedge gainksses due to changes in fair value are initisdigorded as a component of AOCI and
subsequently reclassified into earnings when ttdgée transactions, typically sales or costs relatesales, occur and affect earnings.
ineffective portion of the hedge is reflected ie ttonsolidated statements of income. The maturitighe commodity contracts coincide w
the expected purchase of the commodities. The Coynpad the following outstanding commodity hedgetracts that hedge forecas
purchases:

Volume Outstanding as of

Commaodity Units September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012
Copper Pounds 14,705,00 13,135,00
Lead Metric Tons 23,90( 21,20(
Aluminum Metric Tons 2,70¢ 2,86¢
Tin Metric Tons 2,052 1,34¢

The Company selectively uses equity swaps to reduadet risk associated with certain of its stbelsed compensation plans, such ¢
deferred compensation plans. These equity compenshabilities increase as the Compasystock price increases and decrease &
Companys stock price decreases. In contrast, the valikeofwap agreement moves in the opposite directidhese liabilities, allowing tt
Company to fix a portion of the liabilities at atsd amount. As of September 30, 2013 and 2012 Ctimpany had hedged approximately
million and 4.5 million shares of its common stomspectively.

The Company selectively uses interest rate swapsdiace market risk associated with changes imdateates for its fixedate notes. As fe
value hedges, the interest rate swaps and relatsichdlances are valued under a market approaest) psblicized swap curves. Changes ir
fair value of the swap and hedged portion of thet @éee recorded in the consolidated statementscoime. In the second quarter of fiscal 2!
the Company entered into a fixed to floating intémate swap totaling $100 million to hedge thepmuof its 5.8%notes which matured
November 15, 201%wo fixed to floating interest rate swaps total®@00 million to hedge the coupon of its 4.878%ies which matured
September 15, 2013 and five fixed to floating iegtrate swaps totaling $450 million to hedge thepon of its 1.75%0tes maturing March
2014. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, the @amy entered into a fixed to floating interest mt@p totaling approximately $125 millida
hedge the coupon of its 7.70% notes maturing Marck015. Additionally, in the fourth quarter ofded 2013, the Company entered ifboir
fixed to floating interest rate swaps totaling $8@llion to hedge the coupon of its 5.50% notesuriag January 15, 2016. There wees
interest rate swaps outstanding as of Septemb&033 and eight interest rate swaps outstandirg 8sptember 30, 2012 .

In September 2005, the Company entered into tfoeeard treasury lock agreements to reduce the etaikk associated with change:
interest rates associated with the Company’s quaied fixedrate note issuance to finance the acquisition afkMaoternational Corp. (ca
flow hedge). The three forward treasury lock agreets, which had a combined notional amount of $lll®n , fixed a portion of the futu
interest cost for 5-year, 10-year and 30-year ndthe fair value of each treasury lock
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agreement, or the difference between the treasulyreference rate and the fixed rate at time ¢ m&suance, is amortized to interest exp
over the life of the respective note issuanceahtuary 2006, in connection with the Company’s defibancing, the threforward treasury loc
agreements were terminated.

The following table presents the location and Yaiues of derivative instruments and hedging a¢iwiincluded in the Compars/tonsolidate
statements of financial position (in millions):

Derivatives and Hedging Activities Derivatives and Hedging Activities Not
Designated as Hedging Instruments Designated as Hedging Instruments
under ASC 815 under ASC 815
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Other current assets
Foreign currency exchange derivatives $ 19 $ 14 $ 14 $ 8
Commodity derivatives 8 11 — _
Interest rate swaps 2 2 _ _
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 7 1 _ —
Other noncurrent assets
Interest rate swaps 3 6 _ —
Equity swap — — 182 127
Total assets $ 38 $ 34 3 197 % 131
Other current liabilities
Foreign currency exchange derivatives $ 21 $ 17 $ 1 $ 9
Commodity derivatives 3 _ _ _
Current portion of long-term debt
Fixed rate debt swapped to floating 452 401 _ _
Long-term debt
Fixed rate debt swapped to floating 927 45€ _ _
Total liabilities $ 1400 $ 874 $ 1  $ 9

The following tables present the location and amafrthe effective portion of gains and losses grostax on derivative instruments
related hedge items reclassified from AOCI into @@mpany’s consolidated statements of income ferfibcal years endefieptember 3
2013 and 2012 and amounts recorded in AOCI neboiit the consolidated statements of financial gmsi(in millions):

Amount of Gain (Loss) Reclassified from AOCI infcbme
Year Ended September 30,

Derivatives in ASC 815 Cash Flow Hedging Location of Gain (Loss)
Relationships Reclassified from AOCI into Income 2013 2012
Foreign currency exchange derivatives Cost of sales $ 1 $ a9
Commodity derivatives Cost of sales 2 (25)
Forward treasury locks Net financing charges 2 2
Total $ 5 $ (42)

Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in AOCI on Derivat
Derivatives in ASC 815 Cash Flow Hedging 4 in ( ) gnized!

Relationships September 30, 2013 September 30, 2012
Foreign currency exchange derivatives $ 3 $ ©)
Commodity derivatives 3 7
Forward treasury locks 7 8
Total $ 7 $ 12
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Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Income on Defixe

Year Ended September 30,

Derivatives in ASC 815 Fair Value Hedging Location of Gain (Loss)

Relationships Recognized in Income on Derivative 2013 2012
Interest rate swap Net financing charges $ @ $ 8)
Fixed rate debt swapped to floating Net financing charges 2 9
Total $ —  $ 1

Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Income on Degfixe
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Location of Gain (Loss) vear Ended September 30,

Instruments under ASC 815 Recognized in Income on Derivative 2013 2012
Foreign currency exchange derivatives Cost of sales $ B $ 23
Foreign currency exchange derivatives Net financing charges 2E 19
Foreign currency exchange derivatives Provision for income taxes 5) 1
Equity swap Selling, general and administrative 6E 6
Total $ 7% 11

The amount of gains recognized in cumulative teeh adjustment (CTA) within AOCI on the effectipertion of outstanding net investm
hedges was $4 million and $1 million at Septemi@er2®13 and 2012 , respectively. For the years éiStptember 30, 2013 and 2018c
gains or losses were reclassified from CTA intcome for the Compang’ outstanding net investment hedges, and no gaitssses wel
recognized in income for the ineffective portioncagh flow hedges.

11. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurementjéfines fair value as the price that would be resito sell an asset or paid to transfer a ligbifitar
orderly transaction between market participantshat measurement date. ASC 820 also establisheseaiehel fair value hierarchy th
prioritizes information used in developing assuimmpsi when pricing an asset or liability as follows:

Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices in actaskers;

Level 2: Inputs, other than quoted prices in active markbtd, are observable either directly or indirectigig

Level 3: Unobservable inputs where there is little or noketdata, which requires the reporting entity teedep its own assumptions.

ASC 820 requires the use of observable market addian available, in making fair value measuremewtken inputs used to measure
value fall within different levels of the hierarchthe level within which the fair value measuremisntategorized is based on the lowest |
input that is significant to the fair value measneat.
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Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The following tables present the Company'’s faiueahierarchy for those assets and liabilities messsat fair value as &eptember 30, 20
and 2012 (in millions):

Fair Value Measurements Using:

Significant
Quoted Prices Other Significant
in Active Observable Unobservable
Total as of Markets Inputs Inputs
September 30, 2013 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Other current assets
Foreign currency exchange derivatives $ 33 ¢ — ¢ 33 % —
Commodity derivatives 8 — 8 —
Interest rate swaps 2 — 2 —
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 7 — 7 —
Other noncurrent assets
Interest rate swaps 3 — 3 —
Investments in marketable common stock 30 30 — —
Equity swap 18¢ 18z — —
Total assets $ 266 % 21 % 53 $ —
Other current liabilities
Foreign currency exchange derivatives $ 32 % — ¢ 32 3 —
Commaodity derivatives 3 — 3 —
Current portion of long-term debt
Fixed rate debt swapped to floating 452 — 457 —
Long-term debt
Fixed rate debt swapped to floating 927 — 927 —
Total liabilities $ 1414 % — 3 1,412 $ —

80




Fair Value Measurements Using:

Significant
Quoted Prices Other Significant
in Active Observable Unobservable
Total as of Markets Inputs Inputs
September 30, 2012 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Other current assets
Foreign currency exchange derivatives $ 22 % — ¢ 22 3 —
Commaodity derivatives 11 — 11 —
Interest rate swaps 2 — 2 —
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 1 — 1 —
Other noncurrent assets
Interest rate swaps 6 — 6 —
Investments in marketable common stock 32 32 — —
Equity swap 12: 12z — —
Total assets $ 197 $ 158§ 42 % —
Other current liabilities
Foreign currency exchange derivatives $ 26 $ — ¢ 26 % —
Current portion of long-term debt
Fixed rate debt swapped to floating 401 — 401 —
Long-term debt
Fixed rate debt swapped to floating 45€ — 45€ —
Total liabilities $ 88: $ — 3 88: $ —

Valuation Methods

Foreign currency exchange derivativeBhe Company selectively hedges anticipated traimsecthat are subject to foreign exchange rate
primarily using foreign currency exchange hedgetramts. The foreign currency exchange derivativesvalued under a market approach u
publicized spot and forward prices. As cash flowldes under ASC 815, the effective portion of thégeegains or losses due to changes it
value are initially recorded as a component of aadated other comprehensive income and are substiygueclassified into earnings when
hedged transactions occur and affect earnings.ifeffective portion of the hedge is reflected ie tonsolidated statement of income. Tl
contracts were highly effective in hedging the ahility in future cash flows attributable to chamgde currency exchange ratesSaptember 3
2013 and 2012 The fair value of foreign currency exchange dafixes not designated as hedging instruments ul86€r 815 are recorded
the consolidated statements of income.

Commodity derivatives The Company selectively hedges anticipated traimgecthat are subject to commaodity price risk, ity using
commodity hedge contracts, to minimize overall @ricsk associated with the Compasmyurchases of lead, copper, tin and aluminum
commodity derivatives are valued under a marketagah using publicized prices, where availabledealer quotes. As cash flow hedges
effective portion of the hedge gains or losses ttuehanges in fair value are initially recorded asomponent of accumulated ol
comprehensive income and are subsequently redtabssifto earnings when the hedged transactionscallp sales or cost related to sa
occur and affect earnings. Any ineffective portadrihe hedge is reflected in the consolidated statés of income. These contracts were hi
effective in hedging the variability in future cabws attributable to changes in commodity priaeSeptember 30, 2013 and 2012 .

Interest rate swaps and related debhe Company selectively uses interest rate swapsdiace market risk associated with changes imés
rates for its fixed-ate notes. As fair value hedges, the interestsweps and related debt balances are valued unuariet approach usi
publicized swap curves. Changes in the fair valuthe swap and hedged portion of the debt are decbin the consolidated statement
income. In the second quarter of fiscal 2011, tbenany entered into a fixed to floating interesé rswap totaling $100 millioto hedge th
coupons of its 5.80% notes which matured on Noverhbe2012, two fixed to floating interest rate pwdotaling $300 milliorto hedge th
coupon of its 4.875% notes which matured on Sepeerbb, 2013 and five fixed to floating interesteratvaps totaling $450 millicto hedg
the coupon of its 1.75%otes maturing March 1, 2014. In the fourth quaofeiiscal 2013, the Company entered into a fix@ddating interes
rate swap totaling approximately $125 million tadbe the coupon of its 7.70%otes maturing March 1, 2015. Additionally, in tfoarth
quarter of fiscal 2013, the Company entered into fixed to floating interest rate swaps totalirR8D8 million to hedge the coupon of 850%
notes
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maturing January 15, 2016. There were ten inteadstswaps outstanding as of September 30, 2018ightinterest rate swaps outstandini
of September 30, 2012 .

Cross-currency interest rate swaps - The Compalegtseely uses crossurrency interest rate swaps to hedge the foreigreocy rate ris
associated with certain of its investments in Jajde crosssurrency interest rate swaps are valued using walsker market data. Change:
the market value of the swaps are reflected inféheign currency translation adjustments comporraccumulated other comprehen:
income where they offset gains and losses recondatie Company’s net investment in Japan. At SeipéerB0, 2013 , the Company hfink
cross-currency interest rate swaps outstandingjrtgt25 billion yen. At September 30, 2012 , then@any had three crogsHrency intere:
rate swaps outstanding totaling 20 billion yen.

Investments in marketable common stodihe Company invests in certain marketable commacksivhich is valued under a market appr¢
using publicized share prices. As of September2Bd3 and 2012 , the Company recorded unrealizewsgzfi $7 million and $5 million
respectively, in accumulated other comprehensigerire. The Company recorded norealized losses in accumulated other comprehe
income as of September 30, 2013 and 20lkPthe second quarter of fiscal 2012, the Compauprded an impairment charge related t
investment in marketable common stock due to thestee$ bankruptcy announcement in March 2012. As a trethd Company recordec
$14 millionimpairment charge within selling, general, and audstiative expenses in the Power Solutions segriémetimpairment reduced 1
investment to zerand was measured under a market approach usimthieized share price. The inputs utilized in #malysis are classifi
as Level 1 inputs within the fair value hierarclsydefined in ASC 820.

Equity swaps - The Company selectively uses equityps to reduce market risk associated with cedfits stockbased compensation pla
such as its deferred compensation plans. The equiys are valued under a market approach as itheafae of the swaps is equal to
Companys stock price at the reporting period date. Chamgdair value on the equity swaps are reflectedhia consolidated statement:
income within selling, general and administratixpenses.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, axtsaeceivable, shoterm debt and accounts payable approximate theiying values. Th
fair value of long-term debt, which was $5.7 bitliand $6.3 billion at September 30, 2013 and 20E3pectively, was determined prima
using market quotes classified as Level 1 inputhiwithe ASC 820 fair value hierarchy.

12. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

On January 23, 2013, the shareholders of the Coyngpproved the Johnson Controls, Inc. 2012 Omnibaentive Plan (the "2012 Plar
The types of awards authorized by the 2012 Plamcise of stock options, stock appreciation rightyformance shares, performance units
other stockbased awards. The Compensation Committee of thep&@oy's Board of Directors will determine the typéswards to be grant
to individual participants and the terms and caadg of the awards. The 2012 Plan provides thanBlfon shares of the Company's comr
stock are reserved for issuance under the 2012 &@ah36 million shares remained available forasee at September 30, 2013.

Prior to shareholder approval of the 2012 Plan,Gbenpany maintained the Johnson Controls, Inc. Z8@¢k Option Plan and the John
Controls, Inc. 2001 Restricted Stock Plan (the S8Erg Plans"). The Existing Plans terminated orudan 23, 2013 as a result of sharehc
approval of the 2012 Plan, ending the authoritgitant new awards under the Existing Plans. All awarmnder the Existing Plans that w
outstanding as of January 23, 2013 continue tooverged by the Existing Plans. Pursuant to thetiegid?lans, all forfeitures under such pl
will be deposited into the reserve for the 201Pla

The Company has four shavased compensation plans, which are described b&lleecompensation cost charged against incoméyairg
the offsetting impact of outstanding equity swdps,those plans was approximately $91 million , $bt#lion and $47 millionfor the fisca
years endeSeptember 30, 2013 , 2012 and 2Qlrkspectively. The total income tax benefit redogd in the consolidated statement
income for share-based compensation arrangemergsap@oximately $36 million , $22 million and $19llan for the fiscal years end
September 30, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , respectivVdlg. Company applies a nanbstantive vesting period approach whereby exp&
accelerated for those employees that receive aveaudisire eligible to retire prior to the award iregt

Stock Options

Stock options are granted with an exercise priagaktp the market price of the Compasytock at the date of grant. Stock option aw
typically vest between two and three years aftergitant date and expire ten years from the grast da

The fair value of each option is estimated on th @f grant using a Blackeholes option valuation model that uses the assonspnoted i
the following table. Expected volatilities are béiem the historical volatility of the Company’s skaand other factors.
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The Company uses historical data to estimate opmti@rcises and employee terminations within theiatedn model. The expected tern
options represents the period of time that optgmasited are expected to be outstanding. Thefirégkrate for periods during the contractual
of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yielde in effect at the time of grant.

Year Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011
Expected life of option (years) 5.0-6.7 48-6.4 45-6.0
Risk-free interest rate 0.62% - 1.33% 0.54% - 1.61% 1.10% - 1.58%
Expected volatility of the Company’s stock 41.00% 40.00% 38.00%
Expected dividend yield on the Company’s stock 3%0 1.81% 1.74%

A summary of stock option activity at September3W1 .3 , and changes for the year then ended, septed below:

Weighted
Average Aggregate
Weighted Shares Remaining Intrinsic
Average Subject to Contractual Value
Option Price Option Life (years) (in millions)
Outstanding, September 30, 2012 $ 26.3¢ 36,468,50
Granted 27.9¢ 5,554,69I
Exercised 22.1( (11,576,92)
Forfeited or expired 30.0¢ (1,042,98)
Outstanding, September 30, 2013 $ 28.2¢ 29,403,28 5.9 $ 39C
Exercisable, September 30, 2013 $ 27.9i 17,699,01 4.4 $ 23¢

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of mtigranted during the fiscal years ended SepteBhe2013 , 2012 and 2011 was $8,58
$8.92 and $9.09 , respectively.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrithe fiscal years ended September 30, 2013 , 20822011 was approximate$i15<
million , $19 million and $101 million , respectiye

In conjunction with the exercise of stock optiomarged, the Company received cash payments fdigbel years ended September 30, 2012
2012 and 2011 of approximately $254 million , $4iliom and $105 million , respectively.

The Company has elected to utilize the alternatiamsition method for calculating the tax effectsmckbased compensation. The alterne
transition method includes computational guidamcestablish the beginning balance of the additipaédin capital pool (APIC Pool) relat
to the tax effects of employee stosised compensation, and a simplified method tormiéte the subsequent impact on the APIC Poc
employee stockased compensation awards that are vested andwmditsg upon adoption of ASC 718. The tax benefitfrthe exercise
stock options, which is recorded in capital in esecef par value, was $35 million , $3 million an80$million for the fiscal years end
September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectiVhly Company does not settle stock options gramddnshardsased payment arrangeme
for cash.

At September 30, 2013 , the Company had approxlyn&@6 million of total unrecognized compensation cost relateddovested stoc
options granted. That cost is expected to be razedrover a weighted-average period of 1.6 years.

Stock Appreciation Rights (SARS)

SARs vest under the same terms and conditionsoek eption awards; however, they are settled i ¢dasthe difference between the ma
price on the date of exercise and the exerciseepAs a result, SARs are recorded in the Comganghsolidated statements of finan
position as a liability until the date of exercise.

The fair value of each SAR award is estimated usingimilar method described for stock options. Tdie value of each SAR award

recalculated at the end of each reporting periatithe liability and expense adjusted based on ¢wefair value.
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The assumptions used to determine the fair valibeoSAR awards at September 30, 2013 were asvillo

Expected life of SAR (years) 0.05-3.3
Risk-free interest rate 0.02% - 0.74%
Expected volatility of the Company’s stock 41.00%
Expected dividend yield on the Company’s stock 3%0

A summary of SAR activity at September 30, 2018d ehanges for the year then ended, is presented:be

Weighted
Average Aggregate
Weighted Shares Remaining Intrinsic
Average Subject to Contractual Value
SAR Price SAR Life (years) (in millions)
Outstanding, September 30, 2012 $ 26.9:¢ 3,775,87i
Granted 27.8¢ 1,018,65I
Exercised 23.61 (923,57()
Forfeited or expired 28.4: (126,16
Outstanding, September 30, 2013 $ 27.9¢ 3,744,79. 6.3 $ 51
Exercisable, September 30, 2013 $ 27.4¢ 1,884,35I 4.3 $ 27

In conjunction with the exercise of SARs granté@ €Company made payments of $11 million , $2 milémd $4 millionduring the fiscal yea
ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 , resplgcti

Restricted (Nonvested) Stock

The 2012 Plan provides for the award of restrictetk or restricted stock units to certain key ampés. These awards are typically s
settled unless the employee is a hds. employee or elects to defer settlement uatitgment at which point the award would be setih
cash. Restricted awards typically vest 50% aftey yiwars from the grant date and 50% after fpears from the grant date. The 2012 |
allows for different vesting terms on specific gsawith approval by the Board of Directors.

A summary of the status of the Company’s nonvesgstticted stock awards at September 30, 2@&®I changes for the fiscal year then er
is presented below:

Weighted Shares/Units
Average Subject to
Price Restriction
Nonvested, September 30, 2012 $ 30.4¢ 997,05¢
Granted 30.1¢ 515,70(
Vested 36.8¢ (233,151
Forfeited 28.7¢ (37,75()
Nonvested, September 30, 2013 $ 29.1¢ 1,241,85!

At September 30, 2013 , the Company had approxlyn&tes million of total unrecognized compensation cost relatedotovested restrict
stock arrangements granted. That cost is expeathd tecognized over a weighted-average period/oyears.

Performance Share Awards

The 2012 Plan permits the grant of performabased share unit ("PSU") awards. The number of Rfsétged is equal to the PSU award v
divided by the closing price of the Company's commstock at the grant date. The PSUs are generafifingent on the achievement of pre
determined performance goals over a thyear performance period as well as on the awardesl continuous employment until the ves
date. Each PSU that is earned will be settled witihare of the Company's common stock followingcthrapletion of the performance peri
unless the award holder elected to defer a podiail of the award until retirement which wouldthbe settled in cash.
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A summary of the status of the Company’s nonveBt8ts at September 30, 201and changes for the fiscal year then ended,asente
below:

Weighted Shares/Units
Average Subject to
Price PSU
Nonvested, September 30, 2012 $ — —
Granted 30.7¢ 547,80!
Forfeited 30.7: (6,100)
Nonvested, September 30, 2013 $ 30.7¢ 541,70

At September 30, 2013, the Company had approxlyn@i® million of total unrecognized compensatiastrelated to nonvested PSUs
granted. That cost is expected to be recognizedaweighted-average period of 2.0 years.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Company presents both basic and diluted eamprg share (EPS) amounts. Basic EPS is calcubtgtelividing net income attributable
Johnson Controls, Inc. by the weighted average murmbcommon shares outstanding during the regppariod. Diluted EPS is calculated
dividing net income attributable to Johnson Comstrdhc. by the weighted average number of commameshand common equivalent sh
outstanding during the reporting period that adeuated using the treasury stock method for simafons and unvested restricted stock.
treasury stock method assumes that the Companythisgzoceeds from the exercise of awards to réjaises common stock at the avel
market price during the period. The assumed pracaader the treasury stock method include the pseiprice that the grantee will pay in
future, compensation cost for future service that Company has not yet recognized and any wintHalbenefits that would be creditec
capital in excess of par value when the award geegra tax deduction. If there would be a shontéallting in a charge to capital in exces
par value, such an amount would be a reductiorhefproceeds. For unvested restricted stock, assypmededs under the treasury s
method would include unamortized compensation aodtwindfall tax benefits or shortfalls.

The Company’s outstanding Equity Units due 2042 reftected in diluted earnings per share using‘theonverted” method. Under th
method, if dilutive, the common stock is assumeadesl as of the beginning of the reporting periadl ianluded in calculating diluted earni
per share. In addition, if dilutive, interest expennet of tax, related to the outstanding EquititdJis added back to the numerato
calculating diluted earnings per share.

The following table reconciles the numerators aadaininators used to calculate basic and diluteniregs per share (in millions):

Year Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011

Income Available to Common Shareholders
Basic income available to common shareholders $ 1,17¢ % 1,18/ % 1,41¢

Interest expense, net of tax — 1 3
Diluted income available to common shareholders $ 1,17¢  $ 1,18t $ 1,41¢
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 683.7 681.t 677.1
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options and unvested restricted stock 5.k 5.2 8.1

Equity units — 1.¢ 4.1
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 689.2 688.¢ 689.¢
Antidilutive Securities
Options to purchase common shares 0.€ 1.4 0.2

During the three months ended September 30, 2042012 , the Company declared a dividend of $0rtP$90.18, respectively, per comm
share. During the twelve months ended Septembe2(®®B and 2012 , the Company declared four qugrtividends totaling $0.76 and $0.72
respectively, per common share. With the exceptiothhe quarterly dividend declared and paid inttiree months ended December 31, 2
the Company paid all dividends in the month subseagto the end of each fiscal quarter.
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14. EQUITY AND NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

The following schedules present changes in corst@ilequity attributable to Johnson Controls, #mdl noncontrolling interests (in millions):

Equity Attributable to Johnson Equity Attributable to

Controls, Inc. Noncontrolling Interests Total Equity
At September 30, 2010 (revised) $ 10,18: $ 106 $ 10,28¢
Total comprehensive income:
Net income 1,41¢ 53 1,46¢
Foreign currency translation adjustments (209) Q) (110
Realized and unrealized losses on derivatives 47 — (47
Unrealized gains on marketable common stock 3 — 3
Pension and postretirement plans 4 — 4
Other comprehensive loss (149 Q) (150
Comprehensive income 1,26¢€ 52 1,31¢
Other changes in equity:
Cash dividends - common stock ($0.64 per share) (43%) — (43E5)
Dividends attributable to noncontrolling interests — 32 (39
Redemption value adjustment attributable to redédena
noncontrolling interests (32) — 32
Change in noncontrolling interest share — 12 12
Other, including options exercised 17z — 172
At September 30, 2011 11,15« 13€ 11,29:
Total comprehensive income:
Net income 1,18¢ 58 1,24:
Foreign currency translation adjustments (22)) — (22))
Realized and unrealized gains on derivatives 3¢ — 3¢
Unrealized losses on marketable common stock (€] — €]
Pension and postretirement plans (©)] — (8)
Other comprehensive loss (291 — (297
Comprehensive income 99: 58 1,057
Other changes in equity:
Cash dividends - common stock ($0.72 per share) (492) — (492)
Dividends attributable to noncontrolling interests — (48) (48)
Redemption value adjustment attributable to redééma
noncontrolling interests (35) — (35)
Repurchases of common stock (102) — (202)
Other, including options exercised 107 — 107
At September 30, 2012 11,62t 14¢ 11,77:
Total comprehensive income:
Net income 1,17¢ 71 1,24¢
Foreign currency translation adjustments (21) — (21
Realized and unrealized losses on derivatives 5) — )
Unrealized gains on marketable common stock 2 — 2
Pension and postretirement plans (1€) — (1€)
Other comprehensive loss (40) — (40)
Comprehensive income 1,13¢ 71 1,20¢
Other changes in equity:
Cash dividends - common stock ($0.76 per share) (520) — (520
Dividends attributable to noncontrolling interests — (39) (39
Redemption value adjustment attributable to redédena
noncontrolling interests 5¢ — 5¢
Repurchases of common stock (350 — (350
Change in noncontrolling interest share — 80 8C
Other, including options exercised 362 — 362
At September 30, 2013 $ 12,31 $ 26C 12,57¢
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The Company consolidates certain subsidiaries ifrclwkthe noncontrolling interest party has withireithcontrol the right to require t
Company to redeem all or a portion of its interiesthe subsidiary. The redeemable noncontrollintgrasts are reported at their estim
redemption value. Any adjustment to the redemptiamiue impacts retained earnings but does not imp&ttincome. Redeema
noncontrolling interests which are redeemable argn future events, the occurrence of which is aotently probable, are recordec
carrying value.

The following schedules present changes in thearadble noncontrolling interests (in millions):

Year Ended September Year Ended September Year Ended September

30, 2013 30, 2012 30, 2011
Beginning balance, September 30 $ 25 % 26C $ 19¢
Net income 48 69 64
Foreign currency translation adjustments 1 (@D} —
Change in noncontrolling interest share (63) (95) (22)
Dividends (23 (15) (11)
Redemption value adjustment (59 35 32
Ending balance, September 30 $ 157 % 25 % 26C

The following schedules present changes in accuetdilather comprehensive income (AOCI) attributabl@ohnson Controls, Inc. (in milliol
net of tax):

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, 201 September 30, 20. September 30, 20!

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Balance at beginning of period $ 41 $ 632 % 743
Aggregate adjustment for the period (net of tar@fbf $19, $(15) and $(3)) (21) (221) (20¢9)
Balance at end of period 392 413 634

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivagis

Balance at beginning of period 12 (27) 20
Current period changes in fair value (net of tdrefof $(2), $9 and $(17)) 2 14 (28)
Reclassification to income (net of tax effect a2)$@17 and $(13)) * 3 25 (29
Balance at end of period 7 12 27

Unrealized gains (losses) on marketable common stoc

Balance at beginning of period 5 6

Current period changes in fair value (net of tdeefof $0, $(3) and $0) 2 (15) 3
Reclassifications to income (net of tax effect Of $ — 14 —
Balance at end of period 7 5 6

Pension and postretirement plans

Balance at beginning of period 28 36 32
Reclassification to income (net of tax effect @$@(7) and $(1)) *** (28) (20) 2
Other changes (net of tax effect of $0) 2 2 6
Balance at end of period 12 28 36
Accumulated other comprehensive income, end obgeri $ 418§ 45t § 64¢

* Refer to Note 10, "Derivative Instruments and Hieg) Activities," of the notes to consolidated finéal statements for disclosure of the
items on the consolidated statements of incomet&fficby reclassifications from AOCI into incomeateld to derivatives.

** Refer to Note 11, "Fair Value Measurements,"thé notes to consolidated financial statementsdfsclosure of the line item on 1
consolidated statements of income affected by ssiflaations from AOCI into income related to madd#e common stock.
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*** Refer to Note 15, "Retirement Plans," of thetes to consolidated financial statements for dmale of the components of the Compe
net periodic benefit costs associated with its raefi benefit pension and postretirement plans. Reryear ended September 30, 2013
income reclassified from AOCI into income for pemsiand postretirement plans was split approximagesnly between cost of sales
selling, general and administrative expenses orctimsolidated statement of income. For the yeae@®eptember 30, 2012, the reclass
income was primarily recorded in cost of sales. fheryear ended September 30, 2011, approxima&lyiffion of reclassified income w
recorded in cost of sales, and approximately $&anibf reclassified expense was recorded in sgligeneral and administrative expenses.

15. RETIREMENT PLANS
Pension Benefits

The Company has non-contributory defined benefitspmn plans covering certain U.S. and nd$. employees. The benefits provided
primarily based on years of service and averagepeosation or a monthly retirement benefit amouffediive January 1, 2006, certain of
Companys U.S. pension plans were amended to prohibit naxticjpants from entering the plans. Effective Semter 30, 2009, acti
participants will continue to accrue benefits untlee amended plans until December 31, 2014. Funftind).S. pension plans equals
exceeds the minimum requirements of the Employd@dReent Income Security Act of 1974. Funding fanAJ.S. plans observes the lo
legal and regulatory limits. Also, the Company mekentributions to union-trusteed pension fundsctorstruction and service personnel.

For pension plans with accumulated benefit oblayeti (ABO) that exceed plan assets, the projectedfltenbligation (PBO), ABO and f:
value of plan assets of those plans were $3,068mil $2,981 million and $2,392 million , respeely, as of September 30, 2013 &B#j45(
million , $4,242 million and $3,279 million , respively, as of September 30, 2012 .

In fiscal 2013 , total employer and employee ctwiions to the defined benefit pension plans wé&® &iillion , of which $1 millionwere
voluntary contributions made by the Company. Then@any expects to contribute approximately $80 omlin cash to its defined bene
pension plans in fiscal 2014 . Projected benefinpants from the plans as of September 30, 2018simmated as follows (in millions):

2014 $ 265
2015 262
2016 26€
2017 26¢
2018 27¢
2019-2023 1,45¢

Postretirement Benefits

The Company provides certain health care andhidaiance benefits for eligible retirees and thepahdents primarily in the U.S. Most non
U.S. employees are covered by government spongoogdams, and the cost to the Company is not sigmif.

Eligibility for coverage is based on meeting certgiears of service and retirement age qualificatiorhese benefits may be subjec
deductibles, cgayment provisions and other limitations, and tleenfany has reserved the right to modify these litsn&fffective January 3
1994, the Company modified certain salaried planglace a limit on the Comparsytost of future annual retiree medical benefitsamor:
than 150% of the 1993 cost.

The September 30, 2013 postretirement PBO for prth 65 and po$5 years of age employees was determined usingnassmedical ca
cost trend rates of 7.5% for U.S. plans, decreasirgghalf percent to one quarter percent eachtgean ultimate rate of 5% and 7.25% for non
U.S. plans, decreasing three twentieths of oneepéreach year to an ultimate rate of 4.5% . Thegpition drug trend rates used w&ré¥%
for U.S. plans, decreasing one half percent toquaater percent each year to an ultimate rate ofB&8.15% for notJ.S. plans, decreasi
one fifth of one percent each year to an ultimate of 4.5% . The September 30, 2012 PBO for bo#th 65 and posss years of ac
employees was determined using medical care carstl trates of 7.5%0or U.S. plans, decreasing one half percent eaah tgean ultimate ra
of 5% and 7.5% for non-U.S. plans, decreasing ttweatieths of one percent each year to an ultimete2of 4.5% The prescription drug tre
rates used were 7.5% for U.S. plans, decreasindnali@ercent each year to an ultimate rate of 5% &5% for the notd.S. plans, decreasi
one fifth of one percent each year to an ultimate of 4.5% The health care cost trend assumption does nat aaignificant effect on t
amounts reported.
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In fiscal 2013 , total employer and employee chuttibns to the postretirement plans were $13 nnilliaf which $12 milliorwere voluntar
contributions made by the Company. The Company doéexpect to make any significant contributionsts postretirement plans in fis
year2014 . Projected benefit payments from the plaraf &ptember 30, 2013 are estimated as followm{ilions):

2014 $ 21
2015 21
2016 22
2017 23
2018 23
2019-2023 10z

In December 2003, the U.S. Congress enacted thdcktedPrescription Drug, Improvement and ModermimatAct of 2003 (Act) fo
employers sponsoring postretirement care planspiatide prescription drug benefits. The Act intnods a prescription drug benefit ur
Medicare as well as a federal subsidy to sponsiorstioee health care benefit plans providing adfi¢that is at least actuarially equivalen
Medicare Part D.1. Under the Act, the Medicare glypamount is received directly by the plan sporesad not the related plan. Further,
plan sponsor is not required to use the subsidyuatmm fund postretirement benefits and may usesthosidy for any valid business purpt
Projected subsidy receipts are estimated to beoappately $3 million per year over the next tenrgea

Savings and Investment Plans

The Company sponsors various defined contributaings plans that allow employees to contribute@ign of their pre-tax and/or aftésx
income in accordance with plan specified guidelingsder specified conditions, the Company will cimite to certain savings plans base:
the employee<2ligible pay and/or will match a percentage oféhgployee contributions up to certain limits. Matahcontributions charged
expense amounted to $118 million , $105 million 8485 million for the fiscal years ended 2013 ,2@hd 2011 , respectively.

Multiemployer Benefit Plans

The Company contributes to multiemployer benefinglbased on obligations arising from collectivieyhiming agreements related to certai
its hourly employees in the U.S. These plans peveatirement benefits to participants based orr #eivice to contributing employers. 1
benefits are paid from assets held in trust fot fhapose. The trustees typically are responsibtedetermining the level of benefits to
provided to participants as well as for such matésrthe investment of the assets and the adraimistrof the plans.

The risks of participating in these multiemployenbfit plans are different from single-employer éf@rplans in the following aspects:

» Assets contributed to the multiemployer benefitnplay one employer may be used to provide benefiterhployees of oth
participating employers.

« If a participating employer stops contributing @ tmultiemployer benefit plan, the unfunded obima of the plan may be borne
the remaining participating employers.

» If the Company stops participating in some of itsltemployer benefit plans, the Company may be ireguto pay those plans
amount based on its allocable share of the undéeftistatus of the plan, referred to as a withdrdiafaility.

The Company participates in over 3Bultiemployer benefit plans, primarily related te Building Efficiency business in the U.S., norf
which are individually significant to the Comparihe number of employees covered by the Commanmyltiemployer benefit plans t
remained consistent over the past three yearsthemd have been no significant changes that afffieccomparability of fiscal 2013 , 20B»c¢
2011 contributions. The Company recognizes exptarsghe contractually-required contribution for bameriod. The Company contribut&d4
million , $47 million and $51 million to multiempyer benefit plans in fiscal 2013 , 2012 and 20dgspectively.

Based on the most recent information available,Gbmpany believes that the present value of aetuacdcrued liabilities in certain of the
multiemployer benefit plans may exceed the valughef assets held in trust to pay benefits. Culyetile Company is not aware of i
significant multiemployer benefits plans for whiilis probable or reasonably possible that the Gamgpwill
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be obligated to make up any shortfall in funds. &bxer, if the Company were to exit certain marketstherwise cease making contributi
to these funds, the Company could trigger a witidtdiability. Currently, the Company is not awakany significant multiemployer bene
plans for which it is probable or reasonably pdssthat the Company will withdraw from the plan.yAaccrual for a shortfall or withdraw
liability will be recorded when it is probable thatiability exists and it can be reasonably estada

Plan Assets

The Companys investment policies employ an approach wherelgidxaof equities, fixed income and alternative invesnts are used
maximize the londgerm return of plan assets for a prudent levelsi. The investment portfolio primarily containsli@ersified blend of equi
and fixed income investments. Equity investmengsdiversified across domestic and mimmestic stocks, as well as growth, value and :
to large capitalizations. Fixed income investmeénttude corporate and government issues, with shmitl- and longeerm maturities, with
focus on investment grade when purchased and et tdugation close to that of the plan liabilityvéstment and market risks are measuret
monitored on an ongoing basis through regular itnvent portfolio reviews, annual liability measurertseand periodic asset/liability stud
The majority of the real estate component of thefplo is invested in a diversified portfolio ofigh-quality, operating properties with c:
yields greater than the targeted appreciation.diments in other alternative asset classes, inmudéedge funds and commodities to divel
the expected investment returns relative to theatyeagund fixed income investments. As a result of diversification strategies, there are
significant concentrations of risk within the poitb of investments.

The Companys actual asset allocations are in line with taedleications. The Company rebalances asset alloxsatie appropriate, in ordel
stay within a range of allocation for each assetguary.

The expected return on plan assets is based dbdimpany’s expectation of the lotgrm average rate of return of the capital marketghich

the plans invest. The average market returns gustad, where appropriate, for active asset manageneturns. The expected return refl
the investment policy target asset mix and consitlex historical returns earned for each assegoate
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The Company’s plan assets at September 30, 20131, by asset category, are as follows (in amil):

Fair Value Measurements Using:

Significant
Quoted Prices Other Significant
in Active Observable Unobservable
Total as of Markets Inputs Inputs

Asset Category September 30, 2013 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
U.S. Pension
Cash $ 30 % 30 — —
Equity Securities

Large-Cap 52t 52k — —

Small-Cap 261 261 — —

International - Developed 528 528 — —
Fixed Income Securities

Government 17z 16€ 7 —

Corporate/Other 84z 652 19C —
Hedge Funds 17 — — 17
Real Estate 28t — — 28t
Total $ 2,65¢ $ 2,157 197 30z
Non-U.S. Pension
Cash $ 30 % 30 — —
Equity Securities

Large-Cap 132 132 — —

International - Developed 371 26¢ 10z —

International - Emerging 31 31 — —
Fixed Income Securities

Government 37€ 37¢€ — —

Corporate/Other 531 531 — —
Commodities 6 6 — —
Hedge Fund 89 — — 89
Real Estate 90 81 — 9
Total $ 1,65¢ $ 1,45¢ 10z 98
Postretirement
Cash $ 10 $ 10 — —

Equity Securities



Large-Cap

Small-Cap

International - Developed
International - Emerging

Fixed Income Securities
Government
Corporate/Other

Commodities

Real Estate

Total

36
12
29
14

24

71

17

13

36
12
28
14

24

71

17

13

22¢

22¢
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Fair Value Measurements Using:

Significant
Quoted Prices Other Significant
in Active Observable Unobservable
Total as of Markets Inputs Inputs

Asset Category September 30, 2012 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
U.S. Pension
Cash $ 25 % 25 % —  $ —
Equity Securities

Large-Cap 781 781 — —

Small-Cap 324 324 — —

International - Developed 617 617 — —
Fixed Income Securities

Government 68E 68t — —

Corporate/Other 21¢ 21¢ — —
Hedge Funds 94 — — 94
Real Estate 24C — — 24C
Total $ 2,98t % 2,651 $ — 3 334
Non-U.S. Pension
Cash $ 61 $ 61 $ — 3 —
Equity Securities

Large-Cap 134 134 — —

International - Developed 38: 38: — —

International - Emerging 46 46 — —
Fixed Income Securities

Government 334 334 — —

Corporate/Other 54C 54C — —
Commodities 12 12 — —
Hedge Fund 56 — — 56
Real Estate 91 83 — 8
Total $ 1,657 $ 159 $ —  $ 64
Postretirement
Cash $ 6 $ 6 $ — 3 —
Equity Securities

Large-Cap 35 35 — —



Small-Cap 11 11
International - Developed 25 25
International - Emerging 14 14

Fixed Income Securities

Government 26 26
Corporate/Other 74 74
Commodities 20 20
Real Estate 12 12
Total $ 22 % 227
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Following is a description of the valuation methlmdpes used for assets measured at fair value.
Cash: The fair value of cash is valued at cost.

Equity Securities: The fair value of equity securities is determingddivect or indirect quoted market prices. If iredit quoted market prices
utilized, the value of assets held in separate wdsois not published, but the investment managsert daily the underlying holdings. 1
underlying holdings are direct quoted market primesegulated financial exchanges.

Fixed Income Securities: The fair value of fixed income securities is deterea by direct or indirect quoted market pricesindirect quote
market prices are utilized, the value of assetd meseparate accounts is not published, but thesiment managers report daily the underl
holdings. The underlying holdings are direct quateatket prices on regulated financial exchanges.

Commodities: The fair value of the commodities is determineddmoted market prices of the underlying holdingsregulated financi
exchanges.

Hedge Funds: The fair value of hedge funds is accounted for leyistodian. The custodian obtains valuations frowbedlying managers bas
on market quotes for the most liquid assets arefradtive methods for assets that do not have iificrading activity to derive prices. 1
Company and custodian review the methods usedédwyrberlying managers to value the assets. The @uwyripelieves this is an appropr
methodology to obtain the fair value of these asset

Real Estate: The fair value of Real Estate Investment TrustsI{REis recorded as Level 1 as these securitiesraded on an open exchar
The fair value measurement of other investmente#@l estate is deemed Level 3 since the value exfethinvestments is provided by fi
managers. The fund managers value the real estastinents via independent third party appraisala periodic basis. Assumptions use
revalue the properties are updated every quartee. Jompany believes this is an appropriate metloggoto obtain the fair value of the
assets. For the component of the real estate fiortfoder development, the investments are caatezbst until they are completed and va
by a third party appraiser.

The methods described above may produce a faiewadiculation that may not be indicative of netirable value or reflective of future fi
values. Furthermore, while the Company believesataation methods are appropriate and consistéhtather market participants, the usi
different methodologies or assumptions to deternthree fair value of certain financial instrumentsuleb result in a different fair val
measurement at the reporting date.
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The following sets forth a summary of changes anftir value of assets measured using significanbaervable inputs (Level 3) (in millions):

Total Hedge Funds Real Estate

U.S. Pension

Asset value as of September 30, 2011 $ 29¢ % 94 $ 204
Additions net of redemptions 11 — 11
Unrealized gain 25 — 25
Asset value as of September 30, 2012 $ 334 % 94 $ 24C
Additions net of redemptions (74) (80) 6
Realized gain 32 13 19
Unrealized gain (loss) 10 (10) 20
Asset value as of September 30, 2013 $ 302 % 17 % 28t
Non-U.S. Pension

Asset value as of September 30, 2011 $ 7 $ — 3 7
Additions net of redemptions 48 48 —
Unrealized gain 9 8 1
Asset value as of September 30, 2012 $ 64 $ 56 $ 8
Additions net of redemptions 31 31 —
Unrealized gain 3 2 1
Asset value as of September 30, 2013 $ 9% % 89 % 9
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Funded Status

The table that follows contains the ABO and reclatodns of the changes in the PBO, the changgdan assets and the funded statu
millions):

Pension Benefits Postretirement

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans Benefits

September 30, 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Accumulated Benefit Obligation $ 283 $ 358 $ 1,908 $ 1,90¢ % — 3 —
Change in Projected Benefit Obligation
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year 3,73¢ 2,95: 2,02t 1,852 26€ 25¢
Service cost 9C 69 38 41 5 5
Interest cost 151 15C 64 73 11 13
Plan participant contributions — — 5 6 6 7
Acquisitions — — 2 6 — —
Divestitures (1) — — (20) 2 — —
Actuarial (gain) loss (452) 722 84 10¢ (22) 7
Amendments made during the year 2 — 1 (6) — —
Benefits and settlements paid (627) (158) (7€) (93 (22 (31)
Estimated subsidy received — — — — 1 2
Curtailment — — (15 2 — —
Other — — 4 41 _ 2
Currency translation adjustment — — (19 — Q)
Projected benefit obligation at end of year $ 290: $ 373 $ 1997 $ 2,028 % 248 $ 26€
Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 298 $ 237: % 1,657 $ 1,471  $ 22 $ 15€
Actual return on plan assets 282 504 11C 15¢& 12 3E
Acquisitions — — 1 — — —
Divestitures — — — Q) — —
Employer and employee contributions 1C 267 8t 97 13 63
Benefits paid (136) (158) (64) (74) (22 (31
Settlement payments (48%) — (112 (29 — —
Other — — 3 1€ — —
Currency translation adjustment — — (24) 12 — —
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 265¢ $ 298 §$§ 165 $ 1651 $ 22 $ 22¢
Funded status $ (246 3 (715) $ (34) % (36) % (19 % (439
Amounts recognized in the statement of financiaiian consist of:

Prepaid benefit cost $ 28 % 3 3 83 % 61 $ 51 $ 39

Accrued benefit liability (27%) (754) (424) (429 (70 (82)
Net amount recognized $ (246) 3 (751) % (34) ¢ (368) % (19 % (43

Weighted Average Assumptions (2)
Discount rate (3) 4.9(% 4.15% 3.6(% 3.4(% 4.9(% 4.15%
Rate of compensation increase 3.3(% 3.25% 2.6(% 2.4% NA NA
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(1) Fiscal 2013 includes $14 millimf projected benefit obligations transferred tdilities held for sale on the consolidated statetnuod
financial position for noJ.S. plans. Refer to Note 3, "Assets and Liabditléeld for Sale," of the notes to consolidated rfgial
statements for further information regarding thempany's disposal groups classified as held for. sale

(2) Plan assets and obligations are determineedbas a September 30 measurement date at Septd@ 2913 and 2012

3) The Company considers the expected benefitnpays on a plan-bptan basis when setting assumed discount rates. vésult, th
Company uses different discount rates for each gipending on the plan jurisdiction, the demogrepluf participants and t
expected timing of benefit payments. For the Ushgion and postretirement plans, the Company udéscaunt rate provided by
independent third party calculated based on anogpte mix of high quality bonds. For the nors. pension and postretirem
plans, the Company consistently uses the relevanitcy specific benchmark indices for determining various discount rates.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensiveriaamn the consolidated statement of financial osiexclusive of tax impacts, that h
not yet been recognized as components of net petiahefit cost at September 30, 2013 are as faligavmillions):

Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (income)
Net transition obligation $ 1 3 —
Net prior service credit (20 9
Total $ 9 $ 9)

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensiveriag@xpected to be recognized as components oenedi benefit cost over the next
fiscal year are shown below (in millions):

Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
Amortization of:
Net transition obligation $ — 3 —
Net prior service credit — @)
Total $ — $ ()
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Net Periodic Benefit Cost

The table that follows contains the componentsebforriodic benefit cost (in millions):

Pension Benefits

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans Postretirement Benefits

Year ended September 30, 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
Components of Net

Periodic Benefit Cost

(Credit):
Service cost $ 90 $ 69 $ 66 38 $ 41 34 % 5 ¢ 5 5
Interest cost 151 15C 14t 64 73 7C 11 13 13
Expected return on plan
assets (232 (214 (20%) (72) (75) (75) (13) (17) —
Net actuarial (gain) loss (439 432 33€ 48 30 43 (20) (15) 5
Amortization of prior

service cost (credit) 1 1 1 (€N} (D) 2 ()] a7 a7
Curtailment gain — — — (26) ()] (19 — — —
Settlement (gain) loss (69 — — Q) — 4 — — —
Net periodic benefit cost
(credit) $ (492 $ 43t $§ 34t 51 $ 66 5 $ (34 $ (25 6
Expense Assumptions:
Discount rate 4.15% 5.25% 5.5(% 3.4(% 4.0(% 4.0(% 4.15% 5.25% 5.5(%
Expected return on plan
assets 8.0(% 8.5(% 8.5(% 4.55% 5.15% 5.5(% 5.8(% 6.3(% NA
Rate of compensation
increase 3.25% 3.3(% 3.2(% 2.45% 2.45% 3.0(% NA NA NA

16. SIGNIFICANT RESTRUCTURING AND IMPAIRMENT COS TS

To better align its resources with its growth stigi¢s and reduce the cost structure of its glopatations to address the softness in ce
underlying markets, the Company committed to a ii@mt restructuring plan in fiscal 2012 and reded $297 millionof significan
restructuring and impairment costs, of which $58#iom was recorded in the third quarter and $248iomi in the fourth quarter of fiscal 20:
As a continuation of its restructuring plan annadhén fiscal 2012, the Company recorded $985 mnilldd significant restructuring al
impairment costs in fiscal 2013, of which $84 roifliwas recorded in the second quarter, $143 miitiahe third quarter and $758 million
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013. The restructgriactions related to cost reduction initiativestlie Companys Automotive Experienc
Building Efficiency and Power Solutions businesaed included workforce reductions, plant closuaes] asset and goodwill impairments.

restructuring actions are expected to be substgnt@amplete by the end of fiscal 2014.

The following table summarizes the changes in thm@anys restructuring reserve, included within other entdiabilities in the consolidat

statements of financial position (in millions):

Employee
Severance and Long-
Termination Lived Asset Goodwill Currency
Benefits Impairments Impairment Other Translation Total
Original Reserve $ 237 % 39 $ — 21 % — 297
Utilized—cash (16) — — (6) — (22
Utilized—noncash — (39 — (8) — (47
Balance at September 30, 2012 $ 221 % — % — 7 % — % 22¢
Additional restructuring and impairment
costs 39z 15€ 43C 7 — 98t
Utilized—cash (147 — — (7 — (14¢)
Utilized—noncash — (15€) (430 4) 2 (58¢)
Transfer to liabilities held for sale (32) — — — — (31
Balance at September 30, 2013 $ 441  $ — § — 3 § 2 $ 44¢
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The Company's restructuring plans included worldamductions of approximately 16,700 employeess(0®for the Automotive Experien
business, 6,200 for the Building Efficiency busmemd 1,000for the Power Solutions business). Restructuringrgbs associated w
employee severance and termination benefits ateqar the severance period granted to each enmlmyen a lump sum basis in accord:
with individual severance agreements. As of Sep&r3b, 2013, approximately 6,300the employees have been separated from the Guoj
pursuant to the restructuring plans. In additidm testructuring plans included twenty-one plamsgtes ( seventeefor Automotive
Experience, two for Building Efficiency and two f@®ower Solutions). As of September 30, 2013, fit¢he twentyene plants have be
closed.

Refer to Note 17, “Impairment of Long-Lived Assétef the notes to consolidated financial statemeotsurther information regarding t
long-lived asset impairment charges recorded ap#ne restructuring actions.

Refer to Note 6, Goodwill and other Intangible Assets," of the naiegonsolidated financial statements for furth#oimation regarding tt
goodwill impairment charge recorded in the fourtlader of fiscal 2013.

Company management closely monitors its overall simacture and continually analyzes each of itsirsses for opportunities to consolit
current operations, improve operating efficiencdsl locate facilities in low cost countries in @ogroximity to customers. This ongo
analysis includes a review of its manufacturinggieeering and purchasing operations, as well asotheall global footprint for all i
businesses. Because of the importance of new eebates by major automotive manufacturers to ojpaigtthe Company is affected by
general business conditions in this industry. Fautadverse developments in the automotive indusinjdcimpact the Company’liquidity
position, lead to impairment charges and/or recaididitional restructuring of its operations.

17. IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairnmvemenever events or changes in circumstancesatelibat the assstcarrying amou
may not be recoverable. The Company conducts iitg-lived asset impairment analyses in accordante A$C 360-10-15, Impairment o
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” ASC 360-16-requires the Company to group assets and tiakilat the lowest level for which identifia
cash flows are largely independent of the cash dlaf/ other assets and liabilities and evaluate abset group against the sum of
undiscounted future cash flows. If the undiscourdash flows do not indicate the carrying amounthef asset is recoverable, an impairr
charge is measured as the amount by which theicgraynount of the asset group exceeds its fairevbhsed on discounted cash flow ana
or appraisals.

In the second, third and fourth quarters of fis2@l13, the Company concluded it had a triggeringhewequiring assessment of impairment
certain of its londived assets in conjunction with its restructurexgions announced in fiscal 2013. In addition,ha fourth quarter of fisc
2013, the Company concluded that it had a triggeewent requiring assessment of impairment fotahgived assets held by the Automot
Experience Interiors segment due to the impairneérgoodwill in the quarter. As a result, the Compaaviewed the londived assets fc
impairment and recorded a $156 millimnpairment charge within restructuring and impaintneosts on the consolidated statement of inc
of which $13 million was recorded in the secondrtgra$36 million in the third quarter and $107 lioit in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013.
the total impairment charge, $57 million relatedhte Automotive Experience Interiors segment, $4ilan related to the Building Efficien:
Other segment, $22 million related to the AutometBixperience Seating segment, $18 million relatethé Power Solutions segmef,z
million related to corporate assets and $7 millretated to various segments within the Buildingidi#incy business. Refer to Note
“Significant Restructuring and Impairment Costsf’the notes to consolidated financial statememtsaéiditional information. The impairme
was measured, depending on the asset, either andecome approach utilizing forecasted discountesh flows or a market approach utiliz
an appraisal to determine fair values of the impairt assets. These methods are consistent witimeétieods the Company employed in
periods to value other lorgred assets. The inputs utilized in the analysesciassified as Level 3 inputs within the fairualhierarchy ¢
defined in ASC 820, "Fair Value Measurement.”

In the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2012 tompany concluded it had a triggering event raggiassessment of impairment for certai
its longdived assets in conjunction with its restructuragtions announced in fiscal 2012. In addition,he fourth quarter of fiscal 2012,
Company concluded it had a triggering event reggiassessment of impairment for certain of its {iwed assets due to volume decline
the European automotive markets. As a result, tbenfany reviewed the long-lived assets for impaitmeamd recorded &39 million
impairment charge within restructuring and impaintneosts on the consolidated statement of incofh@hach $3 millionwas recorded in ti
third quarter and $36 million in the fourth quartdrfiscal 2012. Of the total impairment charge4 $illion related to the Power Solutic
segment, $11 million related to the Automotive Bxgrece Interiors segment, $4 millioelated to the Building Efficiency Other segmend
$10 million related to corporate assets. Refer tieNL6, “Significant Restructuring and Impairmeras@,” of the notes to consolidal
financial statements for additional information.eTimpairment was measured, depending on the &setr under an income approach utiliz
forecasted discounted cash flows or a market appratlizing an appraisal to determine fair valwéshe impairment assets. These met|
are
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consistent with the methods the Company employegkior periods to value other loriyed assets. The inputs utilized in the analyse
classified as Level 3 inputs within the fair vahierarchy as defined in ASC 820, "Fair Value Measugnt."

In the second quarter of fiscal 2012, the Compa&epnded an impairment charge related to an equitystment. Refer to Note 115dir Value
Measurements,” of the notes to consolidated firerstatements for additional information.

At September 30, 2013 and 201the Company concluded it did not have any ottiggéring events requiring assessment of impairréits
long-lived assets. Refer to Note 1, “Summary ofn8igant Accounting Policies,’of the notes to consolidated financial statement
discussion of the Company’s goodwill impairmentites Refer to Note 6, “Goodwill and Other IntanigitAssets, of the notes to consolidal
financial statements for further information regagdthe goodwill impairment charge recorded infinerth quarter of fiscal 2013.

18. INCOME TAXES

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, the Compahgriged its method of inventory costing for cerfairentory in its Power Solutions busin
to the first-in first-out (FIFO) method from thestain first-out (LIFO) method. Certain amounts have been revieereflect the retrospecti
application of this accounting policy change. TH4 % million adjustment to the opening balance of retained egsras of September 30, 2!
was net of a $73 million tax provision. Refer totdld, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policiesf the notes to consolidated finan
statements for further details surrounding thisoaoting policy change.

The more significant components of the Companysine tax provision from continuing operations adaflows (in millions):

Year Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011

Tax expense at federal statutory rate $ 865 ¢ 53z % 627
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 46 17 (20
Foreign income tax expense at different rates arelgn losses

without tax benefits (317) (38]) (35))
U.S. tax on foreign income (69 (20 28
Reserve and valuation allowance adjustments 197 13 (30
U.S. credits and incentives (28) (13 )
Gain on business divestiture 59 — —
Restructuring and impairment costs 23t 81 —
Change in assertion over permanently reinvestedress 21C — —
Other (28) (20) 1
Provision for income taxes $ 1,16¢ $ 20¢  § 25¢

The effective rate is above the U.S. statutory fatdiscal 2013 primarily due to the tax consequesof the sale of the HomeLink®oduc
line, significant restructuring and impairment gpghe change in our assertion over reinvestmefibrefgn undistributed earnings prima
related to the Electronics business, and valuagidmwance and uncertain tax position adjustmengstiglly offset by favorable tax au
resolutions, the benefits of continuing global pd&nning initiatives and income in certain ndri. jurisdictions with a tax rate lower than
U.S. statutory tax rate. The effective rate is betloe U.S. statutory rate for fiscal 2012 and 2fdifnarily due to continuing global tax plann
initiatives and income in certain non-U.S. jurigitins with a rate of tax lower than the U.S. statytax rate.

Valuation Allowances

The Company reviews the realizability of its dedeiitax asset valuation allowances on a quartedyspar whenever events or change
circumstances indicate that a review is requiradidtermining the requirement for a valuation alloee, the historical and projected finar
results of the legal entity or consolidated groapording the net deferred tax asset are considatedg with any other positive or nega
evidence. Since future financial results may diffem previous estimates, periodic adjustmenthigo@Gompanys valuation allowances may
necessary.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013he Company performed an analysis related tadhBzability of its worldwide deferred tax asseAs &
result, and after considering tax planning initiad and other positive and negative evidence, tragany determined that it was more lik
than not that deferred tax assets within GermauyRiiand would not be realized. The Company also
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determined that it was more likely than not tha&t deferred tax assets within two French Power Bolsitentities would be realized. Therefi
the Company recorded $145 million of net valuaBiowances as income tax expense in the three npantbd ended September 30, 2013 .

In the second quarter of fiscal 201the Company determined that it was more likegntimot that a portion of the deferred tax assetisin
Brazil and Germany would not be realized. Thereftire Company recorded $94 million of valuatiomwatnces as income tax expense.

In fiscal 2012 , the Company recorded an overaligase to its valuation allowances of $47 millgmarily due to a discrete period income
adjustment in the fourth quarter. In the fourth eraof fiscal 2012, the Company performed an analysis related torébézability of it
worldwide deferred tax assets. As a result, angl @finsidering tax planning initiatives and othesifive and negative evidence, the Comy
determined that it was more likely than not thateded tax assets within Power Solutions in Chirmuld not be realized. Therefore,
Company recorded a $35 million valuation allowaaseéncome tax expense in the three month periodce8éptember 30, 2012 .

In fiscal 2011 , the Company recorded a decreasistwaluation allowances primarily due to a $3dliom discrete period income t
adjustment in the fourth quarter. In the fourth eraof fiscal 2011, the Company performed an analysis related toréhézability of it
worldwide deferred tax assets. As a result, angl @finsidering tax planning initiatives and othesifive and negative evidence, the Comy
determined that it was more likely than not tha tieferred tax assets primarily within Denmarkly|téutomotive Experience in Korea &
Automotive Experience in the United Kingdom woulkliealized. Therefore, the Company released a3tetrilion of valuation allowances
a benefit to income tax expense in the three mpetlod ended September 30, 2011 .

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company is subject to income taxes in the dErf8l. numerous foreign jurisdictions. Judgment isuiregl in determining its worldwic
provision for income taxes and recording the relaissets and liabilities. In the ordinary coursehaf Companys business, there are m
transactions and calculations where the ultimatelédermination is uncertain. The Company is regylander audit by tax authorities.

At September 30, 2013 , the Company had gross ffaéxted unrecognized tax benefits of $1,345 milliohwhich $1,198 million, if
recognized, would impact the effective tax ratetalmet accrued interest at September 30, 2013appsoximately $84 millior(net of ta;
benefit).

At September 30, 2012 , the Company had gross ffaxted unrecognized tax benefits of $1,465 milliohwhich $1,274 million, if
recognized, would impact the effective tax ratetalmet accrued interest at September 30, 2012appsoximately $72 millior(net of tas
benefit).

At September 30, 2011 , the Company had gross ffaéxted unrecognized tax benefits of $1,357 milliohwhich $1,164 million, if
recognized, would impact the effective tax ratetalmet accrued interest at September 30, 2011appsoximately $77 million(net of tas
benefit).

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoafntinrecognized tax benefits is as follows (inlimils):

Year Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011
Beginning balance, September 30 $ 1,468 % 1357 % 1,26
Additions for tax positions related to the currgear 12z 142 15C
Additions for tax positions of prior years 84 36 20
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (43 (58) (62
Settlements with taxing authorities (160 — (5)
Statute closings (45) (13 (8)
Audit resolutions (79 — —
Ending balance, September 30 $ 1,34t ¢ 1,46 $ 1,355
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In the U.S., fiscal years 2010 through 2012 areeruly under exam by the Internal Revenue SentiR€8) and 2004 through 2009 are curre
under (IRS) appeals. Additionally, the Companyugently under exam in the following major foreigmisdictions:

Tax Jurisdiction Tax Years Covered
Belgium 2011 - 2012

Brazil 2004 - 2008
Canada 2007 - 2010
France 2002 - 2012
Germany 2001 - 2010

Italy 2005 - 2009

Japan 2010 - 2012

Korea 2008 - 2012
Mexico 2003 - 2004, 2008 - 2011
Poland 2008 - 2009

The Company expects that certain tax examinat@mgellate proceedings and/or tax litigation wilhctude within the next twelveonths, th
impact of which is not expected to be significamtite Company's consolidated financial statements.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2013 , tax auditalesions resulted in a net $79 million benefith@ome tax expense.

As a result of foreign law changes during the sdaquarter of fiscal 2013the Company increased its total reserve for datetax position:
resulting in income tax expense of $17 million .

As a result of certain events related to priorgkanning initiatives, during the third quarter &fdal 2012, the Company reduced the reserve
uncertain tax positions by $22 million , includifig3 million of interest and penalties, resultingibenefit to income tax expense.

Other Tax Matters

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013 , the Compaisposed of assets, the HomeLink® product line @rthin businesses, which resulte$bt
million of incremental tax expense above the stajutate on the net gain.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, the Compamyvirled income tax expense on the foreign undisteith earnings of the ndd-S. subsidiarie
primarily related to the Electronics business, Wwhigsulted in $210 million of incremental tax expen

During fiscal 2013, the Company incurred significant charges forrtestiring and impairment costs. A substantial portof these charg
cannot be benefited for tax purposes due to thepaawis current tax position in these jurisdictiansl the underlying tax basis in the impa
assets, thus causing a $235 million incrementa¢igeense.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2013 , the Compapegalved certain Mexican tax issues, which resulted $61 millionbenefit to income te
expense.

I mpacts of Tax Legisation and Change in Statutory Tax Rates

As a result of foreign law changes during the sdaqunarter of fiscal 2013the Company increased its total reserve for dagetax position:
resulting in income tax expense of $17 million .

The "look-through rule," under subpart F of the Ui8ernal Revenue Code, expired for the Companyseptember 30, 2012 . The "look:
through rule" had provided an exception to the WaSation of certain income generated by foreighsaliaries. The rule was extendet
January 2013 retroactive to the beginning of themm@any's 2013 fiscal year.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 20aR leislation was adopted in Japan which redutsestatutory income tax rate by 5%ilso,
tax legislation was adopted in various jurisdictida limit the annual utilization of tax lossestthee carried forward.
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None of these changes had a material impact o@dhepan’s consolidated financial condition, results of d@ns or cash flows.
Continuing Operations

Components of the provision for income taxes ortinaing operations were as follows (in millions):

Year Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011
Current
Federal $ 327 % 118 $ 5€
State 41 12 —
Foreign 527 31z 45¢
89t 447 514
Deferred
Federal 462 94 95
State 14 18 9)
Foreign (203) (34¢) (342)
27¢ (234 (25€)
Provision for income taxes $ 1,16¢ % 20¢ % 25¢

Consolidated domestic income from continuing openst before income taxes and noncontrolling intsrder the fiscal years end
September 30, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 was income ,88%2nillion , $1,061 million and $1,013 millionrespectively. Consolidated fore
income from continuing operations before incomeetaand noncontrolling interests for the fiscal geamded September 30, 2013 , 2@h2
2011 was income of $130 million , $459 million 877 million , respectively.

Income taxes paid for the fiscal years ended SdpeB0, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 were $531 million 9654nillion and $384 million,
respectively.

The Company has not provided additional U.S. incéaxes on approximately $7.6 billiasf undistributed earnings of consolidated for
subsidiaries included in shareholdeesjuity attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. Seenings could become taxable upon the sg
liquidation of these foreign subsidiaries or upduidind repatriation. The Compayintent is for such earnings to be reinvested He
subsidiaries or to be repatriated only when it widug tax effective through the utilization of fayeitax credits. It is not practicable to estin
the amount of unrecognized withholding taxes anigrded tax liability on such earnings. In the féuguarter of fiscal 2013, the Compi
provided income tax expense on the foreign undisteid earnings of the ndn-S. subsidiaries primarily related to the Elecicsrbusines
which resulted in $210 million of incremental taxpense. Refer to “Capitalization” within the “Liglily and Capital Resourceseéction o
Item 7 for discussion of domestic and foreign gaistjections.

Deferred taxes were classified in the consolidatatements of financial position as follows (inliaits):

September 30,
2013 2012
Other current assets $ 567 $ 51¢
Other noncurrent assets 1,34¢ 1,78:
Other current liabilities 4 (20
Other noncurrent liabilities (58 (95)
Net deferred tax asset $ 1,852 $ 2,19¢
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Temporary differences and carryforwards which géaseto deferred tax assets and liabilities inctu@e millions):

September 30,
2013 2012

Deferred tax assets
Accrued expenses and reserves $ 43¢ $ 48¢
Employee and retiree benefits 17< 444
Net operating loss and other credit carryforwards 2,752 2,58
Research and development 14€ 79

3,51( 3,69¢
Valuation allowances (1,172) (76€)

2,33¢ 2,827
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 12¢ 11¢
Intangible assets 19¢ 34¢
Other 16( 162

484 631

Net deferred tax asset $ 1,85« $ 2,19¢

Note that the above tables exclude the amountefeid tax assets and liabilities for fis2013that have been transferred to assets he
sale and liabilities held for sale within the coiidated statement of financial position.

At September 30, 2013 , the Company had availableperating loss carryforwards of approximatehO$llion , of which $2.1 billiorwill
expire at various dates between 2014 and 2032 ttendemainder has an indefinite carryforward peribde Company had available L
foreign tax credit carryforwards at September 301 of $900 million, which will expire at various dates between 20h@ 2022. Th
valuation allowance, generally, is for loss carryfards for which realization is uncertain because unlikely that the losses will be reali:
given the lack of sustained profitability and/anifed carryforward periods in certain countries.

19. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Effective October 1, 2012, the Company reorganihedreportable segments within its Automotive Eigregze business to align with its n
management reporting structure and business aesivierior to this reorganization, Automotive Expace was comprised of thregportabli
segments for financial reporting purposes: Northefina, Europe and Asia. As a result of this chargetomotive Experience is nc
comprised of threeew reportable segments for financial reportingopses: Seating, Interiors and Electronics. Histbiiicformation has be:
revised to reflect the new Automotive Experienqeoréable segment structure.

ASC 280, “Segment Reportingéstablishes the standards for reporting informatibonut segments in financial statements. In apglyire
criteria set forth in ASC 280, the Company has mheitged that it has nine reportable segments farifomal reporting purposes. The Company’
nine reportable segments are presented in the>taoftés three primary businesseBuilding Efficiency, Automotive Experience and Pa
Solutions.

Building Efficiency
Building Efficiency designs, produces, markets argdalls heating, ventilating and air conditioniftg/AC) and control systems that moni
automate and integrate critical building segmentiggent and conditions including HVAC, fisafety and security in commercial buildi
and in various industrial applications.

* North America Systems designs, produces, markadsirzstalls mechanical equipment that provides hgatind cooling in Nor!

American norresidential buildings and industrial applicatiorssveell as control systems that integrate the ojmeraif this equipme!
with other critical building systems.
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* North America Service provides technical servicegduding inspection, scheduled maintenance, repairreplacement of mechan
and control systems in North America, as well &sr#trofit and service components of performancgracts and other solutions.

e Global Workplace Solutions provides site staff for complete real estate services, ifgaliperation and management to improve
comfort, productivity, energy efficiency and coffeetiveness of building systems around the globe.

» Asia provides HVAC and refrigeration systems aruhitécal services to the Asian marketpl:

» Other provides HVAC and refrigeration systems authhical services to markets in Europe, the Miditst and Latin America. Ott
also designs and produces heating and air condlij@olutions for residential and light commer@ablications, and markets prodt
to the replacement and new construction markets.

Automotive Experience

Automotive Experience designs and manufacturesidamteystems and products for passenger cars ghtl liucks, including vans, piakg
trucks and sport utility/crossover vehicles.

e Seating produces automotive seat metal structun@sn@chanisms, foam, trim, fabric and complete sgstems

» Interiors produces instrument panels, floor corssadeor panels, headliners and overhead sys

» Electronics produces information displays and boaiytrollers, including electronic convenience feas, and clustel
Power Solutions

Power Solutions services both automotive originglipment manufacturers and the battery aftermabketproviding advanced batte
technology, coupled with systems engineering, ntargeand service expertise.

Management evaluates the performance of the segniested primarily on segment income, which reptesalcome from continuir
operations before income taxes and noncontrolligrésts excluding net financing charges, significastructuring and impairment costs,
net mark-tomarket adjustments on pension and postretiremamsplGeneral corporate and other overhead expansedlocated to busine
segments in determining segment income. Finandiaimation relating to the Company’s reportablensents is as follows (in millions):

Year Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011
Net Sales
Building Efficiency
North America Systems $ 2,36 $ 2,38¢ % 2,34:
North America Service 2,13( 2,14¢ 2,30¢
Global Workplace Solutions 4,26¢ 4,29¢ 4,15:
Asia 2,022 1,98 1,84(
Other 3,81: 3,90( 4,25:
14,59: 14,71t 14,89:
Automotive Experience
Seating 16,28¢ 15,85¢ 14,65¢
Interiors 4,17¢ 4,12¢ 4,11¢
Electronics 1,32( 1,351 1,29(
21,78: 21,33« 20,06
Power Solutions 6,35¢ 5,90¢ 5,87¢
Total net sales $ 42,730 $ 41,958 $ 40,83:
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Year Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011
Segment Income (Loss)
Building Efficiency
North America Systems (1) $ 27¢ % 28¢ $ 247
North America Service (2) 22¢ 164 121
Global Workplace Solutions (3) 114 52 22
Asia (4) 27¢ 267 251
Other (5) 89 141 10t
98¢ 91C 74€
Automotive Experience
Seating (6) 722 694 641
Interiors (7) (9 (20 (5)
Electronics (8) 58t 12¢ 144
1,29¢ 80¢ 78C
Power Solutions (9) 1,00¢ 784 822
Total segment income $ 3,29: % 2,491 $ 2,34¢
Net financing charges (24¢) (233 (179
Restructuring and impairment costs (985) (297) —
Net mark-to-market adjustments on pension and
postretirement plans 40~ (447) (389
Income before income taxes $ 2,46¢  $ 152C $ 1,79(
September 30,
2013 2012 2011
Assets
Building Efficiency
North America Systems $ 1,22: % 1,32¢ $ 1,30(
North America Service 1,471 1,52¢ 1,581
Global Workplace Solutions 1,28¢ 1,23¢ 1,22¢
Asia 1,352 1,31¢ 1,24
Other 3,76¢ 3,94 4,11t
9,10¢ 9,34¢ 9,471
Automotive Experience
Seating 9,76: 9,33¢ 9,31¢
Interiors (10) 1,87 2,571 2,59(
Electronics (10) — 842 88¢
11,63: 12,75 12,79¢
Power Solutions 7,45¢ 7,312 6,75(
Assets held for sale 804 — —
Unallocated 2,51« 1,54 76¢
Total $ 31,51¢ $ 30,95 $ 29,78¢
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Year Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011
Depreciation/Amortization
Building Efficiency
North America Systems $ 11 % 12 8 1C
North America Service 25 25 25
Global Workplace Solutions 25 24 18
Asia 19 19 15
Other 89 66 69
16¢ 14€ 137
Automotive Experience
Seating 354 32C 273
Interiors 11€ 10¢ 111
Electronics 41 35 35
511 464 41¢
Power Solutions 272 214 17t
Total $ 95z % 824 $ 731

Year Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011
Capital Expenditures
Building Efficiency
North America Systems $ 4 $ 6 $ 6
North America Service 8 25 17
Global Workplace Solutions 7 7 32
Asia 73 38 22
Other 10€ 10¢ 91
19¢ 17¢ 16¢
Automotive Experience
Seating 467 54¢ 44¢
Interiors 23t 171 14¢€
Electronics 52 57 46
754 777 63¢
Power Solutions 42~ 87t 51¢
Total $ 1377 $ 1,831 $ 1,32t

(1) Building Efficiency - North America Systemsgeeent income for the years ended September 30, 2042012 excludeb20 million
and $2 million , respectively, of restructuring antpairment costs.

(2) Building Efficiency - North America Servicegment income for the years ended September 30, 20d2012 excludesl8 million
and $6 million , respectively, of restructuring antpbairment costs. For the years ended Septemhe203@and 2011 North Americ
Service segment income includes $1 million and $kom , respectively, of equity income.

3) Building Efficiency - Global Workplace Solutis segment income for the years ended Septemb@033, and 2012 excludé&bd
million and $16 million , respectively, of restrudng and impairment costs.

4 Building Efficiency - Asia segment income fibre years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 ezcidenillion and $1 million
respectively, of restructuring and impairment cobtr the years ended September 30, 2013 , 2012@hH, Asia segment incon
includes $2 million , $3 million and $3 millionespectively, of equity income.
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(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

Building Efficiency - Other segment income foe years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 escigb million and $64 million
respectively, of restructuring and impairment cobts the years ended September 30, 2013 , 2012@ht, Other segment incor
includes $26 million , $23 million and $17 milliomespectively, of equity income.

Automotive Experience - Seating segment incdonghe years ended September 30, 2013 and 20d@des $152 million an§101
million , respectively, of restructuring and impagnt costs. For the years ended September 30, 2@032 and 2011 Seatini
segment income includes $287 million , $194 millr $192 million , respectively, of equity income.

Automotive Experience - Interiors segment imeofor the years ended September 30, 2013 and &adddes $560 million an#i4¢
million , respectively, of restructuring and impa@&nt costs. For the years ended September 30, 22032 and 2011 Interiors
segment income includes $16 million , $17 millie a9 million , respectively, of equity income.

Automotive Experience - Electronics segmenbine for the years ended September 30, 2013 artl@@ludes $28 million andl1Z
million , respectively, of restructuring and impagnt costs. For the years ended September 30, 20082 and 2011 Electronic
segment income includes $3 million , $2 million &8 million, respectively, of equity income. The year endept&aber 30, 201
includes a $476 million gain on divestiture of themeLink® product line net of transaction costs.

Power Solutions segment income for the yeadeée September 30, 2013 and 2012 excludes $3®@mild $37 million respectively
of restructuring and impairment costs. For the yearded September 30, 2013 , 2012 and 2@dwer Solutions segment incc
includes $68 million , $100 million and $62 milliomespectively, of equity income.

Current year amounts exclude assets held for Ratier to Note 3, "Assets and Liabilities Held fal&" of the notes to consolida
financial statements for further information regagdthe Company's disposal groups classified & foelsale.

The Company has significant sales to the automatisestry. In fiscal years 2013 , 2012 and 2014 castomer exceeded 108bconsolidate
net sales.

Geographic Segments

Financial information relating to the Company’s @i®ns by geographic area is as follows (in milj

Year Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011

Net Sales

United States $ 16,68. $ 15,48 $ 14,36°
Germany 4,73( 4,79( 4,59(
Mexico 2,33( 2,18¢ 1,86¢
Other European countries 9,94: 10,66: 10,21
Other foreign 9,04¢ 8,82¢ 9,79t
Total $ 42,730 $ 41,958 $ 40,83
LongLived Assets (Yeaend)

United States $ 2,551 % 2521 % 2,11¢
Germany 1,05 87¢ 864
Mexico 56( 58¢ 54(C
Other European countries 1,43¢ 1,55 1,35¢
Other foreign 97¢ 89t 74C
Total $ 6,585 $ 6,44C $ 5,61¢

Net sales attributed to geographic locations aseth@n the location of the assets producing thresshbne-lived assets by geographic locai
consist of net property, plant and equipment.
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20. NONCONSOLIDATED PARTIALLY-OWNED AFFILIATES

Investments in the net assets of nonconsolidatethiyrowned affiliates are stated in the “Investnts in partially-owned affiliatedine in the
consolidated statements of financial position aSeftember 30, 2013 and 2012 . Equity in the rezinre of nonconsolidated partiakywnec
affiliates is stated in the “Equity income” lineftine consolidated statements of income for thesyeaded September 30, 2013, 2012 and 201

The following table presents summarized financabdor the Company’s nonconsolidated partiallyned affiliates. The amounts include:
the table below represent 100% of the results efatpns of such nonconsolidated partiallyned affiliates accounted for under the ec
method.

Summarized balance sheet data as of Septembea8Gadows (in millions):

2013 2012
Current assets $ 3,987 $ 3,33¢
Noncurrent assets 1,77¢ 1,64¢
Total assets 5,76: 4,987
Current liabilities $ 3,04¢ $ 2,501
Noncurrent liabilities 61z 553
Shareholders’ equity 2,10z 1,93:
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 5,76: 4,98

Summarized income statement data for the yearsde®elptember 30 is as follows (in millions):

2013 2012 2011
Net sales $ 9,97 $ 9,261 $ 8,46¢
Gross profit 1,48 1,42: 1,15¢
Net income attributable to the entity 63¢ 664 52¢

21. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company accrues for potential environmentaillliges in a manner consistent with U.S. GAAP;tti when it is probable a liability h
been incurred and the amount of the liability iss@nably estimable. Reserves for environmentalitiab totaled $25 million aSeptember 3
2013 and 2012 The Company reviews the status of its environadesites on a quarterly basis and adjusts its veseaccordingly. Sut
potential liabilities accrued by the Company do taie into consideration possible recoveries airiinsurance proceeds. They do, howt
take into account the likely share other partids lveiar at remediation sites. It is difficult totiesate the Compang’ ultimate level of liability ¢
many remediation sites due to the large numbethargarties that may be involved, the complexftdetermining the relative liability amo
those parties, the uncertainty as to the naturesaage of the investigations and remediation ted®lucted, the uncertainty in the applica
of law and risk assessment, the various choicexasis$ associated with diverse technologies thgtlmaused in corrective actions at the s
and the often quite lengthy periods over which évaihremediation may occur. Nevertheless, the Complmes not currently believe that
claims, penalties or costs in connection with knasmvironmental matters will have a material advesBect on the Company’financia
position, results of operations or cash flows. dditon, the Company has identified asset retiranobtigations for environmental matters 1
are expected to be addressed at the retiremeptsdis removal or abandonment of existing owneditias, primarily in the Power Solutio
business. At September 30, 2013 and 2012 , the @ayngecorded conditional asset retirement obligatiof $56 million and $76 million
respectively.

The Company is involved in a number of productiligband various other casualty lawsuits incidémtthe operation of its businesses.
Company maintains insurance coverages and recstisated costs for claims and suits of this natliris. managemerg’opinion that none
these will have a material adverse effect on the@any’s financial position, results of operations or cistvs. Costs related to such mat
were not material to the periods presented.
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JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(In millions)
Year Ended September 30, 2013 2012 2011
Accounts ReceivableAllowance for Doubtful Accounts
Balance at beginning of period $ 78 % 88 $ 9€
Provision charged to costs and expenses 68 47 37
Reserve adjustments (50 (15 (23
Accounts charged off (27) (42 (29
Acquisition of businesses 1 — 4
Divestiture of businesses Q) — —
Currency translation — 1) 1)
Transfers to held for sale Q) — —
Balance at end of period $ 68 $ 78 % 8¢
Deferred Tax AssetsValuation Allowance
Balance at beginning of period $ 766 % 71¢ % 73¢
Allowance provision for new operating and othesloarryforwards 16t 11¢ 95
Acquisition of businesses — — 18
Allowance provision (benefit) adjustments 25C (72) (139
Transfers to held for sale 9) — —
Balance at end of period $ 1172 § 766 $ 71¢
ITEM 9 CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL

DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participatiothef Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Oéfic has evaluated t
effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure contaold procedures (as such term is defined in Rulelb8a) under the Securities Exchange
of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act")) as ofetiet of the period covered by this report. Basedumh evaluations, the CompasyChie
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer hagencluded that, as of the end of such period, tbhenganys disclosure controls a
procedures are effective in recording, processsngymarizing, and reporting, on a timely basis, imfation required to be disclosed by
Company in the reports that it files or submits emthe Exchange Act, and that information is acdated and communicated to

Company’s management, including the Companghief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offic as appropriate, to allow tim
decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Companys management is responsible for establishing aridtai@ing adequate internal control over financigorting, as such term
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). The Compamyanagement, with the participation of the ConyarChief Executive Officer a
Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effemtiess of the Comparsyinternal control over financial reporting basedtbe framework i
Internal Control-Integrated Framework (1992) issbgdhe Committee oBponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisdiased o
this evaluation, the company’s management has odedl| that, as of September 30, 2013 , the Compangernal control over financ
reporting was effective.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @etaisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to risk that controls may become inadegbatause of changes in conditions, or the
degree of compliance with the policies or procesunay deteriorate.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent regibfaublic accounting firm, has audited the Compsutgnsolidated financial stateme
and the effectiveness of internal controls oveariicial reporting as of September 30, 2@%3tated in its report which is included in Iterof
this Form 10-K and is incorporated by referencesimer

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in the Company’s iteonérol over financial reporting during the quarended September 30, 201iBat hav
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenally affect, the Company’s internal control o¥i@ancial reporting.

The Company is undertaking the implementation @f raterprise resource planning (ERP) systems iaicelbusinesses, which will occur o
a period of several years. As the phasedaullof the new ERP systems occurs, the Companyerpgrience changes in its internal cor
over financial reporting. No significant changesevenade to the Comparsyturrent internal control over financial reportiag a result of tt
implementation of the new ERP systems during theafiyear ended September 30, 2013 .

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART Il

The information required by Part 1, Items 10, 1B and 14, and certain of the information requibgditem 12, is incorporated herein
reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement fo20&4 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (fiscal 2@t8xy Statement), dated and to be 1
with the SEC on or abo ut December 9, 2013, a®vst

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GO VERNANCE

Incorporated by reference to the sections entii@@dwhere can | find Corporate Governance matefiaslohnson Controls?,’Proposal Oni
Election of Directors,” “Corporate Governance,” '®d and Committee Membership," “Audit Committee &&p and “Section 16(c
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” of thecél 2013Proxy Statement. Required information on execubiffieers of the Compar
appears at Part |, Item 4 of this report.

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Incorporated by reference to the sections entitt@orporate Governance,” "Board and Committee Mersihig;" “Compensation Committ
Report,” “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,iriagtor Compensation during Fiscal Year 2013Rbtential Payments and Benefits U
Termination or Change of Control,” and “Johnson ttals Share Ownership” of the fiscal 2013 Proxyt&tzent.
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ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Incorporated by reference to the section entitlmhfison Controls Share Ownership” of the fiscal3®doxy Statement.

The following table provides information about tiempany's equity compensation plans as of Septegih&013 :

@) (b) (©)
Number of Securities
Remaining Available for Future

Number of Securities to be Issuance Under Equity
Issued upon Exercise of Weighted-Average Exercise Compensation Plans (Excludi
Outstanding Options, Warrants Price of Outstanding Options, Securities Reflected in Column
and Rights Warrants and Rights (a)

Plan Category
Equity compensation plans approved

by shareholders 29,403,28 $ 28.2¢ 36,377,07
Equity compensation plans not

approved by shareholders — — —

Total 29,403,28 $ 28.2¢ 36,377,07

(c) Includes shares of Common Stock that remaiilabla for grant as follows: 36,255,826 shares uride 2012 Omnibus Plan and 121,
shares under the 2003 Stock Plan for Outside Qirgct

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Incorporated by reference to the section entittledrporate Governance” of the fiscal 2013 Proxyedtent.

ITEM14  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Incorporated by reference to the section entitkeddit Committee Report” of the fiscal 2013 Proxat@iment.
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Page in
Form 10-K
(a) The following documents are filed as part @ frorm 10-K:
(1) Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfimg 52
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years@&&ptember 30, 2013, 2012 and
2011 54
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncomssjlLfor the years ended
September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 55
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position ateSeber 30, 2013 and 201 2 56
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeadled September 30, 2013, 2012
and 2011 57
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ EquitsitAttable to Johnson Controls, Inc.
for the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 ahd 20 58
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 59
(2) Financial Statement Schedule
For the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 drid 20
Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 109

(3) Exhibits

Reference is made to the separate exhibit indetaowd on pages 114 through 117 filed herewith.
All other schedules are omitted because they arapplicable, or the required information is shawithe financial statements or notes thereto

Financial statements of 50% or lemsned companies have been omitted because therpomate share of their profit before income taaas
total assets are individually less than 20% of ibepective consolidated amounts, and investmenssich companies are less than 20¢
consolidated total assets. Refer to Note 20, "NongBlidated Partialldwned Affiliates" of the notes to consolidated fical statements f
the summarized financial data for the Company’scoosolidated partially-owned affiliates.

Other Matters

For the purposes of complying with the amendmeatshé rules governing Form &-under the Securities Act of 1933, the undersi
registrant hereby undertakes as follows, which ta#tang shall be incorporated by reference intastegnt's Registration Statements on Fi
S-8 Nos. 33-30309, 33-31271, 33-58094, 333-10783;43564, 333-141578, 333-173326 and 333-188430.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arisinmder the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitteditectors, officers and controlling pers
of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing pravisi or otherwise, the registrant has been advisatlin the opinion of the SEC st
indemnification is against public policy as expexbin the Securities Act of 1933 and is, therefareenforceable. In the event that a clairn
indemnification against such liabilities (otherththe payment by the registrant of expenses indwreaid by a director, officer or controlli
person of the registrant in the successful defefissy action, suit or proceeding) is assertedunhdirector, officer or controlling person
connection with the securities being registered,régistrant will, unless in the opinion of its ogel the matter has been settled by contrc



precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jucisoln the question whether such indemnificationittg against public policy as expresse
the Act and will be governed by the final adjudicatof such issue.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 16{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.

By /s/ R. Bruce McDonald
R. Bruce McDonald

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: November 21, 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed ba®af November 21, 2013 , by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant amthie capacities indicated:

sl Alex A. Molinaroli /sl R. Bruce McDonald

Alex A. Molinaroli R. Bruce McDonald

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director Executive Vice President and

(Principal Executive Officer) Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige
[s/ Brian J. Stief [sl Stephen A. Roell

Brian J. Stief Stephen A. Roell

Vice President and Corporate Controller Chairman and Director

(Principal Accounting Officer)

[/s/ David Abney /sl Dennis W. Archer
David Abney Dennis W. Archer
Director Director

/sl Natalie A. Black /s/ Julie L. Bushman
Natalie A. Black Julie L. Bushman
Director Director

/s/ Eugenio Clariond Reyd®etana /sl Richard Goodman
Eugenio Clariond Reyes-Retana Richard Goodman
Director Director

/sl Jeffrey A. Joerres /s/ William H. Lacy
Jeffrey A. Joerres William H. Lacy
Director Director

/sl Mark P. Vergnano

Mark P. Vergnano Raymond L. Conner
Director Director
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Exhibit

Johnson Controls, Inc.
Index to Exhibits

Title

3.()

3. (i)

4.A

4.B

4.C

4.D

4.E

4.F

4.G

4.H

4.

4.3

4K

4L

Restated Articles of Incorporation of Johnson Calsirinc., as amended through January 23, 2013rfdocated b
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Johnson Controls, l€urrent Report on Form 8-filed January 28, 2013) (Commissi
File No. 1-5097).

Johnson Controls, Inc. Byaws, as amended and restated through July 24, @0d@porated by reference to Exhibit
to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Current Report on F8rkafiled July 25, 2013) (Commission File No. 1-509

Miscellaneous long-term debt agreementsfanashcing leases with banks and other creditotsdebenture indentures.*
Miscellaneous industrial development bamigtterm debt issues and related loan agreemedtieases.*

Letter of agreement dated December 6, 1990 bet@eknson Controls, Inc., LaSalle National Trust, NaAd Fidelity
Management Trust Company which replaces LaSalléoNat Trust, N.A. as Trustee of the Johnson Cosjrtrc.
Employee Stock Ownership Plan Trust with Fidelityamdgement Trust Company as Successor Trustee fived
January 1, 1991 (incorporated by reference to Exfib to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual ReportFamm 10K for the
year ended September 30, 1991) (Commission FilelN®@97).

Senior indenture, dated January 17, 2006, betwebnsdn Controls, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Asstimn, as
successor trustee to JP Morgan Chase Bank, Natissaciation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit to Johnso
Controls, Inc. Registration Statement on Form &g No. 333-157502]).

Credit Agreement, dated as of August 6, 2013 andmigpnson Controls, Inc., the financial institutigrasties thereto ar
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative afjeabrporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Joimn&ontrols, Incs
Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 9, 2013p(@nission File No. 1-5907).

Supplemental Indenture, dated March 16, 2009, mwiohnson Controls, Inc., as Issuer, and U.S. Bédational
Association, as Trustee (incorporated by referéndéxhibit 4.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Curr&port on Form 8-
K/A filed March 20, 2009) (Commission File No. 1450).

Subordinated Indenture, dated March 16, 2009, Etwimhnson Controls, Inc. and U.S. Bank Nationaoamtion, a
Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit ©2Jbhnson Controls, Inc.’s Current Report on Forid/A filed
March 20, 2009) (Commission File No. 1-5907).

Supplemental Indenture No. 1, dated March 16, 20889ween Johnson Controls, Inc. and U.S. Bank KNal
Association, as Trustee (incorporated by referéndéxhibit 4.3 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Curr&port on Form 8-
K/A filed March 20, 2009) (Commission File No. 1450).

Supplemental Indenture No. 2, dated March 1, 2B&8yeen Johnson Controls, Inc. and U.S. Bank Natidssociation
as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhikit t. Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Current Report onnkF@K filed
March 1, 2012) (Commission File No. 1-5097).

Officers’ Certificate, dated December 2, 2011, establisHiieg2t600% Senior Notes due 2016, 3.750% SeniorsNhie
2021 and 5.250% Senior Notes due 2041 (incorporayerkference to Exhibit 4.1 to Johnson Contratg,.’s Curren
Report on Form 8-K filed December 2, 2011) (Cominis$ile No. 1-5097).

Form of Corporate Unit (incorporated by referenzdzxhibit 4.6 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s CurrepBrt on Form 8-
K/A filed March 20, 2009) (Commission File No. 1450).

Form of Treasury Unit (incorporated by referenceetdibit 4.7 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s CurrenipB& on Form 8-
K/A filed March 20, 2009) (Commission File No. 1450).
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Exhibit

Johnson Controls, Inc
Index to Exhibits

Title

4.M

4.N

4.0

4.P

10.A

10.B

10.C

10.D

10.E

10.F

10.G

10.H

10.1

10.J

Form of Subordinated Note (incorporated by refegetw Exhibit 4.8 to Johnson Controls, IscCurrent Report ¢
Form 8-K/A filed March 20, 2009) (Commission Fil@NL-5907).

Officers’ Certificate, dated March 9, 2010 creating 5.000%i@eNotes due 2020 (incorporated by referenc
Exhibit 4.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Current Be¢n Form 8-K filed March 10, 2010) (CommissialeMo. 1-5907).

[RESERVED].

Officers’ Certificate, dated February 4, 2011, establishhg Eloating Rate Notes due 2014, 1.75% Senior Ndue
2014, 4.25% Senior Notes due 2021 and 5.70% Sétes due 2041 (incorporated by reference to ExHMili to
Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Current Report on Form €l February 7, 2011).

[RESERVED].

Johnson Controls, Inc. Common Stock Purchase RiarExecutives as amended through November 17, 20
effective December 1, 2004 (incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 10.B to Johnson Controls, IscAnnual Report o
Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 200dinf@ission File No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan Gertain Directors, as amended and restated tisHk
November 18, 2009 (incorporated by reference talktxh0.C to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual RepgmmtForm 10K
for the year ended September 30, 2009) (CommidgsierNo. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Executive Survivor Beneftan, as amended and restated effective SepterBbe2D¢
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.D to Jaimg€ontrols, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form KCfor the year ende
September 30, 2009) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Tax Refund Purchase Agreement among Dr. Beda Bioizedohnson Controls, Inc. and Christiane Bolzeuliated as ¢
November 30, 2012 (incorporated by reference taliixh0.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Quarterly Begmpn Form 10Q
for the quarterly period ended December 31, 20C2)r{mission File No. 1-5097).**

[RESERVED].

Form of indemnity agreement effective January 18)&2 between Johnson Controls, Inc. and each ofliteetors an
elected officers (incorporated by reference to BiHiO.L to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual RepamtForm 10K for
the year ended September 30, 2007) (CommissiorNeile-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Director Share Unit Planam&nded and restated effective September 20, @¥ddrporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.H to Johnson Controls, '#n&nnual Report on Form 1R-for the year ended September
2011) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan, raeraled and restated effective January 1, 2009 r(incated b
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Johnson Controls, nAnnual Report on Form 1B-for the year ended September 30, 2(
(Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Form of stock option award agreement for Johnsami©Gts, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan, as amendeaiidin October
2001, as in use through March 20, 2006 (incorpdrate reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Johnson Contrhis,’s Curren
Report on Form 8-K filed November 15, 2005) (Consiua File No. 1-5097).**
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Exhibit

Johnson Controls, Inc.
Index to Exhibits

Title

10.K

10.L

10.M

10.N

10.0

10.P

10.Q

10.S

10.T

10.U

10.v

10.wW

10.X

Johnson Controls, Inc. 2001 Restricted Stock Piaramended and restated effective September 2@, (Btbrporate:
by reference to Exhibit 10.K to Johnson Contrat&,.’s Annual Report on Form 10-for the year ended September
2011) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Form of restricted stock award agreement for JomnSontrols, Inc. 2001 Restricted Stock Plan, ast famende
March 21, 2006 with effectiveness of Augustl1, 20@®d as currently amended effective September22d,1
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.L to Jam€ontrols, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form KCfor the year ende
September 30, 2011) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Executive Deferred Compémsa®lan, as amended and restated effective Julp@B3, filec
herewith.**

Johnson Controls, Inc. 2003 Stock Plan for Out§idectors, as amended September 1, 2009 (incogmbiat referenc
to Exhibit 10.N to Johnson Controls, Inc.’'s AnniRéport on Form 1@ for the year ended September 30, 2(
(Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Annual Incentive Performarlan, as amended and restated effective Janua?pQg
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to J@mn€ontrols, Inc.’s Current Report Formk8filed February 1, 2011
(Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Retirement Restoration Riaramended and restated effective November 1B @0€orporate:
by reference to Exhibit 10.P to Johnson Contrals,’s Annual Report on Form 1K-for the year ended September
2009) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Compensation Summary for-Employee Directors as amended and restated eféeCibtober 1
2013, filed herewith.**

Form of stock option award agreement for JohnsontiGts, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan, as amendedebaper 16
2006, as in effect since October 2, 2006 (incoreardy reference to Exhibit 10.CC to Johnson Cdsitloc.'s Annua
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Septembg2@06) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Lonberm Incentive Performance Plan, as amended ardtedseffective January 1, 20
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Jamn&ontrols, Inc.’s Current Report on FornK8ied February 1, 2011
(Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. 2007 Stock Option Plan, atednas of September 20, 2011 (incorporated by amrder tc
Exhibit 10.U to Johnson Controls, Inc.'s Annual Bepon Form 1K for the year ended September 30, 2(
(Commission File No. 1-5097).**

Form of stock option or stock appreciation rightaasv agreement for Johnson Controls, Inc. 2007 S@pton Plar
effective September 20, 2011 (incorporated by esfee to Exhibit 10.V to Johnson Controls, Iac&nnual Report o
Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 201dinf@ission File No. 1-5097).**

Supplemental Agreement to the Employment Contrabivéen Johnson Controls GmbH and Dr. Beda Bolzeatéitisc
August 25, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exiib.EE to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual Remort~orm 10K for
the year ended September 30, 2008) (CommissiorNeile-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Executive Compensation lteriRecoupment Policy effective September 15, 2@8%mende
through September 25, 2012 (incorporated by reterdén Exhibit 10.X to Johnson Controls, Inc.'s AainReport oi
Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2018nf@ission File No. 1-5097) **
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Johnson Controls, Inc.
Index to Exhibits

Exhibit Title
10.Y Form of employment agreement between Johnson Qsntirec. and all elected officers and named exgesti a
amended and restated July 28, 2010 (incorporatetefgyence to Exhibit 10.Y to Johnson Controls,.’Bx@Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period endiege 30, 2010) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**
10.Z Johnson Controls, Inc. 2012 Omnibus Incentive Rilacorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) tbrikon Controls
Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 2&1.3) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**
10.AA Form of performance share unit agreement for Johi@ontrols, Inc. 2012 Omnibus Incentive Plan (ipooated b
reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) to Johnson Contrais,'s Current Report on Formk8filed January 28, 2013) (Commissi
File No. 1-5097).**
10.BB Form of restricted stock/restricted stock unit agnent for Johnson Controls, Inc. 2012 Omnibus IticenPlar
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) ttidon Controls, Inc.'s Current Report on Forid led January 2¢&
2013) (Commission File No. 1-5097).**
10.CC Form of option or stock appreciation right award Johnson Controls, Inc. 2012 Omnibus Incentiven Riacorporate:
by reference to Exhibit 10.1(d) to Johnson Contrdfe.'s Current Report on FormK8-filed January 28, 201:
(Commission File No. 1-5097).**
12 Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed chargesthe years ended September 30, 2013, 2012, 2010, and 200¢
filed herewith.
18 Preferability Letter on Change in AccountiPnciple, filed herewith.
21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant, filed herewith.
23 Consent of Independent Registered PublaActing Firm dated November 21, 2013, filed hetlewi
31.1 Certification by the Chief Executive @#t pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxt#yA2002, filed herewith.
31.2 Certification by the Chief Financial @#r pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxt#yA2002, filed herewith.
32 Certification of Periodic Financial Report by thehi€f Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offic@ursuant tc
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002dfierewith.
101 The following materials from Johnson Controls, m&nnual Report on Form 1R-for the year ended September
2013, formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business RepgrtLanguage): (i) the Consolidated Statements iagrcial
Position, (i) the Consolidated Statements of Inepiii) the Consolidated Statements of Comprehenkicome (Loss
(iv) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow tlfe) Consolidated Statements of Shareholdegsiity Attributable tc
Johnson Contrals, Inc. and (vi) Notes to Consodidd&inancial Statements, filed herewith.
* These instruments are not being filed as exbihérewith because none of the Idagn debt instruments authorizes the issuan

debt in excess of 10% of the total assets of Joh@mtrols, Inc. and its subsidiaries on a conaddid basis. Johnson Controls, |
agrees to furnish a copy of each agreement toe¢haries and Exchange Commission upon request.

*x Denotes a management contract or compensatary. p
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EXHIBIT 10.M
JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.
EXECUTIVE DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

ARTICLE 1
PURPOSE AND DURATION

Section 1.1 Purpos&he Johnson Controls, Inc. Executive Deferred Carsgion Plan (the “Plan”)
permits certain employees of the Company and itdia&€és to defer amounts otherwise payable oreshdeliverable
under separate bonus or equity plans or prograntgaireed by the Company or an Affiliate.

Section 1.2 DurationThe Plan was originally effective on October @02, as a consolidation of the
deferral features of various separate plans. Tae Fas been amended several times since it wasallygeffective,
and is most recently amended and restated effeativé July 23, , 2013 (the “Amended and Restatéetfve Date”).
The Plan shall remain in effect until terminatedthyy Board pursuant to Section 9.6.

ARTICLE 2
DEFINITIONS AND CONSTRUCTION

Section 2.1  DefinitionsWherever used in the Plan, the following termalidilve the meanings set
forth below and, where the meaning is intendediritial letter of the word is capitalized:

(@) “Account” means the record keeping accountcapants maintained to record the interest of
each Participant under the Plan. An Account ishdistaed for record keeping purposes only and notfiect the
physical segregation of assets on the Participdetslf, and may consist of such subaccounts anbat as the
Administrator may determine to be necessary or@pyate.

(b) “Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as interpretexkgulations and rules issued pursi
thereto, all as amended and in effect from timine. Any reference to a specific provision of the shall be deemed
to include reference to any successor provisiorethe

(c) “Administrator” means the Employee BenefitsiBplCommittee of the Company.

(d) “Affiliate” means each entity that is requireabe included in the Company’s controlled
group of corporations within the meaning of Codeti®a 414(b), or that is under common control with Company
within the meaning of Code Section 414(c); provitieat for purposes of determining when a Partidipas incurred a
Separation from Service, the phrase “at least 50ep¢’ shall be used in place of the phrase “atl88 percentin eact
place that phrase appears in the regulations igbeeeunder.

(e) “Beneficiary” means the person(s) or entity(i@ssignated by a Participant to be his
beneficiary for purposes of this Plan as provide8ection 9.2.

) “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Gmany.




(9)
(h)

“Change of Control” has the meaning ascribe8euwtion 8.3.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1886nterpreted by regulations and rulings

issued pursuant thereto, all as amended and ictéften time to time. Any reference to a specifioypsion of the Cod
shall be deemed to include reference to any suacessvision thereto.

(i)

“Committee” means the Compensation CommittethefBoard, which shall consist of not les

than two members of the Board, each of whom is aldwector of the Company and qualifies as a “eoployee
director” for purposes of Rule 16b-3 of the Exchadgt.

@)

(k)
under the Plan:

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)

()

“Company” means Johnson Controls, Inc., anduiscessors as provided in Section 9.8.

“Deferrable Compensation” means the followiggds of compensation that may be deferrec

Annual Incentive AwardsAll or a portion of a Participant’s performanasb award under the
Johnson Controls, Inc. Annual Incentive Performaplea (or any successor plan thereto) and,
with the consent of the Administrator, any othemw@al bonus plan maintained by the Compar
an Affiliate.

LongTerm Incentive AwardsAll or a portion of a Participant’s performanaesh award under
the Johnson Controls, Inc. Long-Term Incentive &eniince Plan (or any successor plan theret
and, with the consent of the Administrator, anyeotimulti-year bonus plan maintained by the
Company or an Affiliate.

Restricted SharesThe Shares that would have otherwise been issuadParticipant in the form

of restricted stock under any plan of the Compamyiging for the grant of restricted stock, but
only to the extent the Committee (with respecthimse Participants who are Company officers
the Administrator (with respect to all other Papgants), designates the restricted stock as being
eligible for deferral hereunder.

Other Incentive CompensatioAny other incentive award or compensation that@lommittee

(with respect to those Participants who are Compadiigers), or the Administrator (with respect
to all other Participants), designates is eligfbledeferral hereunder.

“Deferral” means the amount credited, in aceorcke with a Participant’s election or as

required by the Plan, to the Participant’s Accduariteu of the payment in cash thereof, or theasme of Shares with
respect thereto. Deferrals include the following:

(1)

(2)

Annual Incentive DeferralsA deferral of all or a portion of a Participanfsnual Incentive

Award, as described in subsection (k)(1).

LongTerm Incentive DeferralsA deferral of all or a portion of a Participanteng-Term

Incentive Award, as described in subsection (k)(2).




3) Share DeferralsA deferral of Shares of restricted stock, as dieed in subsection (k)(¢

4) Other Incentive CompensatioA deferral of any other type of Deferrable Comgeion, as
described in subsection (k)(4).

(5) Automatic Deferred DividendsA deferral of the dividends or dividend equivdkepaid with
respect to equity-based awards that are autonigtaeflerred hereunder pending the vesting or
earning of such equity-based award.

(m) “ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Incomeusiey Act of 1974, as interpreted by
regulations and rulings issued pursuant theretasadmended and in effect from time to time. Agference to a
specific provision of ERISA shall be deemed to unld reference to any successor provision thereto.

(n) “Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchangeofd934, as interpreted by regulations an
rules issued pursuant thereto, all as amendednagitieict from time to time. Any reference to a sfie@rovision of the
Exchange Act shall be deemed to include referememy successor provision thereto.

(o) “Fair Market Value” means with respect to a igh&xcept as otherwise provided herein, the
closing sales price on the New York Stock Exchagyef 4:00 p.m. EST on the date in question (oirtireediately
preceding trading day if the date in question isantvading day), and with respect to any otheperty, such value as
determined by the Administrator.

“Investment Options” means the investment aioffered under the Johnson Controls
Savings and Investment (401k) Plan (excluding tbm@any stock fund) or any successor plan theregéoShare Unit
Account, and any other alternatives made availaplde Administrator, which shall be used for thegose of
measuring hypothetical investment experience attaitle to a Participant’'s Account.

(@) “Participant” means an employee of the Compamgny Affiliate who is employed in the
United States and is participating in the Compar8tock Ownership Program, and any other emplof/deedcCompan
or any Affiliate who is selected for participatiander a Company or Affiliate plan described in gaaph (k) and who
is offered the ability (or is required) to make Breéls hereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing,Zlommittee shall
limit the foregoing group of eligible employeesaselect group of management and highly compensatgtbyees, as
determined by the Committee in accordance with BRMhere the context so requires, a Participart aieans a
former employee entitled to receive a benefit hedeuw.

(r) “Plan Year” means the fiscal year of the Compan

(s) “Separation from Service” means a Participacg'ssation of service for the Company and al
Affiliates within the meaning of Code Section 409#¢luding the following rules:

Q) If a Participant takes a leave of absence fittenCompany or an Affiliate for purposes of miljta
leave, sick leave or other bona fide leave of atsetine Participard’employment will be deem
to continue for the first six (6) months of theveaf absence, or if longer, for so long as the
Participant’s right to




(2)

3)

(t)
(u)

Shares.

(V)

reemployment is provided by either by statute octwtract; provided that if the leave of absenc
is due to the Participant's medically determingiiigsical or mental impairment that can be
expected to result in death or can be expecteastddr a continuous period of six (6) months or
more, and such impairment causes the Participare tmable to perform the duties of his
position with the Company or an Affiliate or a stabgtially similar position of employment, then
the leave period may be extended for up to a tdtabenty-nine (29) months. If the period of the
leave exceeds the time periods set forth abovehenBarticipant’s right to reemployment is not
provided by either statute or contract, the Paodiot will be considered to have incurred a
Separation from Service on the first day followthg time periods set forth above.

A Participant will be presumed to have incdreeSeparation from Service when the level of bor
fide services performed by the Participant for@wmnpany and its Affiliates permanently
decreases to a level equal to 20% or less of theage level of services performed by the
Participant for the Company or its Affiliates dugithe immediately preceding thirty-six (36)
month period (or such lesser period of service).

The Patrticipant will be presumed not to haxairred a Separation from Service while the
Participant continues to provide bona fide servioethe Company or an Affiliate in any capacity
(whether as an employee or independent contraatar)evel that is at least 50% or more of the
average level of services performed by the Pa#idifior the Company or its Affiliates during the
immediately preceding thirty-six (36) month peri@d such lesser period of service).

“Share” means a share of common stock of the@amy.

“Share Unit Account” means the account desdribeArticle 7, which is deemed invested in

“Share Units” means the hypothetical Sharesdha credited to the Share Unit Account in

accordance with Article 7.

(w)

“Valuation Date” means each day when the UnB¢ates financial markets are open for

business, as of which the Administrator will detarenthe value of each Account and will make allmoss to Accounts

Section 2.2 ConstructiaWWherever any words are used in the masculing,ghall be construed as
though they were used in the feminine in all caglesre they would so apply; and wherever any wordsiae in the
singular or the plural, they shall be construethasgh they were used in the plural or the sing@arthe case may be,
in all cases where they would so apply. Titlesrtitkes and sections are for general informatioly,cend the Plan is
not to be construed by reference to such items.

Section 2.3 Severabilityin the event any provision of the Plan is hdkgl or invalid for any reason,

the illegality or invalidity shall not affect themaining parts of the Plan, and the Plan shalbibstcued and enforced
if the illegal or invalid provision had not beercinded.




ARTICLE 3.
PARTICIPATION

Section 3.1 Effective DateEach individual for whom an Account is maintaingdier the Plan as of
the Amended and Restated Effective Date shall coatin participation hereunder on the day followting Amended
and Restated Effective Date.

Section 3.2 New Participant&ach employee of the Company or an Affiliate shatomatically
become a Participant on the date he makes (oeimel@ to make) a deferral election under Article 4.

ARTICLE 4.
DEFERRALS OF COMPENSATION

Section 4.1 Deferral Election#\ Participant may elect to defer all or part of Deferrable
Compensation pursuant to one or more of the foligvarovisions, as applicable to such compensasiginject to any
limitations imposed by the Committee (with respgedParticipants who are Company officers) or thendstrator
(with respect to all other Participants). A Papant’s election to defer an award shall be effectialy for the award to
which the election relates, and shall not carryr dka@m award to award. All deferral elections shmlfor a minimum c
$1,000. As of the end of the applicable electioriqae the Participant’s deferral election shallitsevocable except as
provided in Section 4.3.

(a) _Calendar YearA Participant may make a deferral election duthmg calendar year preceding the
calendar year for which an award is made.

(b) _Forfeitable RightsWith respect to an award which is subject tcsk of forfeiture, a Participant
may make a deferral election prior to or within finst thirty (30) days following the grant dateppided, the election
may apply only to the portion of the award thattses or after the first anniversary of the awarahgydate. This
election shall be available even if the terms efdlward provide that the award will vest priortie first anniversary of
the award grant date in the event of the Partitipaleath, disability (as defined in Code SectiG8A) or a change of
control event (as defined in Code Section 409A)yled that, if the award so vests prior to thstfanniversary of the
grant date, then if and to the extent required bgieCSection 409A, such deferral election shalldrecelled.

(c) _nitial Eligibility . A Participant may make a deferral election wittha first thirty (30) days of
becoming a Participant; provided such Participast ot previously been eligible for participatiorany other deferre
compensation plan that is required to be aggregaithcthis Plan for purposes of Code Section 4094ch election
shall only be effective with respect to compensatar services to be performed subsequent to tteeafahe election.

(d) _PerformancBased CompensatiorWith respect to a performance-based award, écipant may
make a deferral election within the first 180 dafthe performance period for which the award islena
Notwithstanding the foregoin

(2) if the Company determines that an award gealidis performandeased compensation within t
meaning of Code Section 409A, the Company may Bpadater election period, which in all
events must end 180 days prior to the end of thi@qmeance period for such award; provided
any election made hereunder




shall not be applicable to compensation that idingascertainable at the time of the election, or

(2) if the Company determines that an award doésgjualify as performance-based compensation
within the meaning of Code Section 409A, or detesnithat, at the time of the election descr
above, the compensation payable under such awdrdeaieadily ascertainable, then the
Company may specify an earlier election period spast with the requirements of Code Sectiol
409A.

(e) _Other Deferrals Rule®\ Participant may make a deferral election ahsiter times not describ
above as may be permitted by the Company consistiénthe requirements of Code Section 409A.

Section 4.2 Deferral of Automatic Deferred Dimls. All cash dividends and dividend equivalents
units paid with respect to unearned or unvestedtye@ased awards granted by the Company to a Raatit(and for
which the Participant has not otherwise made ard@felection hereunder) shall be automaticallyedefd as Automat
Deferred Dividends. Automatic Deferred Dividendalsbe subject to the same risk of forfeiture asehQuity-based
awards to which such Deferrals relate.

Section 4.3 Cancellation of Deferral Electioiisthe Administrator determines that a Particiggn
deferral elections must be cancelled in orderterRarticipant to receive a hardship distributiodar the Johnson
Controls Savings and Investment (401k) Plan (oramgessor plan thereto), or any other 401(k) plamtained by th
Company or an Affiliate, the Participant’s defereddction(s) shall be cancelled if permitted un@dede Section 409A.
A Participant whose deferral election(s) are cdadgbursuant to this Section 4.3 may make a neergdfelection
under Sections 4.1 or 4.2, and pursuant to theneagents of Code Section 409A, with respect toriincentive
awards, unless otherwise prohibited by the Admiaist.

Section 4.4 Administration of Deferral Electiansll deferral elections must be made in the formd a
manner and within such time periods as the Compasescribes in order to be effective.

ARTICLE 5.
HYPOTHETICAL INVESTMENT OPTIONS

Section 5.1 Investment Election

(@) _Investment ElectionsSubject to subsection (b) and unless otherwiteriadned by the
Administrator, amounts credited to a ParticipaAtsount shall reflect the investment experiencéheflnvestment
Options selected by the Participant. The Partidipgay make an initial investment election at tineetiof enrollment in
the Plan in whole increments of one percent (1%hj&t to subsection (b) , a Participant may alsoté¢o reallocate
his or her Account, and may elect to allocate antyre Deferrals, among the various Investment @gtia whole
increments of one percent (1%) from time to tim@m@scribed by the Administrator. Notwithstandihg foregoing,
unless otherwise determined by the Administratbgr& Deferrals or Other Incentive Compensation oreasin
relation to a Share shall be automatically invegtetie Share Unit Account and may be re-allocatgdof such
Investment Option only after the Share Deferral®trer Incentive Compensation are either vesteshored, , subject
to any additional restrictions on re-allocatiomasy be imposed by the Company. Such investmenti@hscshall
remain in effect until changed by the Particip@dtinvestment elections shall become effectivesasn as practicable
after receipt of such election by the Administratord must be made in the form and manner andmstinch time
periods as the Administrator prescribes in orddreto




effective. In the absence of an effective electibr,Participant’'s Account (to the extent the Rlaas not require
Deferrals to be allocated to the Share Unit Accpshall be deemed invested in the default fundipddor the
Johnson Controls Inc. Savings and Investment (4B1&) (or any successor plan thereto).

(b) _Automatic Investment of Deferred Dividendsutomatic Deferred Dividends shall be
automatically deemed invested in the Share UnitbAint and shall not be re-allocated out of such @aatco

(c) _Crediting of Investment Returi®n each Valuation Date, the Administrator (odésignee) shall
credit the deemed investment experience with respebe selected (or required) Investment Optionsach
Participant’s Account. Notwithstanding anythingéiarto the contrary, the Company retains the rigtatilocate actual
amounts hereunder without regard to a Participaatjsest.

Section 5.2 Allocations to Investment Options

(@) _General RuleAll Deferrals will be deemed invested in an Inwesnt Option as of the date on
which the deferrals would have otherwise been fattie Participant.

(b) _Automatic Deferred Dividenddf a Participant is holding restricted shareshaf Company’s stock
or other unearned or unvested equity-based awatdssecompanying dividend equivalent rights whes @ompany
declares a cash dividend on its Shares, the Raatits Share Unit Account will be credited with Aatatic Deferred
Dividends, as of the date the cash dividend is fmatdle Company’s shareholders. The amount of tteratic
Deferred Dividends credited to the Participantsc&tUnit Account shall be determined by multiplyithgge number of
restricted shares or dividend equivalent rightsl gl such Participant on the date the dividencedated by the
amount of the dividend paid on one Share.

Section 5.3 Securities Law Restrictio$otwithstanding anything to the contrary heraithelections
under Article 5 or 6 by a Participant who is subjecSection 16 of the Exchange Act are subjeceéwew by the
Administrator prior to implementation. In accordamnith Section 9.3, the Administrator may restadtlitional
transactions, rescind transactions, or impose othes and procedures, to the extent deemed dkshgtihe
Administrator in order to comply with the Exchanet, including, without limitation, application ¢he review and
approval provisions of this Section 5.3 to Parci{s who are not subject to Section 16 of the Exgaa\ct.

Section 5.4 Accounts are For Record Keeping ¢3&p Only Plan Accounts and the record keeping
procedures described herein serve solely as aal&widetermining the amount of benefits accumdléga Participar
under the Plan, and shall not constitute or implyhligation on the part of the Company or any lkste to fund such
benefits.

ARTICLE 6.
DISTRIBUTION OF ACCOUNTS

Section 6.1 Form of DistributionA Participant, at the time he makes an initided®l election under
the Plan pursuant to any provision of Article 4alsklect the form of distribution with respectdach of the following
sub-accounts:

(@) Annual Incentive Deferrals, including intgtreearnings or losses thereon.
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(b) Long-Term Incentive Deferrals, includingargst, earnings or losses thereon.

(c) Share Deferrals, as adjusted for gains €8ds thereon, that are held in the ParticipangseStnit
Account as of that date. Notwithstanding the foregpif a Participant receives a single lump surynpant of his or he
vested Share Deferrals under the Plan, any ShdegrBls vesting after such payment date shall lietipaa single lum|
sum promptly (but not more than seventy-five (7&8yg) after the vesting date.

(d) Other Incentive Compensation Deferrals,udglg interest, earnings or losses thereon.

Such election shall be made in such form and maasére Administrator may prescribe, and shall be
irrevocable. The election shall specify whethetrihstions shall be made in a single lump sum omfitwo (2) to ten
(10) annual installments. In the absence of aildigion election with respect to a particular sutmmt, payment shall
be made in ten (10) annual installments.

No distribution election shall be made with resgedDeferred Automatic Deferred Dividends, whick ar
automatically paid in a lump sum as provided intdads.2(b).

Section 6.2 Time of Distribution

(a) _Separation from Servic&xcept as set forth in subsection (b), upon éidsant’s Separation froi
Service for any reason, the Participant, or hisdiierary in the event of his death, shall be eaditto payment of the
amount accumulated in such Participant’s Accoumgish.

(b) _Payment of Automatic Deferred Dividenddotwithstanding anything herein to the contréing
portion of the Participant’s Share Unit Accountttisarelated to Automatic Deferred Dividends sialpaid to the
Participant in a lump sum within seventy-five (tlys of the date the shares of restricted stockhar equity-based
awards to which such Automatic Deferred Dividenglate vest or are earned. Payment may be madstin Shares or
a mixture of cash and Shares, as determined bgahamittee in its discretion. Any Shares distributéth respect to
the Participans Share Unit Account hereunder shall be deemeeddssuader the plan of the Company pursuant to v
the related equity-based award was granted.

Section 6.3 Manner of DistributiorExcept as set forth in Section 6.2(b), the Pigdiat’s Account
shall be paid in cash in the following manner:

(@) _Lump Sum If payment is to be made in a lump sum,

(2) for those Participants whose Separation fremviSe occurs from January 1 through June 30 of
year, payment shall be made in the first calendartgr of the following year, and

(2) for those Participants whose Separation fremviSe occurs from July 1 through December 31 ¢
a year, payment shall be made in the third caleqdarter of the following year.




The lump sum payment shall equal the balance dP#rgcipant’s Account as of the Valuation Date
immediately preceding the distribution date.

(b) _Installments If payment is to be made in annual installmethis first annual payment shall be
made:

(1) for those Participants whose Separation fremviSe occurs from January 1 through June 30 of
yeatr, in the first calendar quarter of the follog/year, and

(2)  for those Participants whose Separation from Servecurs during the period from July 1 thro
December 31 of a year, in the third calendar quaftéhe following year.

The amount of the first annual payment shall etheabalue of 1/10'(or 1/9™, 1/8", 1/7™", etc.
depending on the number of installments electeth@balance of the Participant’'s Account as of\takiation Date
immediately preceding the distribution date. Albsaquent annual payments shall be made in thecéilshdar quarter
of each subsequent calendar year, and shall beamaunt equal to the value of 1/@r 1/8", 1/7", 1/6™, etc.
depending on the number of installments electeth@balance of the Participant’'s Account as of\takiation Date
immediately preceding the distribution date. Tmafiannual installment payment shall equal the tkemining balanc
of such Account as of the Valuation Date precedingh final payment date.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, if thddrce of a Participant’'s Account as of the Valuatio
Date immediately preceding a distribution date56,800 or less, then the entire remaining balahtieeoParticipant’s
Account shall be paid in a lump sum on such distrdn date.

Section 6.4 Distribution of Remaining AccountlBaing Participants Death In the event of the
Participant’s death prior to receiving all paymeshte under this Article 6, the balance of the Bgudint's Account sha
be paid to the Participant’s Beneficiary in a lugypn in the first calendar quarter or the third ndbe quarter,
whichever first occurs after the Participant’s tiearovided that if the Participant dies prior toweémber 18, 2010, the
death benefit shall be paid according to the growrisions of the Plan. Notwithstanding the forempiin lieu of such
lump sum death benefit, a Participant who has staliment payment election in effect may, priohts or her
termination of employment, elect to have any remgiimstallment payments continue to his or herdierary in the
event the Participant dies after beginning to reesuch installment payments, provided that suettiein shall be
given effect only if filed at least twelve (12) ntba prior to the date of the Participant’s death.

Section 6.5 Tax WithholdingThe Company shall have the right to deduct fromdeferral or
payment made hereunder, or from any other amounadearticipant, the amount of cash and/or Faikbtavalue of
Shares sufficient to satisfy the Company’s or Adfe’s foreign, federal, state or local incomewathholding
obligations with respect to such deferral (or vegsthereof) or payment. In addition, if prior tettate of distribution «
any amount hereunder, the Federal Insurance Catitiis Act (FICA) tax imposed under Code Sectiob@13 3121(a)
and 3121(v)(2), where applicable, becomes dueR#racipant’'s Account balance shall be reducechkbyamount
needed to pay the Participant’s portion of such péxs an amount equal to the withholding taxesuhagter federal,
state or local law resulting from the payment affs&ICA tax, and an additional amount to pay theitaxhal income
tax at source on wages attributable to the pyramgidf the Code Section 3401 wages and taxes, but no
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greater than the aggregate of the FICA tax amonthtlze income tax withholding related to such Fli@RA amount.

Section 6.6 OffsetThe Company shall have the right to offset fralg amount payable hereunder :

amount that the Participant owes to the Comparg any Affiliate without the consent of the Pamiant (or his
Beneficiary, in the event of the Participant’s dgat

Section 6.7 Additional Payment Provisions

(@)
(1)

(2)

(b)
(1)

(2)

Acceleration of PaymenNotwithstanding the foregoing:

If an amount deferred under this Plan is remglito be included in income under Code Section
409A prior to the date such amount is actuallyriigted, a Participant shall receive a
distribution, in a lump sum within ninety (90) dagfter the Plan fails to meet the requirements «
Code Section 409A, of the amount required to blidexd in the Participant’s income as a result
of such failure.

If an amount under the Plan is required tan@ediately distributed in a lump sum under a
domestic relations order within the meaning of C8detion 414(p)(1)(B), it may be distributed
according to the terms of such order, providedRasdicipant holds the Administrator harmless
with respect to such distribution. The Plan shatldistribute amounts required to be distributed
under a domestic relations order other than idithiged circumstance specifically stated herein.

Delay in PaymentNotwithstanding the foregoing:

If a distribution required under the termdlag Plan would jeopardize the ability of the Comypa

or an Affiliate to continue as a going concern, @@npany or the Affiliate shall not be required

to make such distribution. Rather, the distribustiall be delayed until the first date that making
the distribution does not jeopardize the abilityled Company or of an Affiliate to continue as a
going concern. Any distribution delayed under finigvision shall be treated as made on the dat
specified under the terms of this Plan.

If the distribution will violate the terms &ection 16(b) of the Exchange Act or other Federal
securities laws, or any other applicable law, tthendistribution shall be delayed until the eatlies
date on which making the distribution will not \até such law.

ARTICLE 7.
RULES WITH RESPECT TO SHARE UNITS

Section 7.1  Valuation of Share Unit AccoulYhen any amounts are to be allocated to a Shaite U

Account (whether in the form of Deferrals or amautiiiat are deemed re-allocated from another Invesgt@ption),
such amount shall be converted to whole and fraati8hare Units, with fractional units calculatedtree decimal
places, by dividing the amount to be allocatedhsyRair Market Value of a Share on the effectivie dd such
allocation. If any dividends or other distributicsr® paid on Shares while a Participant has Shaits tredited to his
Account, such Participant shall be credited wittitanal Share Units equal to (a) the amount ofdagh dividend paid

or Fair Market
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Value of other property distributed on one Shareltiplied by the number of Share Units creditedhte Participant’s
Share Unit Account on the date the dividend isated, and then divided by (b) the Fair Market Valtia Share on tr
date the dividend is paid or distributed. Any othesvision of this Plan to the contrary notwithstany, if a dividend is
paid on Shares in the form of a right or rightptiochase shares of capital stock of the Compamaynpentity acquiring
the Company, no additional Share Units shall bditzd to the Participant’s Share Unit Account wiispect to such
dividend, but each Share Unit credited to a P@aiti's Share Unit Account at the time such dividenplaid, and each
Share Unit thereafter credited to the ParticipaBtiare Unit Account at a time when such rightsastieched to Shares,
shall thereafter be valued as of any point in tonéhe basis of the aggregate of the then Fair &arklue of one Sha
plus the then Fair Market Value of such right ghts then attached to one Share.

Section 7.2 Transactions Affecting Common Stolckthe event of any merger, share exchange,
reorganization, consolidation, recapitalizatiolc&tdividend, stock split or other change in cogperstructure of the
Company affecting Shares, the Committee may magegpate equitable adjustments with respect tdShare Units
credited to the Share Unit Account of each Pamicipincluding without limitation, adjusting thetdas of which such
units are valued and/or distributed, as the Conemittetermines is necessary or desirable to prévemtlution or
enlargement of the benefits intended to be provideter the Plan.

Section 7.3 No Shareholder Rights With Respe&hare Units Participants shall have no rights as
a stockholder pertaining to Share Units credited tdaheir Accounts.

SPECIAL RULES APPLICABLE IN THE EVENT OF A
CHANGE OF CONTROL OF THE COMPANY

Section 8.1  Acceleration of Paymenbdotwithstanding any other provision of this Plathin 30 day
after a Change of Control, each Participant (or Begeficiary thereof entitled to receive paymergsehinder),
including Participants (or Beneficiaries) receivingtallment payments under the Plan, shall beledtio receive a
lump sum payment in cash of all amounts accumulatedch Participant’s Account. Such payment dbalinade as
soon as practicable (but not more than ninety §@9¥) following the Change of Control.

In determining the amount accumulated in a Paditis Share Unit Account, each Share Unit shall
a value equal to the higher of (a) the highestnteplasales price, regular way, of a share of they@oy’s common
stock on the Composite Tape for New York Stock Exgje Listed Stocks (the “Composite Tape”) durireggixty
(60)-day period prior to the date of the Chang€antrol of the Company and (b) if the Change of @urof the
Company is the result of a transaction or seridgsapisactions described in Section 8.2(a), thedsghrice per Share of
the Company paid in such transaction or seriesokactions.

Section 8.2 Definition of a Change of Contrédl Change of Control means any of the following
events, provided that each such event would cotest# change of control within the meaning of C8detion 409A:

€) The acquisition, other than from the @amy, by any individual, entity or group of benéflic
ownership (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 pronatégl under the Exchange Act), including in conmectith a
merger, consolidation or reorganization, of moanteither:
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(1) Fifty percent (50%) of the then outstandingrels of common stock of the Company (the
“Outstanding Company Common Stock”) or

(2) Thirty-five percent (35%) of the combined vagipower of the then outstanding voting securitie!
of the Company entitled to vote generally in thecgbn of directors (the “Company Voting
Securities”),

provided, however , that any acquisition by (x) the Company or anyt®tubsidiaries, or any employee benefit plan (o
related trust) sponsored or maintained by the Compa any of its subsidiaries or (y) any corpomatwith respect to
which, following such acquisition, more than sixigrcent (60%) of, respectively, the then outstagpgimares of
common stock of such corporation and the combirmithg power of the then outstanding voting secaesitof such
corporation entitled to vote generally in the alatiof directors is then beneficially owned, ditgar indirectly, by all

or substantially all of the individuals and enstiho were the beneficial owners, respectivelyhefOutstanding
Company Common Stock and Company Voting Secuiit@sediately prior to such acquisition in substdiytithe

same proportion as their ownership, immediatelgrmo such acquisition, of the Outstanding Comp@onynmon Stock
and Company Voting Securities, as the case maghad, not constitute a Change in Control of the @any; or

(b) Individuals who, as of January 1, 2005, titute the Board (the “Incumbent Board”) ceasedoy
reason to constitute at least a majority of therBauring any twelve (12)-month periqatovided that any individual
becoming a director subsequent to January 1, 200&se election or nomination for election by ther@any’s
shareholders was approved by a vote of at leastjarity of the directors then comprising the IncianbBoard, shall
be considered as though such individual were a reewifithe Incumbent Board; or

(c) A complete liquidation or dissolution of t@mpany or sale or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Companyratien to a corporation with respect to which,daling such sale or
disposition, more than sixty percent (60%) of, exgwely, the then outstanding shares of commocksand the
combined voting power of the then outstanding \g8ecurities entitled to vote generally in the etecof directors is
then owned beneficially, directly or indirectly, Bl or substantially all of the individuals andiéas who were the
beneficial owners, respectively, of the Outstanddognpany Common Stock and Company Voting Securities
immediately prior to such sale or disposition ibsiantially the same proportion as their ownersiithe Outstanding
Company Common Stock and Company Voting Securigigshe case may be, immediately prior to suchmale
disposition. For purposes hereof, “a sale or otligvosition of all or substantially all of the atssef the Company” will
not be deemed to have occurred if the sale invaessts having a total gross fair market valuess than forty perce
(40%) of the total gross fair market value of a$ets of the Company immediately prior to the aitjon. For this
purpose, “gross fair market value” means the vafube assets without regard to any liabilitiesoassted with such
assets.

For purposes of this Section 8.2, persons willbetonsidered to be acting as a “group” solely beea
they purchase or own stock of the Company at theedane, or as a result of the same public offerthgwever,
persons will be considered to be acting as a “grdupey are owners of a corporation that entets ia merger,
consolidation, purchase or acquisition of stocksiorilar business transaction with the Companwg. person, including
an entity, owns stock in the Company and any atbgporation that enters into a merger, consoligafrchase or
acquisition of stock, or similar transaction, sgtiareholder is considered to be acting as a gratinpother shareholde
in such
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corporation only with respect to the ownershiphattcorporation prior to the transaction givingerie the change and
not with respect to the ownership interest in tlenpany.

Section 8.3  Maximum Payment Limitation

(@) _Limit on PaymentsExcept as provided in subsection (b) below, ¥ partion of the payments or
benefits described in this Plan or under any atigeeement with or plan of the Company or an Afiién the
aggregate, “Total Payments”), would constitute excéss parachute payment”, then the Total Payneibes made to
the Participant shall be reduced such that theevalihe aggregate Total Payments that the Patitig entitled to
receive shall be one dollar ($1) less than the masi amount which the Participant may receive withmcoming
subject to the tax imposed by Section 4999 of thdelor which the Company may pay without loss ofudéon under
Section 280G(a) of the Code. The terms “exceshata payment” and “parachute payment” shall hheaneanings
assigned to them in Section 280G of the Code, aad ‘$arachute payments” shall be valued as praviderein.
Present value shall be calculated in accordandeSdéttion 280G(d)(4) of the Code. Within forty (4i@)ys following
delivery of notice by the Company to the Participaints belief that there is a payment or benddi¢ the Participant
which will result in an excess parachute paymé,Rarticipant and the Company, at the Companysrese, shall
obtain the opinion (which need not be unqualifieipationally recognized tax counsel selected leyGompany’s
independent auditors and acceptable to the Patitip his sole discretion (which may be regulasiole counsel to tr
Company), which opinion sets forth (1) the amourthe Base Period Income, (2) the amount and ptesdue of Tote
Payments and (3) the amount and present valueyadaress parachute payments determined withoutdégdhe
limitations of this Section. As used in this Segfithe term “Base Period Income” means an amouwmldq the
Participant’s “annualized includible compensationthe base period” as defined in Section 280Gjd){the Code.
For purposes of such opinion, the value of any ashdenefits or any deferred payment or benefit shaletermined
by the Company’s independent auditors in accordarttethe principles of Sections 280G(d)(3) andd#jhe Code,
which determination shall be evidenced in a cedif of such auditors addressed to the Companthar@articipant.
Such opinion shall be addressed to the CompanyhenBarticipant and shall be binding upon the Com@and the
Participant. If such opinion determines that theoelld be an excess parachute payment, the payinergander that
are includible in Total Payments or any other paynoe benefit determined by such counsel to baufible in Total
Payments shall be reduced or eliminated as spedifiehe Participant in writing delivered to ther@many within thirty
(30) days of his receipt of such opinion or, if B&rticipant fails to so notify the Company, therttee Company shall
reasonably determine, so that under the basedailazons set forth in such opinion there will i@ excess parachute
payment. If such legal counsel so requests in adiorewith the opinion required by this Sectiore farticipant and
the Company shall obtain, at the Company’s expeaarsgihe legal counsel may rely on in providingdpaion, the
advice of a firm of recognized executive compeisationsultants as to the reasonableness of anyiteompensation
to be received by the Participant. If the provisioh Sections 280G and 4999 of the Code are reph@atbout
succession, then this Section shall be of no fuffttree or effect.

(b) _Employment Contract Governghe provisions of subsection (a) above shallapply to a
Participant whose employment is governed by an eynpént contract that provides for Total Paymenisxcess of the
limitation described in subsection (a) above.
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ARTICLE 9.
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 9.1 Administration

(@) _General The Committee shall have overall discretionarmharity with respect to administration
the Planprovided that the Administrator shall have discretionaryhauity and responsibility for the general operation
and daily administration of the Plan and to deci@ms and appeals as specified herein. If at ;g the Committee
shall not be in existence or not be composed of beesnof the Board who qualify as “non-employeedoes”, then all
determinations affecting Participants who are stilije Section 16 of the Exchange Act shall be niadthe full Board
and all determinations affecting other Participastisll be made by the Board or an officer of thenBany or other
committee appointed by the Board (with the asst&arf the Administrator). The Committee or Admirasbr may, in
its discretion, delegate any or all of its authoahd responsibilityprovided that the Committee shall not delegate
authority and responsibility with respect to nomisierial functions that relate to the participatlwy Participants who
are subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Actatithe any such delegated authority or responsibdiexercised. To
the extent of any such delegation, any refereneesitto the Committee or Administrator, as aplieashall be
deemed references to such delegatee. Interpretstibie Plan shall be within the sole discretionha® Committee or
the Administrator with respect to their respectiveies hereunder. If any delegatee of the Commdtdhe
Administrator shall also be a Participant or Betiafly, any determinations affecting the delegatpaisicipation in the
Plan shall be made by the Committee or Administrats applicable.

(b) _Authority and Responsibilityin addition to the authority specifically proviieerein, the
Committee and Administrator shall have the disoredry authority to take any action or make any rieftgation
deemed necessary for the proper administratioheoPtan with regard to the respective duties ofi eecler the Plan,
including but not limited to: (1) prescribe rulasdaregulations for the administration of the PIg);prescribe forms for
use with respect to the Plan; (3) interpret andyaglibof the Plan’s provisions, reconcile inconeigcies or supply
omissions in the Plan’s terms; (4) make appropdaterminations, including factual determinaticarsd calculations;
and (5) prepare all reports required by law. Anyoactaken by the Committee shall be controlling@ioany contrary
action of the Administrator. The Committee and Aakministrator may delegate their ministerial dutieghird parties
and to the extent such delegation, referencest@€tmmittee or Administrator herein shall mean sielegates, if an

(c) _Decisions BindingThe Committee’s and Administraterdleterminations shall be final and binc
on all parties with an interest hereunder, unleterchined to be arbitrary and capricious.

(d) _Procedures of the CommitteEhe Committee’s determinations must be made byess than a
majority of its members present at the meetingp@rson or otherwise) at which a quorum is preserty written
consent, which sets forth the action, is signeédsh member of the Committee and filed with theutas for
proceedings of the Committee. A majority of theren€Committee shall constitute a quorum for tha@sesction of
business. The Administrator’s determinations sbalimade in accordance with such procedures itlestab.

(e) _Indemnification Service on the Committee or as an Administratail £onstitute service as a
director or officer of the Company so that the Cattes and Administrator members shall be entitted t
indemnification, limitation of liability and reimlysement of expenses with respect to their
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Committee or Administrator services to the samermhat they are entitled under the Company’sd@ysland
Wisconsin law for their services as directors dicefs of the Company.

Section 9.2 Designation of Beneficiarlfach Participant may designate a Beneficiaryughgorm anc
manner and within such time periods as the Adnratist may prescribe. A Participant can change érehciary
designation at any time, provided that each bemeficesignation shall revoke the most recent dhedign, and the last
designation received by the Administrator while Baaticipant was alive shall be given effect. Raticipant
designates a Beneficiary without providing in tesignation that the Beneficiary must be livingret time of
distribution, the designation shall vest in the &@riary the distribution payable after the Pagait’'s death, and such
distribution if not paid by the Beneficiary’s deathall be made to the Beneficiary’s estate. Inethent there is no valid
beneficiary designation in effect at the time @ Barticipant’s death, in the event the Particigatgsignated
Beneficiary does not survive the Participant, othi@ event that the beneficiary designation pravithat the Beneficial
must be living at the time of distribution and suldsignated Beneficiary does not survive to theildigion date, the
Participants estate will be deemed the Beneficiary and wilkbgtled to receive payment. If a Participant geates hi
spouse as a beneficiary, such beneficiary desmmatitomatically shall become null and void ondhee the
Administrator receives notice of the Participamtigorce or legal separation.

Section 9.3 Restrictions to Comply with Applitabaw. All transactions under the Plan are intendec
to comply with all applicable conditions of Rulelit8 under the Exchange Act. The Committee and Adktnator shall
administer the Plan so that transactions undePlie will be exempt from or comply with Section digthe Exchange
Act, and shall have the right to restrict or redcamy transaction, or impose other rules and reqents, to the extent
deems necessary or desirable for such exemptioaropliance to be met.

Section 9.4 Claims Procedures

(@) _Initial Claim. If a Participant or Beneficiary (the “claimantig¢lieves that he is entitled to a benefi
under the Plan that is not provided, the claimarti® legal representative shall file a writtenidor such benefit witl
the Administrator within ninety (90) days of theielthe payment that is in dispute should have beste. The
Administrator shall review the claim and rendereagigdion within ninety (90) days following the regeof the claim;
provided that the Administrator may determine that an addél ninety (90)-day extension is necessary due to
circumstances beyond the Administrasocontrol, in which event the Administrator shaitify the claimant prior to th
end of the initial period that an extension is regkdhe reason therefor, and the date by whiclAtministrator expect
to render a decision. If the claimant’s claim isiéé in whole or part, the Administrator shall pa®/written notice to
the claimant of such denial. The written noticellshalude: the specific reason(s) for the deniaference to specific
Plan provisions upon which the denial is basedscdption of any additional material or informatinecessary for the
claimant to perfect the claim and an explanatiowloich such material or information is necessangl a description of
the Plan’s review procedures (as set forth in sttise (b)) and the time limits applicable to suebqedures, including
a statement of the claimant’s right to bring alaation under section 502(a) of ERISA following aaverse
determination upon review.

(b) _Request for AppealThe claimant has the right to appeal the Adnmiaiet’s decision by filing a
written appeal to the Administrator within sixtyOjedays after the claimant’s receipt of the Adntnaitor's decision,
although to avoid penalties under Code Section 4@®&claimant’s appeal must be filed within onadred eighty
(180) days of the date payment could have beenytime
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made in accordance with the terms of the Plan ansljant to Regulations promulgated under Code @ed0h9A. The
claimant will have the opportunity, upon requesd &ee of charge, to have reasonable access toames of all
documents, records and other information relevatiié claimans appeal. The claimant may submit written comm:
documents, records and other information relatingi$ claim with the appeal. The Administrator wéliew all
comments, documents, records and other informatibmitted by the claimant relating to the clainganelless of
whether such information was submitted or consili@rehe initial claim determination. The Adminestor shall make
determination on the appeal within sixty (60) dafter receiving the claimant’s written appgalpvided that the
Administrator may determine that an additionalys(@0)-day extension is necessary due to circurass&beyond the
Administrator’s control, in which event the Admitretor shall notify the claimant prior to the erfdtee initial period
that an extension is needed, the reason therefbth@ndate by which the Administrator expects talex a decision. If
the claimant’s appeal is denied in whole or p&e, Administrator shall provide written notice t@ ttlaimant of such
denial. The written notice shall include: the sfieceason(s) for the denial; reference to speéan provisions upon
which the denial is based; a statement that thmalat is entitled to receive, upon request and éfegharge, reasonak
access to and copies of all documents, recordsptued information relevant to the claiman€laim; and a statement
the claimant’s right to bring a civil action undsgction 502(a) of ERISA. If the claimant does reaetive a written
decision within the time period(s) described abake,appeal shall be deemed denied on the lastfdaych period(s).

(c) _ERISA Fiduciary For purposes of ERISA, the Committee shall beschared the named fiduciary
under the Plan and the plan administrator, excéptnespect to claims and appeals, for which thenfistrator shall
be considered the named fiduciary.

Section 9.5 Patrticipant Rights Unsecured

(@) _Unsecured ClaimThe right of a Participant or his Beneficiaryrézeive a distribution hereunder
shall be an unsecured claim, and neither the Ratit nor any Beneficiary shall have any rightsiiragainst any
amount credited to his Account or any other speaifisets of the Company or an Affiliate. The rigih& Participant or
Beneficiary to the payment of benefits under thanRhall not be assigned, encumbered, or traesfeexcept as
permitted under Section 6.8(a)(2) or 9.2. The ggiita Participant hereunder are exercisable duin@dParticipant’s
lifetime only by him or his guardian or legal repeatative.

(b) _Contractual ObligationThe Company or an Affiliate may authorize theatien of a trust or other
arrangements to assist it in meeting the obligatmeated under the Plan, subject to the restgtm funding such
trust or arrangement imposed by Code Sections 48)98)(or (3). However, any liability to any perseith respect to
the Plan shall be based solely upon any contraotl@ations that may be created pursuant to tha.mo obligation ¢
the Company or an Affiliate shall be deemed todmused by any pledge of, or other encumbrancergnpeoperty of
the Company or any Affiliate. Nothing containedhms Plan and no action taken pursuant to its testmadl create or be
construed to create a trust of any kind, or a fighycrelationship between the Company or an Afiiand any
Participant or Beneficiary, or any other person.

(c) _No Right to EmploymentParticipation in this Plan, or any modificatidhsreof, or the payments
of any benefits hereunder, shall not be constrgegiwang to any person any right to be retainethaservice of the
Company or any Affiliate, limiting in any way thght of the Company or any Affiliate to terminatech person’s
employment at any time, evidencing any agreemeunnderstanding that the Company or any Affiliatd employ
such person in any particular position or any
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particular rate of compensation or guaranteein@ g@cson any right to receive any other form or amof
remuneration from the Company or any Affiliate.

Section 9.6  Amendment or Termination of Plan

(@ _AmendmentThe Committee may at any time amend the Plaiydimy but not limited to
modifying the terms and conditions applicable todihnerwise eliminating) Deferrals to be made oafter the
amendment date to the extent not prohibited by Get#ion 409Aprovided, however, that no amendment may reduce
or eliminate any Account balance accrued to the dasuch amendment (except as such Account bataagée
reduced as a result of investment losses allo¢aldach Account) without a Participant’s consertept as otherwise
specifically provided herein; anmtovided further that the Board must approve any amendment thahesphe class of
employees eligible for participation under the Pkt materially increases the benefits provideden the Plan or that
is required to be approved by the Board by anyiegiple law or the listing requirements of the nadilbbsecurities
exchange upon which the Company’s common stodieis traded. In addition, the Administrator mayrat ame
amend the Plan to make administrative changes lzaxtges necessary to comply with applicable law.

(b) _Termination The Committee may terminate the Plan in accorglavth the following provisions.
Upon termination of the Plan, any deferral eletitren in effect shall be cancelled to the extentnitted by Code
Section 409A. Upon termination of the Plan, the @Gottee may authorize the payment of all amountsusztunder tF
Plan in a single sum payment without regard todislyibution election then in effect, only in th@lbwing
circumstances:

(2) The Plan is terminated within twelve (12) nfenof a corporate dissolution taxed under Code
Section 331, or with the approval of a bankruptoyrt pursuant to 11 U.S.C. 8503(b)(1)(A). In
such event, the single sum payment must be distdboy the latest of: (A) the last day of the
calendar year in which the Plan termination occ{B¥the first calendar year in which the
amount is no longer subject to a substantial rfidbdeiture, or (C) the first calendar year in
which payment is administratively practicable.

(2) The Plan is terminated at any other time, ghed that such termination does not occur proxima
to a downturn in the financial health of the Companan Affiliate, and all other plans required
to be aggregated with this Plan under Code Sedd®A are also terminated and liquidated. In
such event, the single sum payment shall be paghrger than twelve (12) months (and no latel
than twenty-four (24) months) after the date of Bten’s termination. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, any payment that would otherwise be plaidng the twelve (12)-month period
beginning on the Plan termination date pursuattiederms of the Plan shall be paid in
accordance with such terms. In addition, the Commarany Affiliate shall be prohibited from
adopting a similar arrangement within three (3)rgdallowing the date of the Plan’s termination

Section 9.7 Administrative ExpensedSosts of establishing and administering the Rlgirbe paid by
the Company and its participating Affiliates.
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Section 9.8 Successors and Assighikis Plan shall be binding upon and inure toltaeefit of the
Company, its successors and assigns and the pantisiand their heirs, executors, administrators legal
representatives.

Section 9.9 Governing Law; Limitation on Actiomdspute Resolution

(@) _Governing Law This Plan is intended to be a plan of deferredmensation maintained for a
select group of management or highly compensatedoyes as that term is used in ERISA, and shalteepreted s
as to comply with the applicable requirements tbier@ all other respects, the Plan is to be caestrand its validity
determined according to the laws of the State afddsin (without reference to conflict of law pifies thereof) to tF
extent such laws are not preempted by federal law.

(b) _Limitation on Actions Any action or other legal proceeding with resgedhe Plan may be
brought only after the claims and appeals procedof&ection 9.4 are exhausted and only withingaeending on the
earlier of (1) one year after the date claimanginezs notice or deemed notice of a denial uponappeler Section 9.4
(b), or (2) the expiration of the applicable statat limitations period under applicable federat.|l&ny action or other
legal proceeding not adjudicated under ERISA mastibitrated in accordance with the provisionsutiisgction (c).

(c) Arbitration.

(2) Application. Notwithstanding any employee agreement in etbetiveen a Participant and the
Company or any Affiliate, if a Participant or Beivgdry brings a claim that relates to benefits
under this Plan that is not covered under ERISA,ragardless of the basis of the claim
(including but not limited to, actions under Titf#l, wrongful discharge, breach of employment
agreement, etc.), such claim shall be settledr®l binding arbitration in accordance with the
rules of the American Arbitration Association (“AAAand judgment upon the award rendere
the arbitrator may be entered in any court havimiggliction thereof.

(2) Initiation of Action. Arbitration must be initiated by serving or magia written notice of the
complaint to the other party. Normally, such wnttetice should be provided to the other party
within one year (365 days) after the day the complg party first knew or should have knowr
the events giving rise to the complaint. HoweJeis time frame may be extended if the
applicable statute of limitation provides for aden period of time. If the complaint is not
properly submitted within the appropriate time fegrall rights and claims that the complaining
party has or may have against the other party blealaived and void. Any notice sent to the
Company shall be delivered to:

Office of General Counsel
Johnson Controls, Inc.

5757 North Green Bay Avenue
P.O. Box 591

Milwaukee, W1 53201-0591
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)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

The notice must identify and describe the naturallafomplaints asserted and the facts upon
which such complaints are based. Notice will bentek given according to the date of any
postmark or the date of time of any personal defive

Compliance with Personnel PolicieBefore proceeding to arbitration on a complaime,
Participant or Beneficiary must initiate and papite in any complaint resolution procedure
identified in the Company’s or Affiliate’s personmmlicies. If the claimant has not initiated the
complaint resolution procedure before initiatingitation on a complaint, the initiation of the
arbitration shall be deemed to begin the complasolution procedure. No arbitration hearing
shall be held on a complaint until any applicaldenplaint resolution procedure has been
completed.

Rules of Arbitration All arbitration will be conducted by a single @rator according to the
Employment Dispute Arbitration Rules of the AAA. & hrbitrator will have authority to award
any remedy or relief that a court of competentsgigtion could order or grant including, without
limitation, specific performance of any obligatioreated under policy, the awarding of punitive
damages, the issuance of any injunction, costatinthey’s fees to the extent permitted by law,
or the imposition of sanctions for abuse of theteation process. The arbitrator's award must be
rendered in a writing that sets forth the essefitidings and conclusions on which the
arbitrator’'s award is based.

Representation and Costsach party may be represented in the arbitrdtyoan attorney or
other representative selected by the party. Thegaoyor Affiliate shall be responsible for its
own costs, the AAA filing fee and all other feessts and expenses of the arbitrator and AAA fc
administering the arbitration. The claimant shallresponsible for his attorney’s or
representative’s fees, if any. However, if any parevails on a statutory claim which allows the
prevailing party costs and/or attorneys’ fees, atmtrator may award costs and reasonable
attorneys’ fees as provided by such statute.

Discovery; Location; Rules of EvidencBiscovery will be allowed to the same extent edéml
under the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. Artibrawill be held at a location selected by the
Company. AAA rules notwithstanding, the admissipibf evidence offered at the arbitration
shall be determined by the arbitrator who shallhegjudge of its materiality and relevance. Lege
rules of evidence will not be controlling, and 8tandard for admissibility of evidence will
generally be whether it is the type of informattbat responsible people rely upon in making
important decisions.

Confidentiality. The existence, content or results of any arlanatnay not be disclosed by a

party or arbitrator without the prior written consef both parties. Witnesses who are not a part
to the arbitration shall be excluded from the hepaxcept to testify.
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ADDENDUM
SPECIAL TRANSITION RULES

Pursuant to the provisions of IRS Notice 2005-1:

1.

In reliance on the 6-month advance deferratltiele for performance-based compensation, the Cagnpa
provided each Participant with an opportunity te & new deferral election by March 31, 2005, wéspect to
each of such Participant’s Annual and Long-Ternehtive Awards that had not yet been paid as ofitie the
election was filed.

The Company provided each Participant with an dppdy to file a new distribution election (includj a deatl
benefit election for Mr. Andrew Schildt) during ealdar year 2005, with respect to each of his Anmgantive
Deferrals sub-account, Long-Term Incentive Defersalb-account and Share Deferrals sub-accounmde
distribution election allowed the Participant tées¢ a lump sum or up to ten (10) annual installieéor each o
his sub-accounts.

The Company permitted the following individutdscancel participation in the Plan and receilgnap sum
payout in 2005 of his Account Balance: John Fiori

Pursuant to the provisions of IRS Notice 2006-79:

4.

The Company provided each Participant with gpootunity to file a new distribution election dugi calendar
year 2006 and/or 2007. The new distribution electibowed the Participant to select a lump sumptouten
(10) annual installments for his Plan Account, afidwed Participants to elect a whole or partiahusum
payment to be made either in 2007 (provided thetiele was made by December 31, 2006 and was iredlec
with respect to the 2007 payment) or 2008 (provitthedelection was made by December 31, 2007). ste |
distribution election received by the Administrab&fore January 1, 2008 is irrevocable with respe2008.

Pursuant to the provisions of IRS Notice 2007-86:

5.

The Company will provide each Participant véthopportunity to file a new distribution electidaring
calendar year 2008. The new distribution electitowe the Participant to select a lump sum or ufeto(10)
annual installments for his Plan Account, and afi®articipants to elect a whole or partial lump faypment t
be made in 2009 (provided the election was madednember 31, 2008). The last distribution electereived
by the Administrator before January 1, 2009 isvioeable.
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EXHIBIT 10.Q
JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.

COMPENSATION SUMMARY FOR NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS

1. Annual Compensation for Non-Employee Directors

Compensation for non-employee members of the Boafirectors (the “Board”pf Johnson Control

Inc. (the “Company”), effective October 1, 2013nsists of the payment for the Compamiiscal year of the followin

(@)

(b)

(€)

Retaine

A retainer at the annual rate of $245,000 to eawhemployee director in the form of $110,000 in ¢
and $135,000 in common stock of the Company (thetdRer”).

Committee Chair Fe

A Committee Chair fee at the annual rate of $25,000ash to each noemployee chair and succes
chair for the Audit, Compensation, Corporate Goaene and Finance Committees of the Board
“Committee Chair Fee"References to a successor chair or successorileatbd in this summary are
directors who have been designated to succeednactireent committee chair or the theurrent lea
director, respectively, pursuant to the Companwlicpes or practices regarding Board succession.

Lead Director Fe

A Lead Director Fee to the n@mployee lead director and successor lead dir@ttoash at the annt
rate of:

0] $30,000 if the non-employee director is naoah noremployee chair or successor chair for
Audit, Compensation, Corporate Governance or Fieadbemmittee of the Board (a “Ndbhail
Lead Director”); or

(i) $15,000 if the non-employee director is alsaonemployee chair or successor chair for
Audit, Compensation, Corporate Governance or Fieabammittee of the Board (£bmmittes
Chair Lead Director”).

2. Payment of Common Stock Portion of the Retainer

The Company will pay the common stock portion @& Betainer on the date of the annual sharehc

meeting to each director then in office, subjedhifollowing:

(@)

Directors Retiring or Newly or RecentlyeEled as of the Annual Shareholders Meeting

0] If a director is retiring from the Board as of tti@e of such annual shareholders meeting, the
director will be entitled to receive common stockhaan aggregate value equal to (x) the nui
of days that have elapsed from October 1 of theafigear in which such annual sharehol
meeting occurs to the date of the annual sharefwideeting divided by (y) 365, multiplied
$135,000.




(b)

()

(i) If a director is newly elected to the Board at saanual shareholders meeting, or was appc
as a director on or after the October 1 of theafigear in which such annual shareholders me
occurs, then the director will be entitled to reeetcommon stock with an aggregate value eqt
(x) the number of days in the period from the dffex date of the directas’ appointment «
election to the Board through September 30 of &l year in which such annual sharehol
meeting occurs divided by (y) 365, multiplied by3$1000.

Director Newly Elected or Appointed Aftitre Annual Shareholders Meeting

If a director is newly appointed or elected to Beard after the annual shareholders meeting irfiskal
year of such appointment or election, then thectirewill be entitled to receive upon the effectilate
of his or her appointment or election common statth an aggregate value equal to (i) the numb
days in the period from the effective date of tirector’'s appointment or election through Septembe
of the fiscal year of such appointment or electionded by (ii) 365, multiplied by $135,000.

Director Retiring Prior to the Date of tAanual Shareholders Meeting

If a director retires from the Board either on Qxeo 1 or after October 1 of a fiscal year but ptmthe
annual shareholders meeting in such fiscal yea&n the director will be entitled to receive upoe
effective date of his or her date of retirement pwn stock with an aggregate value of (i) the nundf
days that have elapsed from October 1 of the figeal in which the retirement occurs to the datthe
director’s retirement divided by (ii) 365, multiptd by $135,000.

3. Payment of the Cash Portion of the Retainer and Comittee Chair or Lead Director Fee

(@)

(b)

Quarterly Payments

The Company will pay the cash portion of the Retaeind the Committee Chair or Lead Director F«
the form of a quarterly payment ($27,500 per quéaide the cash portion of the Retainer, $6,25C
quarter for the Committee Chair Fee and $7,50030r3P for the Lead Director Fee, as applicabl
advance on the first business day of each quaskeept for the second quarter, which will be tyf
paid as of the annual shareholders meeting) to éaettor then in office entitled to receive sueks.

Newly Appointed Directors and Newly Appointed Contie® Chairs and Lead Director (and Succes

If a director is either (i) newly elected or appenh to the Board or (ii) newly appointed as a Cottet
Chair (or successor to a Committee Chair) or Leaeddr (or successor to the Lead Director) at
time during the fiscal year after the first bussday of a quarter, then such director will receipen th:
effective date of such election or appointment,tf@ quarter in which such election or appointnis
effective, a prorated amount of the cash portiorthef Retainer and/or any Committee Chair or |
Director Fee with such amount to be determinethémhanner set forth below:

0] Cash Portion of RetainerThe director newly elected or appointed to theaf8oshall receive
cash amount equal to (x) the number of days frareffective date of the




appointment or election to the first day of the tnguarter divided by (y) 90, multiplied
$27,500.

(i) Committee Chair FeeThe director appointed as a Committee Chair gocsssor to a Committ
Chair) shall receive a cash amount equal to (x)ntihaber of days from the effective date of
appointment to the first day of the next quarterd#id by (y) 90, multiplied by $6,250.

(i)  Lead Director Fee The director appointed as Lead Director (or sasoeto the Lead Directc
shall receive a cash amount equal to (x) the nundbedtays from the effective date of
appointment to the first day of the next quarteiddéid by (y) 90, multiplied by (A) $7,500, if t
director is a Norzhair Lead Director, or (B) $3,750, if the direciera Committee Chair Le
Director.

4. Other Provisions

(@) _No Attendance Fees

The Company will not pay any fees for attendanceneétings of the Board or any committee of
Board.

(b)  _Stock Issued Under 2003 Stock Plan fors@etDirectors

All shares of stock to be issued to directors ageraplated above will be issued pursuant to the3
Stock Plan for Outside Directors.

(c) _Deferrals

Non-employee directors are permitted to defer all or part of their Retainer, Committee Chair F
and Lead Director Fees under the Johnson ContnmisPeferred Compensation Plan for Certain Direxto

(d) _Reimbursements

The Company will also reimburse nemployee directors for any expenses related to fleevice on th
Board.



EXHIBIT 12
JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES
The following table shows our ratio of earningdixed charges for the fiscal years ended Septe@®e2013, 2012, 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Year Ended September 30,
(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Net income (loss) attributable to Johnson Contlals, $ 1,17¢ $ 1,18 $ 141f $ 135 § (667)

Income tax provision (benefit) 1,16¢ 20¢ 25¢ 157 (162)
Income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling inteee 11¢ 127 117 75 (12
(Income) loss from equity affiliates (402 (340 (29¢) (259) 77
Distributed income of equity affiliates 21C 19C 194 212 15¢
Amortization of previously capitalized interest 18 9 10 11 11
Fixed charges less capitalized interest 44¢ 40¢ 331 30z 49z

Earnings $ 2,73¢ $ 1,78 $ 2027 $ 185 $ (97

Fixed charges:
Interest incurred and amortization of debt expense $ 33z % 31z $ 224 $ 19 % 37t

Estimated portion of interest in rent expense 157 151 141 13C 134
Fixed charges $ 49C % 464 % 365 $ 32 $ 50¢
Less: Interest capitalized during the period (42 (55) (39 (21) a7
Fixed charges less capitalized interest $ 44 $ 40¢ $ 331 % 30z % 492
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 5.€ 3.€ 5.€ 5.7 *
* The ratio coverage for the year ended Septembe2(BIH was less than 1:1. The Company must genadaiiéional earnings of $6

million to achieve a coverage ratio of 1:1.

For the purposes of computing this ratio, "earningmnsist of net income attributable to Johnson t@ds, Inc. from continuing operatic
before income taxes, income attributable to nomodlimtg interests and income from equity affiliatpfus (a) amortization of previou:
capitalized interest, (b) distributed income froquigy affiliates and (c) fixed charges, minus ietgr capitalized during the period. "Fi;
charges" consist of (i) interest incurred and aiation of debt expense plus (ii) the portion aftrexpense representative of the interest facto



EXHIBIT 18

November 21, 201

Board of Directors
5757 North Green Bay Avenue
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53209

Dear Directors:
We are providing this letter to you for inclusioman exhibit to your Form 10-K filing pursuant terh 601 of Regulation S-K.

We have been provided a copy of the Company’s AnRaport on Form 16 for the year ended September 30, 2013. Note reitnelescribe
a change in accounting principle for inventory oustin the Company’s Power Solutions business &ofittst-in first-out (FIFO) method froi
the last-in firstout (LIFO) method. It should be understood that phneferability of one acceptable method of accauntbver another fi
inventory costing has not been addressed in arhostative accounting literature, and in expressing concurrence below we have reliec
management’s determination that this change inwatowy principle is preferable. Based on our regdifi managemerg’ stated reasons ¢
justification for this change in accounting prifleipn the Form 1-K, and our discussions with management as to jhdgment about tt
relevant business planning factors relating to ¢hange, we concur with management that such chamgesents, in the Company’
circumstances, the adoption of a preferable acemyntrinciple in conformity with Accounting Standksr Codification 250 Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections .

Very truly yours,
/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Milwaukee, Wisconsin



EXHIBIT 21

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.

The following is a list of significant subsidiarie§the Company, as defined by Section 1.02(w)@fiation S-X, as of October 31, 2013.

Jurisdiction Where Subsidiary is

Name Incorporated
York International Corporation Delaware
Johnson Controls Battery Group, Inc. Wisconsin

Hoover Universal, Inc. Michigan



EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢kee Registration Statements on Form S-3 anchF®8 listed below of Johnson Contr¢
Inc. of our report dated November 21, 2013 relatmghe financial statements, financial statemehedule and the effectiveness of inte
control over financial reporting, which appearstis Form 10-K.

1. Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registnatlo. 3330309

2. Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registnatio. 3331271

3. Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registndtio. 3358094

4. Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registnatlo. 33310707

5. Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registnatio. 33341564

6. Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registndtlo. 333141578

7. Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registmatlo. 333173326

8. Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registmatio. 333188430

9. Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registmatlo. 333157502

10. Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Regisindtlo. 333178148

11. Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Regisindtlo. 333179613

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Milwaukee, Wisconsin
November 21, 201



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Alex A. Molinaroli, President and Chief ExecwiOfficer, of Johnson Controls, Inc., certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F Johnson Controls, Ini

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact orténstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamld procedures (as defin
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to u
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reéipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratislosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thegstegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxon our most recent evaluation of internal abmiver financial reportin
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitieregistrant’s board of directors (or persor$quaing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrastinterna
control over financial reporting.

Date: November 21, 2013

/9 Alex A. Molinaroli

Alex A. Molinarioli
President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, R. Bruce McDonald, Executive Vice President &fdef Financial Officer of Johnson Controls, Ireertify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F Johnson Controls, Ini

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact orténstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamld procedures (as defin
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to u
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reéipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratislosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thegstegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxon our most recent evaluation of internal abmiver financial reportin
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitieregistrant’s board of directors (or persor$quaing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrastinterna
control over financial reporting.

Date: November 21, 2013

/s/ R. Bruce McDonald

R. Bruce McDonald
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC FINANCIAL REPORTS

We, Alex A. Molinaroli, President and Chief ExematiOfficer, and R. Bruce McDonald, Executive Viae$tdent and Chief Financial Officer,
of Johnson Controls, Inc., certify, pursuant tot®ec906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yearesh8eptember 30, 2013 (Periodic Report) to whighdtatement is an exhibit fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a)%(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15.G. 78m or 780(d)) and

2. information contained in the Periodic Repomlygoresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of
Johnson Controls, Inc.

Date: November 21, 2013

/s/ Alex A. Molinaroli

Alex A. Molinaroli
President and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ R. Bruce McDonald

R. Bruce McDonald
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office




